
 

 

 
To: Members of the Performance 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
22 January 2021 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 10.00 am on THURSDAY, 28 JANUARY 2021 in BY VIDEO CONFERENCE. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 7 - 16) 

 To receive the minutes of the 
 

(i) Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 26 November 2020  
 

(ii) Special Performance Scrutiny Committee held on the 22 December 
2020 (copies attached) 

 
10:00am – 10:05am 

 

5 WORK PROGRAMME AND SUPPORT TO SCHOOLS DURING THE 
COVID PANDEMIC  (Pages 17 - 188) 

Public Document Pack



 

 To consider a report on how the regional consortium, in partnership with the 
Local Authority, has evolved and adapted to support schools during the 
COVID pandemic and how schools adapted to the new ways of working in 
response to COVID-19 restrictions and the impact on future education 
delivery practices (copy attached) 
 

10:05am – 11:00am 
 

~~~~BREAK~~~~ 

 11:00am – 11:10am 
 

6 LEARNER TRANSPORT: PROVISION FOR WELSH MEDIUM 
EDUCATION AND THE DEFINITION OF CATEGORY 1 SCHOOLS IN THE 
COUNTY  (Pages 189 - 254) 

 To consider a joint report by the Head of Education and the Education 
Planning and Recourses Manager (copy attached) which seeks the 
Committee to discuss the Council’s Learner Transport policy and its 
application in relation to Welsh medium education. 
 

11:10am – 12:00pm 
 

7 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 255 - 276) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy enclosed) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 
 

12:00pm – 12:20pm 
 

8 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors 
 
Councillor Arwel Roberts (Chair) 
 

Councillor Hugh Irving (Vice-Chair) 

Ellie Chard 
Martyn Holland 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
Bob Murray 
Paul Penlington 
 

Pete Prendergast 
Peter Scott 
Andrew Thomas 
David Williams 
 

Voting Co-opted Members for Education (Agenda Item No. 5 and 6 only) 
 



 

Kathleen Jones Neil Roberts 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 

 

 

 
Code of Conduct for Members 
 

DISCLOSURE AND REGISTRATION OF INTERESTS 
 
  

I, (name)   

  

a *member/co-opted member of 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Denbighshire County Council  

 
 

 

CONFIRM that I have declared a *personal / personal and prejudicial 
interest not previously declared in accordance with the provisions of Part 
III of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, in respect of the 
following:- 
(*please delete as appropriate) 

Date of Disclosure:   

   

Committee (please specify):   

   

Agenda Item No.   

   

Subject Matter:   

   

Nature of Interest: 

(See the note below)* 

 

 
 

 

   

Signed   

   

Date   

 

 
*Note: Please provide sufficient detail e.g. ‘I am the owner of land adjacent to the application for planning permission 
made by Mr Jones', or 'My husband / wife is an employee of the company which has made an application for financial 
assistance’. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in via Video 
Conferencing on Thursday, 26 November 2020 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillors Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Martyn Holland, Geraint Lloyd-Williams, Bob Murray, 
Pete Prendergast, Arwel Roberts (Chair), Peter Scott and David Williams 
 
Lead Members – Councillors Hugh Evans and Julian Thompson-Hill were in attendance 
at the Committee’s request. 
 
Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies attended as an observer. 
 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (JG), Corporate Director for Economy and Public Realm (GB), Strategic 
Planning and Performance Team Leader (IMcG), Democratic Services Manager (SP), 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE), WebEx Host (SJ) and Committee Administrator (SLW)   
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hugh Irving. 
 
The Chair informed Committee members that Councillor Irving had been admitted 
to hospital following an accident at home earlier in the week.  Committee members 
requested that their good wishes for a full and speedy recovery be conveyed to 
Councillor Irving. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
No urgent matters had been raised with the Chair ahead of the meeting. 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 1 October 2020 were 
submitted. 
 
Matters Arising –  
 
Page 6 – The Scrutiny Co-ordinator confirmed that funding for the refurbishment 
work to accommodate the relocation of Work Opportunities services to both County 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Hall and Denbigh had been confirmed and was contained within the information 
brief which had been circulated to Members. 
 
Page 6 – Welsh Street naming and numbering – The Scrutiny Co-ordinator stated 
that the officer who had been dealing with this had been seconded but was now 
back in their substantive role.  A report would be presented to Cabinet in the near 
future. 
 
Agreement on the recommendation was by consensus.  No formal vote was taken.  
All members indicated they were in favour of the recommendation, no one indicated 
they were against it and no one indicated that they wished to abstain. 
 
Resolved:  that the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting 
held on 1 October 2020 be approved as a true and correct record.  
 

5 COVID 19 RECOVERY THEME : CORPORATE PRIORITIES  
 
The Leader, Councillor Hugh Evans, introduced the Covid 19 Recovery Theme: 
Corporate Priorities report (previously circulated).  
 
The Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and Cabinet had identified 14 Recovery 
Themes in light of the Covid emergency.   For each of the Recovery Themes, a 
standard template was to be utilised which was included in Appendix 2 of the 
report. 
 
Included as Appendix 3 of the report was a draft report from the Chief Executive 
entitled “Covid 19 – The Future Shape of the Council”.   The draft report had also 
been considered by both SLT and Cabinet. 
 
Both the Leader and the Corporate Director for Economy and Public Realm clarified 
the report was about delivering priorities not details of the priorities.  They did not 
want to duplicate work by discussing details. 
 
During the discussions, the following points were raised: 

 Elections – there had been no official announcement from the Welsh 
Government (WG) to date that the May 2021 Senedd elections were to be 
deferred.  If the elections were to be deferred for 12 months, then 
Denbighshire County Council (DCC) would deal with that. 

 the importance of the involvement of communities in work to expand 
community resilience was emphasised.  The COVID-19 pandemic had 
highlighted residents’ willingness to embrace resilience work within their 
communities.   

 As majority of staff were now working from home, a question was raised on 
how productivity was measured.  It was confirmed that staff were productive 
whilst working from home.  Line Managers monitored quality and volume of 
work through Appraisals which contained objectives and linked into individual 
Service Plans and the Corporate Plan. 

 It had been disappointing for all that the 2020 Urdd National Eisteddfod 
which had been due to be held in Denbigh had been cancelled and that 

Page 8



subsequently the 2021 event had also been cancelled.  There was hope that 
it would now take place in Denbigh in 2022. 

 
Agreement on the recommendation was by consensus.  No formal vote was taken.  
All members indicated they were in favour of the recommendation, no one indicated 
they were against it and no one indicated they wished to abstain. 
 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved: - having considered the information provided in the report and 
during the discussion on the COVID-19 emergency, to confirm that the 
Council’s existing governance framework was still appropriate for assessing, 
monitoring and delivering the Authority’s corporate priorities 
 

6 CORPORATE RISK REGISTER REVIEW, SEPTEMBER 2020  
 
The Lead Member for Finance, Performance and Assets, Councillor Julian 
Thompson-Hill, introduced the Corporate Risk Register Review, September 2020 
report (previously circulated). 
 
Attached to the report, Appendix 2 listed the core changes. 
 
There was one new risk – Risk 46 Failure to progress the replacement Local 
Development Plan (LDP) to adoption. 
 
During this latest review, the impact of Covid-19 had been a major factor, and a 
number of risks had been updated to reflect the impact thus far and future 
implications. Some risks had seen their scores increase in severity as a result. 
 
It was confirmed that the Corporate Risk Register had previously been discussed at 
the Corporate Governance and Audit Committee.  That Committee had raised the 
risk posed by County Lines drug crimes in the county, this element would be 
considered during the next scheduled review of the Risk Register.  In response to 
questions from Committee members the Lead Member and officers advised that: 
 

 School Governors were responsible for risk mitigation measures within 
individual schools.  Any significant risks would be escalated to the Education 
Department for support 

 WG Guidance had been published on how to deal with claims for the various 
COVID-19 business support grants.  By following these guidance documents 
when dealing with claims the Council should mitigate the risk of being 
exposed to fraudulent claims 

 Additional funding had been included within the current financial year’s 
budget to address the risks caused by Ash Dieback 

 the Council had contingency budgets available to deal with the cost of 
severe adverse weather events.  If such events became major adverse 
weather events or an extraordinary event i.e. a pandemic - local authorities 
would look to national governments for financial support  

 

Page 9



Agreement on the recommendations was by consensus.  No formal vote was taken.  
All members indicated they were in favour of the recommendation, no one indicated 
they were against it and no one indicated they wished to abstain. 
 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved: - subject to the above observations to receive and confirm the 
amendments to the Corporate Risk Register. 
 

7 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator introduced the report (previously circulated) seeking 
Members’ review of the Committee’s work programme and providing an update on 
relevant issues.  Members were reminded that the proposal form for scrutiny topics 
(appendix 2) should be completed for the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group to 
review and allocate items of business. 
 
Items to be put forward to the 28 January 2021 meeting were as follows: 

 External Examinations/Qualifications 2020 

 Learner Transport for Welsh Medium Education and the Definition of 

Category 1 Schools 

 Cefndy Healthcare 

 
Library Services Standards 2019-20 would be moved from January meeting to 18 
March 2021 meeting as the WG assessment report had been delayed due to 
pressures caused by COVID-19. 
 
Members were advised that a Special Meeting of the Committee had been 
arranged for the morning of 22 December 2020 to discuss the findings of the Use of 
Plastics Task and Finish Group and formulate recommendations from the 
Committee for presentation to County Council early in the new year. 
 
Agreement on the recommendation was by consensus.  No formal vote was taken.  
All members indicated they were in favour of the recommendation, no one indicated 
they were against it and no one indicated they wished to abstain. 
 
 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved: - subject to the above amendments to confirm the Committee’s 
forward work programme 
 

8 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
Councillor Arwel Roberts confirmed he had attended Strategic Investment Group at 
which, bridges and flood recovery had been discussed.  Those items were to be 
sent to Cabinet for discussion. 
 

Page 10



Agreement on the recommendation was by consensus.  No formal vote was taken.  
All members indicated they were in favour of the recommendation, no one indicated 
they were against it and no one indicated they wished to abstain. 
 
The Committee: 
 
Resolved: - to receive the feedback received. 
 

 
 
THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 11.30 A.M. 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in VIA ZOOM on 
Tuesday, 22 December 2020 at 9.30 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillors Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Hugh Irving (Vice-Chair), Paul Penlington, 
Pete Prendergast, Arwel Roberts (Chair) and Peter Scott 
 
Councillor Emrys Wynne attended in his capacity as Chair of the Use of Plastics 
Members’ Task & Finish Group. 
 
Observers – Councillors Graham Timms, Meirick Lloyd Davies, Joan Butterfield and Tony 
Thomas. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (JG), Corporate Director: Economy and Public Realm (GB), Head of 
Highways & Environmental Services (TW), Strategic Planning & Performance Officer 
(HB-P), Democratic Services Manager (SP), Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE), Zoom Host (SJ), 
and Committee Administrator (SLW) 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Martyn Holland, 
Geraint Lloyd-Williams, Bob Murray and David Williams 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No personal or prejudicial interests in the business item under discussion were 
declared. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
No urgent matters had been raised with the Chair prior to the meeting. 
 

4 AVOIDANCE AND REDUCTION OF PLASTICS IN DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY 
COUNCIL  
 
Councillor Emrys Wynne, Chair of Use of Plastics Members’ Task & Finish Group, 
introduced the Avoidance and Reduction of Plastics in Denbighshire County 
Council report (previously circulated). 
 
Full Council, at the end of January 2020, approved the recommendations included 
in the Task and Finish Group’s initial action plan to reduce the use of plastics in 
civic offices (Phase 1).  Full Council also agreed to the Group’s request to continue 
its work for a further 12 months with a view to devising methods for reducing the 

Page 13



use of plastics in two specific areas, namely school catering and procurement 
(Phase 2). 
 
Within a matter of weeks of the above decision being taken the COVID-19 
pandemic struck and the country went into lockdown.   
 
The report outlined the proposed recommendations following the recent meeting of 
the Use of Plastics Members’ Task & Finish Group where the group acknowledged 
the achievement of Phase 1 in reducing the use of plastics in civic offices and 
considered a way forward in relation to the work it had been tasked to undertake, 
but were unable to progress Phase 2 (School Catering and Procurement) due to the 
pandemic. 
 
Officers involved with the Climate and Ecological Change Strategy – suggested that 
recommendation (ii) included the following words highlighted in bold text 
`Opportunities to reduce the use of plastics in school catering and procurement for 
the benefit of reducing carbon emissions, along with any future work on the 
avoidance and reduction of plastics in Denbighshire County Council (including its 
Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) e.g. Denbighshire Leisure Limited (DLL) be co-
ordinated under the proposed Climate and Ecological Change Strategy.   
 
The Task and Finish Group was of the view that the proposal for the work to be co-
ordinated under the proposed Climate and Ecological Change Strategy 
demonstrated a sustainable approach to the environment and contributed positively 
overall to the well-being goals. 
 
During discussions, it was suggested and agreed that an additional 
recommendation be included for approval as follows: 
 
“the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) be requested to determine 
the most effective forum for monitoring the implementation and delivery of reducing 
the use of plastics within Denbighshire County Council and the Council’s wider 
Ecological and Climate Change Strategy”.   
 
Councillor Peter Scott proposed that the three recommendations formulated by the 
Task and Finish Group and outlined in the report, along with the fourth 
recommendation put forward by the Committee at the meeting should be approved.  
Councillor Hugh Irving seconded Councillor Scott’s proposal.   
 
A formal vote was taken on the four recommendations en-bloc.  All Committee 
members present voted for the recommendations, no Committee member present 
indicated they wished to vote against or abstain from voting on any of the 
recommendations.  The Committee therefore unanimously: 
 
Resolved: - having considered the information provided by the Task and 
Finish Group on its work thus far that – 
 

(i) given the current circumstances due to the global COVID-19 pandemic, 
that Phase 2 of the Group’s work should not proceed and that the 
Task and Finish Group be disbanded; 

Page 14



(ii) opportunities to reduce the use of plastics in school catering and 
procurement, along with any future work on the avoidance and 
reduction of plastics in Denbighshire County Council (including its 
Alternative Delivery Models (ADMs) such as Denbighshire Leisure 
Limited (DLL) be co-ordinated under the proposed Climate and 
Ecological Change Strategy; 

(iii)having agreed the above recommendations, they be submitted to 
County Council for approval; and 

(iv) the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) be requested to 
determine the most effective forum for monitoring the 
implementation and delivery of reducing the use of plastics within 
Denbighshire County Council and the Council’s wider Ecological 
and Climate Change Strategy.   

 
 
THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 10:05 A.M.  

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 28 January 2021 

Lead Member/Officer Huw Hilditch-Roberts (Lead Member for 

Education, Children and Young People/ Head 

of Education and Children Services) 

Report author GwE Core Leads/Geraint Davies (Interim Head 

of Education) 

Title Work programme and support to schools 

during the COVID Pandemic 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1. To present a report on how the regional consortium, in partnership with the 

Local Authority, has evolved and adapted to support schools during the COVID 

pandemic and how schools adapted to the new ways of working in response to 

COVID-19 restrictions and the impact on future education delivery practices.  

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1. To provide assurances that all efforts are being made to support learners to 

achieve their full potential during unprecedented times and that the 

arrangements are sufficiently flexible to adapt to an ever changing situation 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1. Scrutiny Members are invited to discuss the details of this report and if 

appropriate to make recommendations on how to improve the support available 

to learners and to identify any aspects of the recovery work which may benefit 

from detailed examination in the future 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
 

4. Report details 

4.1. Staff in the Local Authorities and GwE have adapted their work in order to 

continue to provide effective services and support for all their school 

communities during the COVID pandemic (Appendix 1) 

4.2. The regional service in its entirety has re focused several times during this 

period to meet the needs of the range of stakeholders. The ability to be flexible 

and agile and to work effectively together in different teams, often cross sector, 

has had significant impact on organisational behaviour and external perception. 

Regular contact with school leaders has been well received and has contributed 

to Head teachers feeling that they could turn to a professional colleague to 

share challenging issues and to find solutions to address day-to-day issues.   

4.3. Support for senior leaders well-being has been provided through a series of 

workshops and webinars which will support their resilience during this difficult 

period. GwE staff are also conducting face to face pastoral visits to schools 

during the autumn term on behalf of the Local Authorities. 

4.4. One of the main strengths of work across North Wales has been the consistent 

messaging from the six local authorities through their political education 

portfolio holders and directors working with GwE to have one common message 

for the schools in North Wales. This consistency of messaging has been not 

only welcomed by schools but also by teacher unions and non-teaching unions 

who welcomed the clarity of messaging and support for their staff. One such 

example is the operational group of local authority and regional staff working on 

and developing risk assessments policy, advice and guidelines, and creating a 

regional dashboard which is a strong foundation for all schools to be able to 

reopen with risks being identified and locally managed and supported. 

4.5. The six local authorities and GwE have taken a collegiate and collective 

regional approach to supporting schools throughout the COVID pandemic. This 

was clearly demonstrated in the consistent regional approach in developing a 

supportive framework to ensure that all regional schools had the right policies in 

place together with a comprehensive risk assessment in order to create a safe 

environment to welcome the children back into schools. (Appendix 2) 

The framework included resources to support planning for:  

Page 18



 
 

1) Health and safety requirements 

2) Site and facilities arrangements 

3) Transport  

4) Staffing arrangements 

5) Blended teaching and learning 

6) Inclusion and pupil support  

7) Key management tasks. 

4.6. One noteworthy aspect of the work has also been the bespoke nature of 

support for teachers and schools. GwE have worked on the strengths of 

individuals within the team and redeployed them where they have provided the 

maximum impact in their roles in supporting individual local authorities, schools, 

clusters, subject and phase networks. This bespoke provision of support based 

on strong principles of collaboration, exchanging and sharing and developing 

the best practice is a key learning principle that we will continue to develop in 

the next stages of evolving the service 

4.7. Schools who were causing concern prior to lockdown have had access to clear 

and targeted support to help them through this difficult period. This has been at 

several levels including network support, support to senior leadership and 

middle management in those schools and support with provision of distance 

and blended learning.  Schools that have found the lockdown and post 

lockdown period difficult due to staff having to self-isolate have been supported 

in various ways. This has included modelling of exemplar materials, webinars, 

shared materials and resources. Also, GwE staff directly leading, directly 

teaching in schools or providing distance learning to learners 

4.8. A lot of time and energy have been put in place to contact international experts 

and to research international practice to learn and establish the principles of 

effective distance and blended learning. Discussions with international 

colleagues including the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and 

Development (OECD) have also deepened thinking within the organisation. 

This has supported schools to have a better strategic overview of their 

provision. 

4.9. GwE is also supporting schools in evaluating the quality of their blended 

learning and distance learning provision, sharing local examples and case 

Page 19



 
 

studies of effective provision to reduce variation where it exists. Live streaming 

is developing well and enhancing the blended learning experience. Schools 

now realise that COVID will be with them for an extended period and are 

planning more strategically and effectively. As schools and settings are 

becoming more confident with the delivery of learning at a distance, so they will 

be better able to adapt their self-evaluation processes and tools to monitor, 

evaluate, review and revise if appropriate, the provision. 

4.10. School leaders acknowledge that one of the greatest challenges to the delivery 

of blended and distance learning has been and continues to be ensuring that 

staff and pupils have the necessary skills’ set and resources available to them. 

There has been a rapid pace of upskilling for some staff to move to digital 

platforms. Schools have undertaken a range of planned professional learning 

offered by regional consortia around the use of digital technology to support 

learning. 

4.11. Many schools acknowledge that parental engagement has been a key factor in 

securing effective distance/blended learning. GwE and the Local Authorities 

have provided a range of guidance to support school in improving parental 

engagement, including the sharing of good practice. 

4.12. GwE have also adopted a regional approach to accelerating learning, working 

on a tri-level approach which includes universal support led by the consortium, 

targeted support jointly led by the consortia and the local authority, with the 

acute being the responsibility of the local authority. This work has been 

developed on an evidence base approach working closely with Bangor 

University and regional staff to ensure a range of high-quality resources to 

support physical and emotional wellbeing, literacy and numeracy, these being 

made available to all learners across, all age range in all schools.  The impact 

of this work will be captured through a regional dashboard which will include all 

grants made available to schools by Welsh Government during this financial 

year (Appendix 3) 

4.13. During the autumn term, GwE have provided opportunities for schools to form 

alliances or to work within developed clusters to address gaps in provision and 

alternative ways of delivery to meet any future lockdown scenarios. This work 

will: 

Page 20



 
 

 Identify, develop and share blended learning resources within the 

cluster/alliance and with other regional clusters/alliances; 

 Ensure all identified and developed resources are submitted through their 

Supporting Improvement Adviser to be included on the GwE Support 

Centre; 

 Support schools within the cluster with their provision to meet any future 

‘lockdown scenarios’; 

 Prioritise additional support for the secondary sector in preparation for the 

awarding of examination grades in 2021 

4.14. The GwE Professional Offer for this academic year has been rationalised and 

concentrates on 5 main areas: Wellbeing, The Reform Journey, Developing the 

Workforce, Accelerating the Learning and Digital Learning. In addition, GwE will 

continue to facilitate cluster working to support the development of Curriculum 

for Wales, Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Transformation and the Welsh 

Language.  During the COVID period GwE has continually reflected on the 

effectiveness of the work. Both internal and external resources have been used 

to ensure that we have a balanced perspective on the quality of the work. This 

has included working with the Education Development Trust and Steve Munby 

to develop the organisation and plan our future infrastructure. (Appendix 4) 

4.15. Main outcomes and impact of the work 

 Effective collegiate and collective regional approach between the six local authorities 

and GwE. 

 Joint working has ensured strong governance and regional consistency in support, 

messaging and guidance given to schools. 

 Strengthened collaboration between peers at a cluster/forum level has ensured 

effective co-constructed strategic thinking and direction. 

 Clear regional and local approach in place for effective repurposing of both the 

service and its schools. 

 Schools are well informed and confident that effective support is available should any 

needs arise.  

 School leaders’ wellbeing supported through regular and clear communication. 

 Clear guidance given on how to prioritise and structure both Distance and Blended 

Learning. 

Page 21



 
 

 Schools provided with coherent guidance and resources to effectively support 

vulnerable learners with their wellbeing, engagement and learning. 

 Best practice being shared across schools and clusters, i.e. engaging with reluctant 

learners and families, digital platforms and communication systems, blended learning 

models, etc. 

4.16. Other Outcomes and Impact 

 Effective communication provided via single point of contact (SIA) for school leaders and 

ease of access to support. 

 Schools have been able to remain open to key workers in the event of staff shortages. 

 Schools are well informed and confident that support is available should any needs arise. 

School leaders’ wellbeing is supported through regular communication. 

 Shared understanding of the importance of the welfare of pupils, parents and staff 

 Clear guidance given on how to prioritise and structure both Distance and Blended 

Learning. 

 Schools having access to a wealth of quality resources for reference as they plan for and 

deliver distance and blended learning. 

 Comprehensive distance and blended learning models available for schools to adopt, 

adapt or refer to. This has in turn ensured strengthened leadership and improved balance 

of work that can be completed at home. 

 Co-ordinated approach to supporting schools which has led to greater consistency and 

quality of distance and blended learning across the region. 

 Best practice being shared across schools i.e. engaging with reluctant learners and 

families, digital platforms and communication systems etc. 

 Strengthened use of ICT to enable effective communication between schools, within 

schools and with school stakeholders. 

 School staff being upskilled through the use of a digital platform for professional 

development. 

 Information shared with the LA is up to date and timely support is given to any School. 

 In conjunction with the LA, ensured that the process of appointing school leadership 

candidates is appropriate and fair. 

 Consistent messages disseminated to schools by GwE/LA officers. 

 Strengthened collaboration between peers at a cluster level through digital means 

ensuring co-constructed strategic thinking. 

 Strengthened collaboration between local authority officers and GwE. 

Page 22



 
 

 Clear regional and local approach in place for adapting schools for different purposes. 

 Effective cascading of key messages to school staff to ensure consistency and clarity. 

 Increased collaboration between regions and other stakeholders. 

 Increased understanding of key messages and work streams. 

 Stronger awareness amongst school leaders of effective strategies to ensure 

continuation of school business. 

 Quality Professional Learning developed in readiness for future needs. 

 Newly Qualified Teachers having clarity regarding completing their induction year. 

 Strong partnership work with Bangor University to ensure initial teacher training students 

have clarity on the appointment system for next year. 

 Strong partnership working with Caban to ensure increased research opportunities and 

recognition of excellence by School staff. 

4.17. Next Steps 

 Support schools to implement the recommendations of the Design and Delivery Board 

for the awarding of qualifications in summer 2021. 

 Continue to work closely in partnership with Local Authorities to support the wellbeing of 

Head teachers and school staff. 

 Deliver an effective professional learning offer to support schools to address immediate 

needs and to implement the Welsh Government reform journey 

 Continue to support clusters/alliances to plan for the continuity of learning so that they 

can effectively meet any future lockdown scenarios. 

 Strengthen the culture, behaviour, systems and processes so that leaders and teachers 

are incentivised to adopt a collegiate approach to school improvement. 

 Develop a regional qualitative framework for holistically capturing and evaluating 

progress in a school. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1. This area of work contributes towards making Denbighshire a place where 

young people want to live and work and have the skills to do so.  It also 

contributes to make Denbighshire a place where young people can flourish and 

have the best start in life regardless of the challenges we face due to Covid 19. 

Page 23



 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1 Costs will be met from existing delegated budgets to schools and also grant 

funding that has been made available from Welsh Government 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1. N/A 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1. No requirement to consult with scrutiny however discussions with trade unions 

and head teachers have been very positive. 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

9.1. N/A 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1. All risks and mitigating actions included in the Opening Schools Risk 

Assessment 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1.  Scrutiny’s powers in relation to matters detailed in this report are as per: 

 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000;  
 Section 7.4 of the Council’s Constitution 

Page 24



Appendix 1 
Summary of work undertaken 
 
Phase 1:  Pre-lockdown 

 Communication strategy agreed with Directors of six local authorities. 

 Regular phone contact with each school through SIA to support head teachers 
to keep schools open and assuage concerns.  

 Deploy GwE staff in schools and PRUs where identified to support them to stay 
open. 

 Deploy GwE staff in the authorities to support them with essential services. 

 GwE teams upload initial resources to a designated Google classroom to 
support schools with initial planning for distance learning.   

 
Phase 2:   Supporting schools at the beginning of lockdown 

 Keeping regular contact with schools in order to ensure health and wellbeing of 
both staff and pupils. 

 Continuing to support individual schools or Hubs when there was a shortage of 
staff to attend. 

 Upskilling of GwE staff for digital learning. 

 Developing guidance, support and learning resources for schools to begin to 
support distance learning in schools. 

 Supporting schools with Digital Learning and producing useful ‘How To’ videos 
so that teachers can develop and vary their distance learning methodology. 

 
Phase 3:  Distance Learning (DL) 

 Developed distance learning guidance for schools in collaboration with other 
regions. 

 Initially, google classrooms populated with appropriate materials and ideas for 
all Key Stages to refer to. 

 Support to enable leaders and teachers to act in line with best practice in 
creating and using online learning resources. 

 Effective DL Models were developed in GwE and were shared nationally and 
adopted by all regions. 

 Schools, leaders and teachers were encouraged to share resources across the 
system and to encourage schools to use Hwb to share their approaches, plans 
and learning resources. 

 Ensured all learners have an equitable access to learning and learning 
resources. 

 All SIAs to have appropriate Professional Learning as to what makes effective 
DL. 

 
Phase 4:  Supporting schools to re-open 

 Joint work with 6 Local Authorities. 

 Establish clear lines of communication with key stakeholders. 

 Weekly meetings with Directors and Education portfolio holders. 

 Created a Policy Framework and Dashboard. 

 Modelled risk assessment for each sector. 

 Regional and local roles identified in supporting vulnerable learners.   

 Upskilled GwE staff to support school leadership in these areas.  

Page 25



 
Phase 5:  Blended Learning 

 Upskilling of GwE team with international research on blended learning.   

 Naturally blending Curriculum for Wales into current practice. 

 Multi-disciplinary units to consolidate and develop skills. 

 CAGs / Qualifications / Exams. 
 
Phase 6: Accelerating Learning / Recruit, Recover and Raise Standards (RRRS) 

 Regional approach to Accelerating Learning / RRRS – included Physical 
wellbeing; Emotional wellbeing and Literacy and numeracy. 

 Evidence based approach based on research. 

 Triangle of need – GwE leading the universal, GwE and Local Authorities 
targeted and Local Authorities leading the acute. 

 
Phase 7: Deepening collaboration and developing robust networks 

 Work within developed collaborations or opportunities to form alliances to 
address gaps in provision and alternative ways of delivery to meet any future 
lockdown scenarios.  

 Clusters and alliances to identify the appropriate level of support which will be 
required for the different scenarios. 

 Facilitate schools supporting each other in this time of crisis. Each cluster or 
alliance supporting each other by sharing plans and resources so that schools 
can respond to different operational scenarios that they might find themselves 
in.  

 These resources will be collated regionally, ensuring a significant bank of 
quality resources for all age groups across the school system in North Wales. 

 The aim of the work is to reduce workload and reduce pressure on schools. 

 Provided rationalised Professional Offer to support clusters and individual 
schools. 

 

Page 26



Professional
Learning

Appendix 2

P
age 27



REPORT ON PROFESSIONAL LEARNING OFFER IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Background and context 

The response to COVID-19 has dramatically changed our lives. In this challenging context, the education system and 
schooling has been significantly disrupted but remains of central importance. 

On 23rd March, schools were re-purposed to support children of key workers and some vulnerable learners whilst also 
supporting all learners to stay safe and keep learning at home. 

At this time, schools and settings were advised to make all efforts to:
• keep all children safe and well;
• offer access to childcare for critical workers;
• ensure learners who are at most risk are being supported;
• support the well-being of the education workforce;
• allow learners to access learning through digital or other accessible methods in a practical and uncomplicated way;
• support all partners’ shared understanding of how effective, organised distance learning can provide a breadth of learning 

experiences;
• support parents/carers access to guidance to understand their role in supporting their children within distance learning; 
• support the well-being and basic skills of learners through effective contact and communications.

P
age 28



Background and context (cont’d)

On June 3 the Welsh Government (WG) announced that there would be a phased opening of schools from 29th

June, 2020 to give all pupils the opportunity to “check in, catch up and prepare.” Welsh Government published 
their Learning Guidance [https://gov.wales/keep-education-safe-guidance-learning-over-summer-term] to 
provide advice on learning and teaching taking place in schools and settings for the remainder of the summer 
term and to support practitioners as they prepare for the autumn term.

On July 9th, the Education Minister confirmed that all pupils will be able to return to school in September, and 
that schools will return to full capacity by September 14th, subject to continuing, steady decline in the presence 
of COVID-19 in the community. Welsh Government have published further learning guidance 
[https://gov.wales/guidance-learning-schools-and-settings-autumn-term-covid-19] for the autumn term that 
gives schools and supporting partners a common set of priorities for learning, regardless of the level of 
operations in response to COVID-19.

P
age 29

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgov.wales%2Fkeep-education-safe-guidance-learning-over-summer-term&data=02%7C01%7CLloyd.Hopkin2%40gov.wales%7Cb9f0669368c54e2599d808d818381365%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C637285976416815873&sdata=Zj6oOZ8O%2BAWKnytxR71PS06bdEV%2Fb4Hh%2Fl3XE74zKRQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gov.wales/guidance-learning-schools-and-settings-autumn-term-covid-19


Introduction

Under normal circumstances, GwE's professional learning offer is both comprehensive and wide-ranging providing effective 
professional learning opportunities for all school staff, from teaching assistants wanting to achieve a Higher Level Teaching
Assistant qualification, an Aspiring Leader Development Programme, a Middle Leadership Development Programme, to 
prospective head teachers through the NPQH. It also includes Professional Learning opportunities in numerous other aspects 
of school life, for example: literacy and numeracy in the primary, core subjects in the secondary, curriculum planning and 
wellbeing. 

The service has evolved to be in a position to offer training based on the
principles of schools as ‘learning organisations’. There is a focus on
professional learning, based on providing support using various approaches
including specific off-site and remote professional learning, mentoring, and
effective school-to-school collaboration and peer engagement. All promote
self-improvement and pedagogy with the aim of rolling out good practice.

P
age 30



Introduction (cont’d)

GwE's professional offer has been planned to ensure effective support for aspiring and experienced leaders 
at all levels, for the development of classroom practitioners and for whole school areas/aspects such as 
pedagogy, assessment and wellbeing.

We actively encourage schools to collaborate and engage in clusters and are able to respond to the specific 
requirements and needs of our partner LAs.

The professional offer is identified following careful consultation with all stakeholders and user groups and is 
further underpinned by the sound knowledge held by Supporting Improvement Advisers. We are confident 
that the comprehensive package on offer to school robustly meets national, regional and local requirements.

The principles of Curriculum for Wales are embedded in all our training offers and the four curriculum
purposes are fundamental when planning relevant, up-to-date and engaging training. Furthermore, the
Professional Standards for Teaching and Leadership form the basis of professional learning and support
teachers and leaders with pedagogy, collaboration, leadership, innovation and professional learning.

As part of GwE’s professional learning offer, we have maintained an integrated approach to the Reform
Journey and supported collaborative working across clusters looking at the 3-16 continuum. Working closely
with leaders, we have identified resources and areas of professional learning to include the 12 Pedagogical
Principles within the broader context of teaching and learning, assessment, regional AOLE networks and
curriculum design and planning at school level.

P
age 31



Supporting Professional Learning (PL) to address the educational 
needs of the learners in response to COVID-19

Staff in the local authorities and GwE have adapted and repurposed their work in order to continue to provide
effective services and support for their school communities. The ‘normal’ professional offer has been modified to
ensure that schools and settings receive relevant and purposeful support. This has enabled them to successfully
deal and adapt to the challenging circumstances that they find themselves in. The regional approach of supporting
collaboration through cluster working has continued throughout this period.

During the COVID-19 pandemic the health and wellbeing of all learners and teaching staff has been prioritised by 
GwE and the LAs. Working within the National Approach to Professional Learning, principles of engagement have 
been established. The Professional Learning offer prioritised supporting schools to improve the digital skills of their 
staff and enabling them to develop effective Distance and Blended Learning approaches and more effective 
learner engagement. The development and sharing of distance and blended learning exemplar models were very 
warmly received by schools and ensured that we had higher levels of consistency in the quality of provision and 
delivery across the region. 

The new Professional Standards for Teaching and Leadership form the basis of the PL and support teaching staff 
and leaders with pedagogy, collaboration, leadership, innovation and their professional learning. 

P
age 32



Supporting Professional Learning (PL) to address the educational 
needs of the learners in response to COVID-19 (cont’d)

The six local authorities and GwE have also taken a collegiate and collective regional approach in developing a 
supportive framework to ensure that all regional schools had the right policies in place together with a 
comprehensive risk assessment in order to create a safe environment to welcome the children back into schools.

The framework included resources to support planning for: 
1. Health and safety requirements
2. Site and facilities arrangements
3. Transport 
4. Staffing arrangements
5. Blended teaching and learning
6. Inclusion and pupil support 
7. Key management tasks.

P
age 33



Supporting Professional Learning (PL) to address the educational 
needs of the learners in response to COVID-19 (cont’d)

The Local Authorities and GwE have worked collaboratively to ensure extensive professional learning to support 
the repurposing of schools.

This work included:

• Sharing of successful practice across the region with regard to distance learning and learner engagement.
• Facilitating cluster working and peer to peer support across the region.
• Supporting those schools that were finding engaging with specific learners challenging. 
• Supporting teachers in the transition from consolidating previous learning to teaching of new aspects.
• Learning from national and international models on how to develop blended learning.
• Publishing a blended learning guidance that was co-constructed with Estyn and the other regional consortia.
• Developing exemplar blended learning models in collaboration with Estyn and the other regional consortia.
• Providing professional learning to schools on effective blended learning models and pedagogy. 
• Continuing to support the health and wellbeing of teachers (who may be teaching several age groups) when 

they need to teach some learners in schools and continue to support others at home.
• Continuing to support schools in ensuring the health and wellbeing of learners who are returning to a very 

different classroom during the phased return.
• Providing further Professional Learning to teachers and classroom assistants on how to best model this ‘mixed 

economy’ of provision.
• Supporting wide range of opportunities to develop digital skills to enhance teaching and learning experiences

P
age 34



Purpose of the report

This report outlines the professional learning offer to schools during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

It provides summaries and links to the resources developed and shared with schools as well as a brief outline of 
the professional learning opportunities that have been offered.

Click on options below:

Professional Learning Resources

Professional Learning Opportunities

P
age 35



Professional Learning Resources

Content Wellbeing

Leadership Teaching Assistants Y Gymraeg Early PL Pathways

Digital Learning Teaching & Learning

Home

P
age 36



Content Home

Digital Learning
 Webinars
 How to Videos
 Distance Learning Resources

Teaching and Learning
 Curriculum for Wales
 Feedback 
 Distance Learning
 Blended Learning
 Networks
 Accelerated Learning

Wellbeing
 Universal wellbeing
 Targeted/Differentiated Wellbeing Approaches
 Staff Wellbeing
 Engaging with Learners

P
age 37



Content (cont’d) Home

Leadership
 Preparation to re-open schools 
 School Development Plan

Teaching Assistants
 Introduction
 Classroom content
 Joining the Classroom

Y Gymraeg
 Cynradd
 Uwchradd
 Newyddlenni
 Cynllun Gwefeillio

Early Professional Learning Pathway
 Initial Teacher Education
 Newly Qualified Teachers

P
age 38



Digital Learning Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/digital

P
age 39

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/digital


Digital Learning Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/webinars

P
age 40

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/webinars


Digital Learning Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/how-to-videos

P
age 41

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/how-to-videos


Digital Learning Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/distance-learning-resources

P
age 42

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/digital/distance-learning-resources


Teaching and Learning Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/teaching-and-learning

P
age 43

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/teaching-and-learning


Teaching and Learning (Curriculum for Wales) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/curriculum-for-wales

P
age 44

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/curriculum-for-wales


Teaching and Learning (Feedback) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/feedback

P
age 45

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/feedback


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning

P
age 46

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/primary-distance-learning

P
age 47

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/primary-distance-learning


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/primary-distance-learning

P
age 48

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/primary-distance-learning


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/gwe-guidance

P
age 49

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/gwe-guidance


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks3

P
age 50

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks3


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks4

P
age 51

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks4


Teaching and Learning (DL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks5

P
age 52

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/distance-learning/secondary-distance-learning/ks5


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/dysgucyfunol-blendedlearning/cartref-home

P
age 53

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/dysgucyfunol-blendedlearning/cartref-home


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blended-learning-fp/fp-blended-learning-model

P
age 54

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blended-learning-fp/fp-blended-learning-model


All activities to be planned and delivered in line with current operational guidance and school’s risk assessment. 

These are activities for focus and enhanced provision. Focus tasks are designed for short repeated bursts of teaching 10 
– 15 minutes for Nursery and Reception and 15 - 20 minutes for Years 1 and 2. Continuous provision will need to be 

available.

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blended-learning-fp/examples-of-activities

HomeTeaching and Learning (BL)

P
age 55

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blended-learning-fp/examples-of-activities


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blendedlearningks2

P
age 56

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blendedlearningks2


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blendedlearningks2/example-models

P
age 57

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/blendedlearningks2/example-models


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/blended-learning/blended-learning-guidance

P
age 58

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/blended-learning/blended-learning-guidance


Teaching and Learning (BL) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/blended-learning/secondary/learning-together

P
age 59

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/blended-learning/secondary/learning-together


Teaching and Learning (MFL Network) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages

P
age 60

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages


Teaching and Learning (MFL Network) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages/webinars-and-links-to-professional-learning

P
age 61

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages/webinars-and-links-to-professional-learning


Teaching and Learning (MFL Network) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages/online-resources-and-platforms

P
age 62

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/subject-networks/mfl-international-languages/online-resources-and-platforms


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills

P
age 63

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/examples-of-learning-sequences/literacy

P
age 64

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/examples-of-learning-sequences/literacy


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/examples-of-learning-sequences/numeracy

P
age 65

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/examples-of-learning-sequences/numeracy


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/evidence-reviews/behaviour-and-wellbeing-programmes

P
age 66

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/evidence-reviews/behaviour-and-wellbeing-programmes


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/evidence-reviews/online-literacy-and-numeracy-programmes

P
age 67

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/evidence-reviews/online-literacy-and-numeracy-programmes


Teaching and Learning (Accelerated Learning) Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/teaching-and-learning-strategies

P
age 68

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-and-learning/accelerated-skills/teaching-and-learning-strategies


Wellbeing Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/wellbeing

P
age 69

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/wellbeing


Wellbeing Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/universal-wellbeing

P
age 70

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/universal-wellbeing


Wellbeing Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/targeted-differentiated-wellbeing-approaches-approaches

P
age 71

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/targeted-differentiated-wellbeing-approaches-approaches


Wellbeing Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/staff-wellbeing

P
age 72

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/staff-wellbeing


Wellbeing Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/engaging-with-learners

P
age 73

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/lles/engaging-with-learners


Leadership Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/leadership/leadership

P
age 74

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/leadership/leadership


Leadership Home

P
age 75



Leadership Home

P
age 76



Leadership Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/school-development-plan/school-development-plan

P
age 77

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/school-development-plan/school-development-plan


Teaching Assistants Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/introduction

P
age 78

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/introduction


Teaching Assistants Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/classroom-content

P
age 79

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/classroom-content
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/classroom-content


Teaching Assistants Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/joining-the-classroom

P
age 80

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/joining-the-classroom
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/teaching-assistants/joining-the-classroom


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/

P
age 81

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynradd/cyfnod-sylfaen

P
age 82

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynradd/cyfnod-sylfaen


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynradd/cyfnod-allweddol-2

P
age 83

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynradd/cyfnod-allweddol-2


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/uwchradd/ca3

P
age 84

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/uwchradd/ca3


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/uwchradd/ca4

P
age 85

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/uwchradd/ca4


Y Gymraeg Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/newyddlenni

P
age 86

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/newyddlenni


Early Professional Learning Pathway Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynllun-gwefeillio

P
age 87

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/ygymraeg/cynllun-gwefeillio


Early Professional Learning Pathway Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/itenqt/early-professional-development-pathways

P
age 88

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/itenqt/early-professional-development-pathways


Early Professional Learning Pathway Home

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/itenqt/ite/learning-to-teach

P
age 89

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/itenqt/ite/learning-to-teach


Professional Learning Opportunities

Wellbeing

Leadership Teaching Assistants Y Gymraeg Early PL Pathways

Digital Learning Teaching & Learning

Home

P
age 90



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Live and recorded webinars for leaders and 

teachers that included:

 Introduction to Hwb

 Presentations on how to use Flipgrid, 

Office 365, Google for Education, 

Screencastify, Adobe Spark

 Sharing of further professional learning 

resources should the audience require 

additional information

 Raised awareness of tools and 

services offered through Hwb

 Increased understanding 

amongst schools of the 

advantages of using Hwb

 Increased use of Hwb to 

support distance learning

5 sessions

14 hours

470 attended live sessions

720 watched recorded sessions

Digital Learning Home

P
age 91



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Digital learning workshops delivered to GwE 

staff to enable them to support all schools 

and clusters across the region with their 

distance and blended learning strategies.

• Support available and 

delivered to all 413 schools 

and 53 clusters across the 

region

• Increased confidence and use 

of digital learning across all 

schools

• Increased professional 

learning opportunities and 

resources available to schools 

to support distance and 

blended learning

60 sessions

132 hours

65 GwE staff

Digital Learning Home

P
age 92



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Professional learning opportunities provided 

to all leaders and teachers in all schools 

across the region by:

• Creating distance learning website to 

share information and tools to support 

schools

• Creating Google Classrooms  to share 

resources and good practice with teaching 

staff

• Creating Google Classroom to offer 

professional learning for teaching 

assistants

• Creating blended learning website to 

present blended learning modules and 

approaches to schools

• Resources and information 

available and delivered to all 

413 schools and 53 clusters 

across the region

• Information collated in one 

place for ease of access

• Raised awareness of different 

methodologies and 

approaches to distance and 

blended learning

• Increased professional 

learning opportunities and 

resources available to schools 

to support distance and 

blended learning

• Sharing of good practice 

across the region

25 hours

Resources and guidance available 

to all 413 schools and 53 clusters 

across the region

Digital Learning Home

P
age 93



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Up-skilling Foundation Phase Practitioners and SLT,

providing bespoke training and support on FP

provision for individual schools and clusters of

schools.

• Guidance and support for the re-opening of 
schools, focused upon foundation phase 
provision for individual schools, clusters and SIAs.

• Outdoor Learning cluster training sessions and 
using the outdoors effectively when pupils return 
to school and ongoing provision. 

• Bespoke guidance, support and training to 
schools in Estyn category and schools at risk with 
their planning and delivery of distance learning.

• Maths and Numeracy training to support FP staff 
to plan purposeful learning experiences through 
distance and blended learning.

• Shared FP Blended Learning model and exemplar 
activities with SIAs and clusters of schools across 
the region to support transition and localised 
school closures.

• Up-skilling FP practitioners and SLT 
on good FP pedagogy.

• Increased knowledge and 
understanding of the need to 
provide a beneficial and high quality 
environment for pupils to return to 
school.

• An increased understanding of the 
need to plan purposeful activities 
and provide step by step 
instructions/materials, to support 
parents and pupils with distance 
learning.

33 sessions

50 hours

172 attendees

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 94



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Guidance for GwE staff on KS2 blended learning guidance and

exemplar models - content and school support

• A team of 6 Supporting Improvement Advisers collaborated to 
write blended learning  exemplar plans supported by 5 other 
SIAs  with Literacy , Numeracy and Digital specialties Three 
different exemplar plans, were written with a guidance to 
parents accompanying each one. All 3 examples are in line 
with the pedagogical principles and 4 purposes of Curriculum 
for Wales and the guidance on curriculum planning

• A PowerPoint presentation accompanies the examples, 
providing guidance to the different blended learning models,  
considerations for effective implementation and digital 
guidance for  teachers

• Information about the examples shared with every primary SIA 
through presentations in core and local meetings across the 
region. Guidance was also shared  to prepare SIAs for sharing 
information with all regional primary schools as art of the 
Blended Learning workshops held in the final weeks of the 
summer term  

The SIAs had clear guidance to help them 
share information with schools across the 
region to give clear and consistent 
messages to schools. 
As a result:
• The region’s primary schools are well 

informed about the exemplar materials 
and their content. 

• Schools have a clear guidance on the 
different blended learning models. They 
also have practical guidance and ideas 
to help teachers plan  for September 
and beyond  

• Leaders and teachers have welcomed 
the materials noting that they will be 
very useful. 

• Seeing and discussing the materials has  
reduced uncertainty among teachers, 
deepening their understanding of how 
blended learning could look in practice 
and has reduced teacher planning 
workload.

• Material preparation 400 
hours

• Meetings 5 hours
• 32 primary school SIAs

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 95



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
PL for primary Distance Learning models and

provision

• Further upskilling GwE staff and producing

exemplar DL models - sharing of distance

learning models developed by GwE primary

team for FP N/R, FL1/2, Y3/4, Y5/6

• PL meetings with LAs (through BAS meetings) to

ensure clarity and feedback on DL approaches.

• Professional learning for head teachers – all 
SIAs held individual PL sessions by phone with 
all head teachers, follow up emails were sent 
containing all documentation and models, so 
that models were not sent out cold and 
misinterpreted – week of 20/04/20

• SIAs professional developed head teachers on 
an individual basis on how to use teams and 
how to work the models SIAs – follow up 
professional learning and sharing of best 
practice cluster meetings, bespoke professional 
learning to clusters 

• Team members more effectively equipped 
to support schools.

• Consistency in messaging, guidance and 
support to schools.

• High quality professional learning 
opportunities delivered to schools 
[including bespoke guidance when and 
where required].

• Greater degree of consistency in adopted 
approaches across schools and within LAs

• Upskilling of head teachers and teachers in 
skills and resources available and tools for 
distance learning 

• Improved collaboration across clusters
• Improved distance learning provision for 

children 
• Improved standards of children’s 

engagement, wellbeing and skills 

• 330+ individual head 
teacher professional 
learning 
conversations

54 cluster meetings 
x2 (revisit)
1 primary team 
meeting
1 FTM – 30 mins
3 local area 
meetings x3 
(revisit)
6 x heads 
stakeholder 
meetings
6 x BAS meetings 

• 240 hours 

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 96



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Blended Learning Workshops for KS2

The session was designed to develop an initial 
understanding of the basics of Blended Learning in order 
to prepare schools to provide effective provision for 
pupils.

Individuals / schools were expected to:
• Contribute to conversations and discussions following 

background reading about Blended Learning before the 
workshop

• Watch a video about the basics of Blended Learning, 
discuss possible definitions and models

• Identify what opportunities there are for schools in 
adapting their provision for September 2020 
(specifically under the themes of Wellbeing, Pedagogy, 
CfW , Blended Learning and Feedback).

• Consider how they might respond to any challenges of 
adapting for September 2020.

• Consider what further support they will need for the 
successful delivery of Blended Learning and consider 
how cluster collaboration can assist in moving 
forward.

• Improved understanding of the basics of Blended 
Learning. Motivate Head teachers and  Teaching 
and Learning Leads to develop Blended Learning 
models in their schools

• Teaching and Learning Leads upskilled and 
equipped to develop Blended Learning in their 
schools and be able to better support their 
teaching staff.

• All cluster schools able to work with the SIA to 
identify what further support is required for 
effective delivery through Blended Learning so 
that these can be targeted in follow-up meetings.

• Improvement in Head teachers and T&L Leads’ 
digital skills through participation in an online 
workshop. Heads and Leads able to successfully 
discuss and engage with practical tasks in a digital 
manner.

• Developing skills to digital collaboration amongst 
cluster schools - e.g., create a joint document to 
respond to current opportunities and challenges.

54 sessions

54 hours

330 schools (with up to 2 

reps per school attending)

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 97



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

PL delivered to secondary team to effectively

support schools with Distance Learning

• In the initial lockdown period, a significant amount of 
time was invested in communicating with schools 
regarding their understanding of distance learning, 
leading to research into current national and 
international practice, in order to support schools 
effectively. This time included researching DL from the 
perspective of school leaders, teachers, pupils and 
parents.  

• Much time was spent then in creating a rationale for DL 
that recognised best practice, was realistic, yet 
aspirational for all learners. 

• The rationale led to discussion and creation of a number 
of structural and organisational approaches to DL for 
schools, ranging from fairly rigid plans that recognised a 
curricular need to consolidate learning and explore new 
ideas, to more fluid plans that encouraged thematic 
learning and flexibility and choice for parents and 
learners. 

• Up-skilling of secondary team members, through either direct 
involvement or subsequent sharing, of the fundamental principles 
of DL and its application in various school settings

• Team members more effectively equipped to support schools, 
having a wide understanding of Dl and knowledge of various 
approaches that could work within a school’s individual context.

• As a result, Head teachers and SLT members were more effectively 
equipped to support teachers within their own schools, in providing 
suitable leaning for pupils, and supporting parents.

• Consistency in messaging, guidance and support to schools.
• High quality models shared with all schools across region, through 

confident delivery by GWE staff, due to the investment of time in 
research and creating a rationale.

• Schools developing their own Distance Learning strategy based on 
GwE Guidance.

• Greater understanding by all schools of planning either a subject-
based or a multi-disciplinary approach in KS3 and deploying staff to 
work collaboratively to plan and deliver. 

• Empowered Headteachers and SMT to lead, develop and support 
staff in their schools.

• High quality professional learning opportunities delivered to schools 
[including bespoke guidance when and where required].

• All staff in full GWE 
meeting when ideas 
shared and rationale 
explained

• 6+ staff in Core 
team, and 13+ staff 
in secondary team 
meetings to share 
ideas and update 
staff in order for 
them to work 
productively in 
schools, informed 
with the necessary 
detail.

• 6 GWE secondary 
staff worked on the 
DL research, 
rationale and 
modelling. 

• 350 hours

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 98



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Professional learning delivered through

secondary forums and networks and

supplemented by webinars to raise

awareness of the principles of effective

Distance Learning and the

considerations that could impact any

planning.

• All regional secondary schools
compliant with Welsh Government
guidance and most schools adopted
the GwE models and adapted
practice to be in line with the
guidance and models.

• Greater understanding by all schools
of the fundamentals of effective
Distance Learning.

• Greater understanding by all schools
of planning a multi-disciplinary
approach in KS3 and deploying staff
to work collaboratively to plan and
deliver.

• Greater degree of consistency in
adopted approaches across schools
and within LAs.

• Good practice shared through the
’10 Ways’ document and the wider
June teaching and learning guidance.

• 12 sessions + SIA regular 

meetings an contact with 

Head teachers and SMT- 325 

hours

• 200 (Head teachers, SLT, Core 

Subject forums and teachers 

who attended webinars)

• Additional bespoke support 

also delivered to individual 

schools as needed.

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 99



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Professional learning on Blended Learning for

Head teachers and SLT Learning Leads

• To develop an understanding of blended

learning in order to prepare schools for

providing effective provision for pupils To give an

overview of the blended learning guidance

developed by the GwE team

• Focus on the key tasks for school leaders to 
undertake before the end of the summer term

• Raise awareness of considerations that could 
impact any planning for the autumn term

• Focus on specific blended learning models 
including subject exemplars and KS3 multi-
disciplinary models ( Learning Together )

• Support HTs and learning leads in using 
technology to deliver blended learning and 
maximise pupil engagement

• Enable schools to share ideas and good practice
• Use SIA links to provide bespoke support to 

schools

• High quality professional learning opportunities provided 
to schools including bespoke guidance as and when 
required

• HTs and SLT leads more effectively equipped to support 
their staff teams in planning and delivering blended 
learning

• Greater awareness and understanding of blended 
learning, the various models and how to plan for them

• Consistency in support, messaging and guidance to 
schools achieved

• Schools across the region responded well to the quality 
and usefulness of the GwE guidance and developed their 
strategies based on it

• Guidance informed schools’ decisions on professional 
learning requirements for the autumn term. Teaching and 
learning leads empowered to deliver inset on blended 
learning in their own schools.

• Teaching and learning groups provided opportunities for 
collaboration and the sharing of good practice

• Blended learning forms part of schools contingency 
planning for the autumn term

• 12 HT meetings and 

18 teaching and 

learning group 

meetings

• 54 HTs and 62 

teaching and learning 

leads

• 65 hours

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 100



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Professional learning on Blended Learning delivered

through secondary forums, teaching and learning

groups and middle leader core subject networks.

• Sharing GwE blended learning guidance including a 
summary of international research around effective 
models and the latest guidance on effective 
teaching and learning

• Guidance on effective planning for blended learning
• Use of digital tools to support blended learning
• Sharing of subject specific exemplar materials for 

English, Welsh, Literature, science, maths and 
history to provide practical examples of the above

• Senior and middle leaders in schools better 
able to plan for the opportunities and 
challenges of blended learning. Guidance 
very positively received.

• Teachers supported at a practical level to 
plan and deliver blended learning. This has 
been used by schools and adapted to 
context.

• Schools able to build on the experience of 
distance learning in areas such as the use of 
digital tools

• Blended learning guidance used by schools 
to model effective teaching and learning

• Consistency in messaging, guidance and 
support for schools across the region 
achieved

• 46 sessions

• 350 hours

• 236 ( 54 HTs, 62 teaching 

and learning leads, 120 core 

subject middle leaders )

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 101



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Blended Learning secondary working group
• A central theme of the sessions was the researching and writing of the guidance to 

schools for the ‘check in, catch up and prepare’ period which started on 29 June. 
This was shared with schools on 16 June as the secondary teaching and learning 
section of the Dashboard

• The 29 June guidance included key principles to guide learning in this period, 
supporting health and wellbeing, blending in-school and distance learning, the 
implications for curriculum, timetable and classroom practice and guidance on 
learning fitness

• The 29 June guidance also signposted other materials developed and included on 
the Dashboard. These materials were on feedback and assessment, models of 
blended learning, 10 ways to develop distance learning, health and wellbeing, 
transition and the recovery curriculum

• A second central theme of the sessions was the researching and writing of the GwE 
blended learning guidance to support schools with their planning and preparations 
for September. This was shared with schools on 30 June. An updated version was 
shared on 6 July

• The blended learning guidance included definitions of the key terms, common 
principles, key summer term tasks, whole school planning for blended learning, 
models of blended learning, subject planning, exemplar materials for six subjects 
and a review of the digital tools available to support the delivery of blended 
learning.

• The guidance was shared and explained in detail to HTs , teaching and learning 
leads and core subject leaders across the region by GwE core and core subject leads

• Support materials shared with schools also included webinars in English and Welsh 
to further explain the guidance

• Led by MH, GwE  collaborated with the other regional consortia and Estyn to devise 
a national blended learning guidance document

 Dashboard approach provided schools with a one 

stop shop for the full range of guidance on 

reopening.

 Schools were given ready access to the latest 

research and support materials in the key health and 

wellbeing and learning fitness aspects of provision 

and were better able to support pupils as they 

returned

 The guidance supported schools in planning their 

curriculum and in ensuring effective classroom 

practice in the context of social distancing

 Collaboration between and within schools was 

improved by providing a common framework and 

definitions as the basis of planning. Good practice 

was developed and shared at the various forums.

 The key considerations approach supported effective 

whole school and departmental planning for blended 

learning and provided access to the latest research

 The practical, exemplar subject materials in English, 

Welsh, literature, science, maths and history were 

used to plan autumn term provision. The format was 

accessible and could be used by all subject teams

 The guidance was recognised to include best 

teaching and learning practice and is being used on 

an ongoing basis to inform professional learning in 

schools

• 18 sessions

• 36 hours plus 

preparation time

• 6 SIAs

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 102



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Upskilling GwE SIAs to support with KS3

Learning Together Materials

• PL of team creating materials - research 
undertaken into effective distance and 
then blended learning models 

• Presentation to Secondary SIA’s on the 
journey taken and the principles behind 
the creation of the first ‘Learning Together’ 
unit

• 2 x updates for Core Leads on the 
developments of the ‘Learning Together’ 
materials

• Provide SIA’s with information about the 
‘Learning Together’ materials in order to 
support schools effectively and consistently

• Provide Core Leads with up to date 
information on the materials in order to be 
relayed to all Head Teachers across the 
region

• 3 sessions

• 25 attendees

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 103



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
KS3 Learning Together Materials

• PL of team creating materials - research 
undertaken into effective distance and 
then blended learning models) 

• Initial Power Point presentation prepared 
for Core Leads to present ‘Learning 
Together’ materials to Head Teachers 
across all counties

• Further discussions and more in-depth 
presentations to Head Teachers on how 
‘Learning Together’ materials support 
distance/blended learning at KS3 

• Detailed presentation on the ‘Learning 
Together’ materials to Teaching & Learning 
Leads 

• Meetings with subject leads to discuss 
possible use for materials

• Follow on meetings and discussions with 
individual schools to discuss 
implementation of the ‘Learning Together’ 
materials

• Consistent guidance and support to schools 
across all counties

• Raise awareness and understanding of 
schools to the exemplar integrated learning 
units to support blended learning at KS3

• High quality professional learning 
opportunities delivered to individual 
schools 

• Meetings of Teaching and Learning Leads 
provided opportunity for collaboration and 
sharing of good practice

• Empowered Teaching and Learning leads to 
lead and support staff in their schools 

• A few schools make use of an exemplar unit 
as a basis for providing learning experiences 
during pre 29th June phase

• Some schools make use of exemplar units 
as a basis for learning experiences during 
post 29th June phase

• 22 sessions plus individual school 

support

• 500 hours creating materials

• 105 hours delivery

• 108 attendees

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 104



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
English subject network for Heads of

English and English Teachers

• Principles of effective distance 
learning methods shared and 
discussed

• Practical training on the use of various 
digital tools to improve engagement 
and quality of learning

• Principles of effective blended 
learning model shared and each 
aspect explored in detail

• Research around retrieval practice and 
connecting learning shared 

• Curriculum planning and the 
importance of mapping knowledge as 
well as skills in English

• Exemplar curriculum planning 
documentation shared and strengths 
discussed 

• Improvement in skills and expertise of 
teachers when using digital tools 
available on Hwb

• Improved provision for learners 
• Increased understanding of the 

features of effective blended learning 
and practical strategies 

• Greater understanding of the 
importance of curriculum planning and 
the impact this has on classroom 
teachers

• Greater understanding of the need to 
plan knowledge to be taught, as well as 
skills, in order to improve performance 
in English

• 18 session (3 per LA)

• 28 hours

• 110 attendees

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 105



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Global Futures network and support

through Google Classroom

• Research useful and effective digital 
tools or websites to facilitate remote 
language learning.

• Compile and share resources easy to 
use for remote learning (digital or 
not).

• Watch and share the most useful 
webinars on digital tools and 
pedagogical advice for remote 
learning.

• All secondary and pilot primary 
schools were contacted via email to 
inform about any developments and 
to offer support if needed. 

• Primary teachers felt supported and 
were, as a result, able to set 
appropriate and quality work.

• Secondary teachers who needed 
support could rely on the network and 
access upskilling training as and when 
they felt it necessary.

• Good practice modelled and shared.

• 70 hours

• Available to all Modern Foreign 

Language Heads of Department 

and teachers

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 106



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Post 16 networks
Network forums have focussed on:
• Supporting schools in putting in place effective 

strategies for transition into Year 12 in a distance 
learning environment

• Supporting schools in  preparing Year 13 for transition to 
university

• Sharing materials and effective booklets to support Year 
11 transition

• Sharing ideas around effective distance learning work 
with Year 12

• Disseminating and looking at implications of national 
• ‘How to approach’ results’ days.  Sharing ideas and 

approaches

A session for schools in the VESPA project – led by the 
VESPA team.  Reviewing progress so far and planning 
interventions for next year – 10 schools attended)

Discrete session for national post-16 leadership delegates –
‘catch up’ session - held on a cross-consortia basis.  Topic –
impact of pandemic on practice in schools post-16.

• Feedback on transition material has 
been very good.  Schools have used 
them with Year 11 students and also 
used them to augment existing 
provision in some cases (response 
across Wales has been good)

• Colleagues have commented on how 
helpful they have found heads of 6 
network meetings –particularly at this 
time

• VESPA review – all schools have found 
the programme useful and plan to 
implement it further next year 

• 8 sessions

• 10 hours

• 40+ attendees

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 107



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Curriculum for Wales

• Provided access to CFW national
resources as requested and
approached by schools.

• Shared overview of regional
workshops previously delivered
prior to lockdown through G6
resource base to include summary
of CFW principles, information on
the structure of the new curriculum,
Professional Learning and support
available from GwE.

• Those individuals who wanted to 
access resources were able to do this 
at their discretion to engage in 
further reading, develop a deeper 
understanding of the CFW principles 
and in particular familiarise with 
Health and Wellbeing AoLE

• GwE able to provide equity of access 
to resources and consistent 
messaging 

• In line with regional and 

national agreement, no formal 

sessions offered however SIAs 

able to respond to sharing 

information as requested from 

schools/clusters during regular 

link sessions

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 108



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Guidance on assessment and feedback

• Develop and share guidance and

principles based on current.

Research.

• Upskill staff on use so that they can

effectively support schools.

• All SIAs have resources and relevant
information to effectively support
schools

• Clear guidance and consistency of
message and support offered to all
schools across the region.

• Guidance shared will all consortia
across Wales.

Full GwE team meeting attended 

by all SIAs.

SIAs in regular contact to offer 

advice to all 413 schools and 

clusters

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 109



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Accelerated skills workshops to develop

guidance for schools

The identification of effective teaching strategies 
is an important feature of schools’ blended 
learning plans. However, during the period of 
school closure, it is likely that many learners will 
require additional support—in the form of high 
quality, structured, targeted interventions—to 
accelerate their learning. 
Through a review of the available research 
literature, together with research undertaken 
with GwE schools, this guide aims to help schools 
identify the most effective teaching strategies and 
online programmes that could help schools 
improve the following core skills:
• Basic reading and reading fluency
• Reading comprehension and vocabulary skills
• Basic numeracy and numeracy fluency skills
Some of the strategies and support materials in

this guidance have been specifically designed to

be used in school and by parents at home to

support their child’s learning.

• GwE officers gained an understanding of
best practice in planning for teaching
discrete skills in a blended learning
context, and were able to augment and
improve existing blended learning models
for schools.

• GwE officers benefited from several
meetings with research students to learn
how to undertake a rapid review of the
evidence base for literacy, numeracy and
well-being programmes.

• GwE staff learned about key aspects of
effective instruction, and worked with
external authors to design bespoke Welsh
medium materials

• GwE staff learned about key aspects of
effective instruction as well as precision
teaching and direct instruction strategies

• GwE staff learned about key aspects of
effective instruction for synchronous and
asynchronous provision.

• 5 GwE officers
4 Bangor University research staff
2 Bangor University research 
students
1 Denbighshire teacher

• 15 sessions
• 30 hours
• Many of the resources and 

strategies in this proposal stem from 
recent collaborative research 
projects undertaken by CIEREI, 
Bangor University, with GwE 
schools.

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 110



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees
Accelerated skills workshops for all primary, special and

secondary schools

The main features of the new Accelerated Learning
resources  to be shared through workshops are:
• Worked examples of effective literacy and numeracy 

teaching strategies using the EEF planning framework 
(from Foundation Phase to key stage 2)

• A systematic search of the evidence for commonly 
used targeted approaches for improving literacy skills

• A systematic search of the evidence for commonly 
used targeted approaches for improving numeracy 
skills

• A systematic search of the evidence for commonly 
used targeted approaches for improving behaviour 
and well-being

• An evidence review for online teaching programmes
• Projects to help schools and parents/carers rebuild 

pupils’ literacy and numeracy skills in English and 
Welsh from Foundation Phase to key stage 3.

• School leaders and teachers will gain an
understanding of best practice in planning
for teaching discrete skills in a blended
learning context, and were able to
augment and improve existing blended
learning models for schools

• School leaders will gain an understanding
of the key features of effective literacy,
numeracy and well-being programmes, and
the primary and secondary inclusion
criteria that should be used to judge
whether to adopt a particular programme

• Schools will have access to a suite of school
and parental teaching materials that will be
available in both languages by September
2020.

• Parents engaging and supporting their
learners to improve basic skills.

• Up to 55 cluster training 
events and termly LA 
implementation support 
sessions thereafter

• All GwE clusters invited
• Parental support materials 

also available
• Time allocated TBC

Teaching and Learning Home

P
age 111



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Return to School Trauma Informed Schools PL

A whole School approach session facilitated by Dr 

Coral Harper, Trauma Informed Schools on strategies 

to consider when learners return to schools in 

relation to impact of pandemic & school ethos / key 

principles and models within teaching and learning. 

Session funded by Local Authority targeting all 

schools across the authority, but with focus on 

schools/settings who have already done the 1 day 

professional learning via GwE and the LAC PDG 

funds. Also targeted settings with high numbers of 

learners who are looked after. LA - Gwynedd / 

Anglesey/Denbighshire and Conwy had the 3 hour 

session via ZOOM. GwE SIA’s also had the 

opportunity to attend and the regional PRU/LACE 

group.

• Stronger communication strategies in place 
to inform LACE coordinators, LA staff /  
school staff and wider stakeholders of the 
processes for accessing funding that is linked 
to evidence based research and practises.

• Increase in the number of schools /settings 
who are trauma informed/ACE aware. This 
will impact on teaching staff being more 
confident in dealing with learners and 
identifying suitable support and provision 
and more schools who have an inclusive 
approach in relation to the teaching and 
learning with focus on the blended learning.  

• More settings confident in using a range of 
Impact and evaluation measures in regards 
to vulnerable learners.

• 1308 attendees

• 12 hour delivery for 

Trauma Informed Schools

• Support for individual 

organisations (6 hours)

Wellbeing Home

P
age 112



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Regional LACE PDG Group

The group had fortnightly meetings with focus 

on sharing key approaches / research for 

supporting children who are looked after 

across the schools of the region. Information 

available on each LA’s shared drive and on the 

Regional Dashboard. In 1 of the meetings, PL 

was delivered by Fostering Network on the 

wellbeing masterclasses. In addition a session 

on the effective use of the LAC PDG was 

delivered to the team to share key 

information on PDG for 2020/21 across the 

schools and LA. 

• Consistency in key approaches 

/ research for supporting 

children who are looked after 

across the region.

• Raised awareness of issues 

regarding wellbeing.

• Sharing of good practice / 

masterclasses.

• 18 attendees

• 12 hours

Wellbeing Home

P
age 113



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Regional ALN/Inclusion Team 

The group is facilitated by the LA and meet

fortnightly, the focus of the collaboration with 

GwE was to identify the key challenges in 

regards to return to school and impact on key 

groups of learners. A range of key documents 

have been developed in addition to some 

information sessions on the regional 

dashboard / update on the GwE distance 

learning and blended learning models and a 

session on the PDG for LAC for 2020/21. 

• Consistence of messaging and 

support to schools.

• Raised awareness of issues 

and shared good practice

• 6 attendees

• 6 hours

Wellbeing Home

P
age 114



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

LAC PDG 

Sharing of information delivery session on the 

universal and targeted support with PDG FSM 

and PDG for LAC

• Consistency in support for 

schools and raised awareness 

of issues and shared good 

practice.

• 18 attendees

• 6 hours

Wellbeing Home

P
age 115



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Universal Wellbeing & Learner Support 

dashboard 

A range of guidance / professional learning 

directory has been developed and shared 

with all schools / settings across the region. 

This was communicated via the cluster 

approach and core leads meetings with LA. A 

clear overview was produced for Core Leads / 

SIA’s in regards to this element on the 

dashboard. This information will be captured 

by Core Leads time. 

• Clear guidance shared with

school.

• Consistent approach to ensure 
SIA’s are aware of the key 
strategies to support schools 
in regards to wellbeing models 
and learning offer.

• Effective co-ordination and 
collaboration with LA key staff 
in regards to developing the 
Learner Support and 
Wellbeing dashboard for 
schools. 

• Information captured within 

SIA work programme.

• Guidance shared with all 53 

primary clusters and 

secondary head teacher 

forums.

• Bespoke support provided to 

individual school through SIAs.

• Approach communicated with 

LA through weekly local 

quality boards.

Wellbeing Home

P
age 116



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Learner Engagement (Key Themes)

7 key themed digital sessions (webinars / 

screencastify) have been produced for schools 

and settings across the region in regards to 

sharing effective practise on learner’s 

engagement in regards to the distance 

learning and approaches taken by schools 

during school lockdown. 6 can be accessed 

through our Wellbeing Section and available 

to all settings and key partners

• Sharing of effective practice 

on learner’s engagement in 

regards to the distance 

learning and approaches taken 

by schools during lockdown.

• Increase in learner 

engagement following initial 

period of lockdown.

• 50 hours for overall 

production.

• Available to all staff across 413 

schools and key partners.

• Regular SIA contact will all 

schools/cluster with focus on 

improving learner engagement 

and sharing good practice.

HomeWellbeing

P
age 117



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Engagement with Learners and Parents

• Work collaboratively with schools to 
complete a series of questions in regards to 
engagement of learners.

• Develop a regional overview of current 
practice in regards to how learners are 
accessing distance learning and engaging.

• Identify effective practice to inform and 
support regional guidance and models going 
forward

• Identify key barriers and how to support 
schools in collaboration with Local Authority 
and partners

• This work has resulted in a valuable 
overview of the regional picture of 
how schools are engaging with 
learners. 

• The report fed into a national report 
which has been used to share the 
best practice nationally.

• The content of the report has been 
used to build on the effective and 
successful practice identified from 
across the region and also to 
develop and provide support to 
schools regarding key areas that 
need strengthening.

• A bank of webinars showcasing the 
best practice is to be made available 
to schools.

• Sessions with whole GwE 
team x3

• All SIAs held discussions with 
cluster x 53 involving all 413 
schools

• One SIA collated each LA’s 
information x 6

• Sessions with team who 
pulled the work together x 3

• 60 hours

HomeWellbeing

P
age 118



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Bespoke School / Cluster Support 

Individual support has been delivered to 

specific schools as required in regards to 

whole school wellbeing strategies /wellbeing 

measures such as PASS / Boxall /individual 

guidance on good practise models and 

effective use of the PDG to support children 

who are looked after with the LAC PDG.

• Raised awareness of whole 

school wellbeing strategies 

/wellbeing measures such as 

PASS / Boxall.

• Sharing of individual guidance 

on good practice and effective 

use of PDG / LAC PDG.

• Strengthened  cluster 

collaboration in regard to the 

LAC PDG.

• 14 sessions

• 26 attendees

• 18 hours

HomeWellbeing

P
age 119



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Primary Core Lead Meetings have been held regularly 

to agree upon the professional learning focus for local 

area meetings. The objective was to ensure SIA 

capabilities, knowledge and skills were promptly 

updated and enhanced in order to deliver what schools 

required.   

Professional learning for SIAs has included:

 How to develop a cluster approach to professional 

learning for schools

 How to develop distance learning across clusters 

and in schools

 How to support and develop the return to school, 

including risk assessments

 How to develop blended learning across clusters

 Individual SIAs have been further supported by Core 

Lead and by SIAs who have identified areas of 

expertise.

• Team members were effectively upskilled with 
knowledge and skills to support schools e.g. IT skills.  
SIAs were also equipped with consistent answers and 
responses to questions raised by schools. 

• SIAs had a shared understanding of WG strategies and 
National guidance. As a result, consistent messaging, 
guidance and support to schools was pertinent to 
schools across the region.  

• High quality professional learning opportunities were 
provided to all schools (including bespoke guidance 
when and where required).

• Greater consistency in adopted approaches within 
local authorities and across the region. . 

• Improved collaborative working in Local Area Primary 
Team Meetings, including sharing of identified SIA 
expertise.  

• Improved consistency and collaboration across the full 
primary team.  

• SIAs encouraged resilience in schools, facilitating 
schools to plan for more than one scenario in order to 
be better prepared.

• 1 Full Primary Team 
Meeting 

• 12 Local Area Primary 
Team Meetings held 
in each area  (36 
meetings in total). 

• 39 hours
• 35 SIAs attended

Leadership Home

P
age 120



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Briefing sessions to upskill head teachers on various 
aspects of support available to school during pandemic 
including:

• Distance Learning - Sharing of information, delivery 
processes and resources. Bespoke sessions with some 
clusters.

• Blended Learning - Sharing of information, processes 
models and exemplar materials. Bespoke and 
individualised sessions with some clusters.

• Continuity of learning - Sharing of key guidance 
documents and approaches for supporting schools with 
planning provision and for the re-opening of schools.

• Sharing of research findings and good practice models.
• Sharing of information to ensure consistent approach for 

supporting schools across the region.
• Risk assessment - Identification of key challenges and 

approaches/models for mitigating risks to schools.
• Digital Learning – sharing of digital tools and training on 

the effective use of the tools to support distant and 
blended learning

• All head teachers informed and updated on the 
support available to schools.

• Consistency in messaging across the region, 
guidance and support to schools.

• Head teachers aware and informed on the 
professional learning opportunities available to 
schools [including bespoke guidance when and 
where required].

• Improved use of digital tools to engage with pupils 
and their learning.

• 60 sessions across the 
6 LAs

• 119 hours
• Primary head 

teachers and cluster 
chairs

Leadership Home

P
age 121



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

PL for GwE team to support schools with re-opening of 

schools including:

Guidance on regional framework/dashboard jointly 

developed by LA and GwE Officers to support schools with 

planning for reopening schools including:

• Health and safety requirements
• Site and facilities arrangements
• Transport 
• Staffing arrangements
• Blended teaching and learning
• Inclusion and pupil support 
• Key management tasks

PL offered to all GwE staff so that they are upskilled to 
provide school/cluster training and clusters and follow up 
bespoke support.

• Regional approach in place for developing a 
supportive framework to ensure that all 
regional schools had the right policies in 
place together with a comprehensive risk 
assessment in order to create a safe 
environment to reopen schools

• Effective collegiate and collective regional 
approach between the six local authorities 
and GwE to support schools during the 
pandemic lockdown

• All GwE staff upskilled and confident to 
provide training and bespoke support for 
schools/clusters

• 12 sessions

• 6hours

• 60 attendees

• SIAs upskilled to 

support all schools 

and clusters in 

bespoke sessions.

Leadership Home

P
age 122



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

PL for re-opening of schools including:

Joint guidance and support provided by LA and GwE Officers 
through regional framework/dashboard to support schools 
with planning for reopening schools including:

• Health and safety requirements
• Site and facilities arrangements
• Transport 
• Staffing arrangements
• Blended teaching and learning
• Inclusion and pupil support 
• Key management tasks

This included a comprehensive modelled risk assessment in 
order to create a safe environment to welcome the children 
back into schools.

Formal training sessions/workshops and bespoke support 
offered to all regional schools/clusters.

• Regional approach in place for developing a 
supportive framework to ensure that all 
regional schools had the right policies in 
place together with a comprehensive risk 
assessment in order to create a safe 
environment to welcome learners back into 
schools 

• Effective collegiate and collective regional 
approach between the six local authorities 
and GwE to support schools during the 
pandemic lockdown

• Head teachers’ response has been positive 
with  appreciation of the support and 
guidance available

• Head teachers, Core Leads and LA 
representatives shared views and concerns, 
learning from best practice

• All 413 regional 

secondary, primary,

special school and 

PRU Heads

• Secondary 30 

sessions

• 53 Primary Clusters 

delivered jointly with 

LA Officers x 2 

meetings

• 272 hours

• Follow up bespoke 

support by SIAs/LA 

Officers to individual 

schools and clusters

Leadership Home

P
age 123



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Up-skilling of Local Authority Education members on 

various aspects related to effective support provided to 

schools/clusters:

• Distance Learning - Sharing of information, delivery 
processes and resources.

• Blended Learning - Sharing of information, processes 
models and exemplar materials.

• Continuity of learning - Sharing of key guidance 
documents and approaches for supporting schools with 
planning provision and for the re-opening of schools.

• Sharing of research findings and good practice models.
• Sharing of information to ensure consistent approach 

for supporting schools across the region.
• Risk assessment - Identification of key challenges and 

approaches/models for mitigating risks to schools.

• Local authority members informed and 
updated on the support for schools.

• Consistency in messaging across the 
region, guidance and support to schools.

• Local authority members informed on 
the professional learning opportunities 
delivered to schools [including bespoke 
guidance when and where required].

• 35 sessions across 

the 6 LAs

• 52 hours

• 210+ attendees (6 

per session with 

some additional 

members 

depending on 

agenda)

Leadership Home

P
age 124



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Professional learning platform developed and 

shared with schools. Google Classroom 

containing several PL activities for the 

following aspects:

• EWC Professional Passport

• Learning Pathway for Teaching Assistants

• HLTA

• Essential Skills

• Professional Standards

• Curriculum for Wales

• Schools as Learning Organisations

• Hwb

• Teaching and Learning

• ALN

• Autistic Spectrum Disorders

• Children’s rights

• Safeguarding

• Inspirational speakers

• Information sources

• Over 1,700 TAs accessing

professional learning activities

during the COVID-19 period

• Positive feedback and

evaluations from regional TAs

• Many TAs have taken

advantage of the lockdown

period to update certificates,

e.g. food hygiene

• Many TAs have indicated an

increased knowledge,

understanding and skill set to

help them in their daily work

in supporting learners

• Many indicated an increase in

their digital skills and

application

• Increased interest in HLTA

development programme

Over 1,700 teaching assistants 

have joined the classroom and 

undertaken professional learning 

activities

Teaching Assistants Home

P
age 125



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Prepare and develop national programme to 

support prospective HLTAs

Series of national meetings/workshops for 

whole group and sub-groups for programme  

design and development.

• Programme delivery materials

available for consortium to use

regionally (power points /

training materials) available

and ready.

• Candidate handbook,

Assessors Handbook and

Facilitator Handbook either

completed or being produced.

• Assessment process and

criteria under development

• 171 hours (meeting and 

preparation/development of 

national materials)

Teaching Assistants Home

P
age 126



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Support for Foundation Phase practitioners, 
Senior Leadership Teams and Supporting 
Improvement Advisers with planning and 
preparing instructions/resources to promote the 
use of Welsh with pupils from non-Welsh 
speaking/second language homes with regard to 
distance learning and blended learning. 

• Raised awareness among teachers, SLT and SIAs of the  
FP Welsh medium resources available on ‘Google 
classroom’ to support learning.  FP teachers use them 
when searching for resources and ideas as part of their 
planning for distance learning.  

• Teachers plan and prepare step by step, bilingual 
instructions with voice overs so that pupils hear the 
Welsh language, listen and follow instructions. 

• 11 sessions

• 13 hours

• 140 attendees

Welsh language Home

P
age 127



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Support for Key Stage 2 practitioners, Senior 
Leadership Teams and Supporting Improvement 
Advisers with planning and preparing 
instructions/resources to promote the use of 
Welsh with pupils from non-Welsh 
speaking/second language homes with regard to 
distance learning and blended learning. 

• 10 resources to fire the imagination and five different 
activities within each resource that support KS 2 and 3 
Welsh first language learners’ literacy skills. Available for 
all Welsh medium schools. 

• Guidance available for parents to support their children.
• Modelling effective ways of presenting tasks to learners. 

Talking frames available for schools to promote Welsh 
oracy skills.

• Resources and 

guidance shared 

with all Welsh-

medium schools 

in the region

Welsh language Home

P
age 128



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Preparation of ‘Google Classroom’ distance 
learning materials for KS3 and KS4.

GwE teachers were informed of the resource via 
direct emails to schools,  the GwE Bulletin and 
GwE’s Welsh Language Newsletter. Teachers 
were regularly updated by email about the 
content of the classroom and guidance on the 
resources was given in network meetings. 

• Ensuring teachers have access to the best resources for 
promoting distance learning and blended learning in their 
departments

• Ensuring opportunities for pupils to hear and see Welsh 
and to speak Welsh

• Modelling good practice, in respect of distance learning 
and blended learning, to head teachers, heads of 
department and teachers

• Sharing digital copies of reading texts, with publishers’ 
permission, in order to give learners opportunities   to 
read in Welsh.

• Digital guidance and training for teachers on how to use 
Hwb software, such as Google Classroom, Screencastify, 
Adobe Spark, Flipgrid and webinars for their professional 
development.

• 134 members in 

the KS3 class

• 116 members in 

the KS4 class

Welsh language Home

P
age 129



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Meetings of the Welsh Language Network to present the KS3 
and KS4 Blended Learning Models ‘Ein Byd’ (‘Our World’). 

• Professional learning sessions were held in digital network 
meetings for heads of Welsh language departments via 
Teams. In the meetings, attention was given to the different 
platforms available for Welsh language teachers to access 
materials that have been modified for distance learning and 
blended learning:
 The two Google Classrooms
 The ‘GwE Welsh Language’ network in Hwb
 ‘Y Pair’ in Hwb.

• Time was also allocated at the meeting to explain the 
Blended Learning Model created on the ‘Our World’ topic 
for Y.5-9 learners, for Y.9 learners transferring to Y.10 and for 
Y.10 learners. The main principles and research behind 
these models were explained and the research was shared 
with the middle leaders. The model was also presented and 
its versatility explained – it could be used as a complete 
work scheme from September onwards (with sufficient 
tasks for half a term) or the tasks could be used individually.

• The materials give middle leaders guidance 
on the best practice for distance learning/ 
blended learning by using primary and 
secondary sources (see below)

• Middle leaders will be more confident 
returning to their departments to lead on 
effective blended learning 

• The Models are ready to go and accessible 
and can be used with learners from 
September onwards. Everyone appreciated 
this – it offered a clear model in a period of 
uncertainty. 

• 3 sessions

• 3 hours

• 26 attendees

Welsh language Home

P
age 130



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Y GIST – Secondary Teachers’ Welsh as a Second 
Language Network  on HWB

The following were provided:
• Useful advice and guidance
• Digital Help and Guidance 
• Blended Learning Models:
• Various challenges
• Writing forms
• Language resources
• Literature resources
• Skills development/language patterns/opinion
• Newsletters
• KS4 Work Packs
• Google Classroom materials for KS3 and 4

• Resources and guidance provided for heads of department
and practitioners.

• Improved teachers’ confidence to share good practice, show 
curiosity, engage interest and broaden horizons by  
suggesting alternative / cross-curricular topics to promote 
and learn Welsh. 

• Guidance and 

resources shared 

with  all secondary 

schools that 

provide Welsh 

Second Language

Welsh language Home

P
age 131



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Welsh Language Advisers’ Improvement Support 
Network (secondary) – the four consortia’s 
response to Welsh Government’s D9 objective. 

The purpose of the collaboration was to create and 
share appropriate distance learning resources in 
Welsh to be shared with teachers of Welsh-
medium and bilingual schools. Another purpose 
was to ensure accessibility to those materials for 
non-Welsh speaking parents supporting their 
children at home – this was done by providing a 
bilingual explanation of the tasks and/or 
translating the resource as required. 
Representatives from Estyn, WJEC, Welsh 
Government, Yr Academi and leaders of the Welsh 
Language Plan were also involved  and were very 
supportive of the work done. 

From the start, it was decided to invite teachers (4 
from GwE) to be part of the national collaboration 
and they were split into two groups – KS3 
Resource Team and KS4 Resource Team. 

• Effective collaboration at national level to 
support  and develop middle leaders and 
teachers to share good practice when promoting 
Welsh in their schools – among learners and 
non-Welsh speaking  parents

• It was a valuable professional development for 
the teachers involved in the working groups as 
they had the opportunity to share their distance 
learning experiences and share successful 
materials with each other

• The principles of distance learning and blended 
learning were explored in the working groups 
and formed the basis of the models for Welsh 
produced by GwE’s Welsh language advisers

• Emphasis was placed on listening, watching and 
discussing in Welsh as there was grave concern 
that there were no opportunities for Welsh 
learners to hear and speak Welsh because of 
school closures

• It was decided to start a new national network 
on Hwb so that Welsh teachers can easily share 
their distance and blended learning materials

• 40 sessions

• 45 hours

• 29 attendees

Welsh language Home

P
age 132



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Y Pair – a national network within Hwb to share 
Welsh language distance learning / blended 
learning materials 

Establishing ‘Y Pair’ during lockdown, attention 
was given to teaching methods that work best in 
distance learning. We also looked at the findings 
of the international report on distance learning 
and the findings of the Parentkind report. The 
messages and principles of this research underpin 
all the resources in ‘Y Pair’.  

• Distance learning research shared with Welsh 
language teachers via emails, two Google 
classrooms and in Welsh language network 
meetings. 

• Upskilling middle leaders on distance learning 
requirements and best practice. This set a 
direction for their work in their departments 
so that they could identify issues to be 
developed e.g. using Flipgrid, recording 
lessons using Screencastify.

• Emphasis on watching, listening and 
discussion tasks and resources with teacher’s 
recorded voice (e.g. a video on to explain a 
task, reading text/story).

• 168 members

• Around half of GwE’s 

Welsh departments 

have shared their most 

successful distance 

learning materials.

Welsh language Home

P
age 133



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

GwE Welsh Language Newsletters
It was decided to collate the Welsh language materials relevant 
to the distance learning and blended learning period. The 
newsletters were bilingual. They were shared via bilingual emails 
to secondary head teachers  and also via  direct emails to heads 
of Welsh language departments in GwE schools. The newsletters 
were also shared in the two Google classrooms and in GwE 
bulletins. They were also shared trans-regionally with Welsh 
language advisers in the other consortia to support their work. 

The newsletters had specific themes that were decided as a 
result of listening to teachers’ voice e.g. Distance learning, 
Reading, Digital, National Welsh Language Resources on Hwb. 
They offered professional learning for teachers using them, as 
they explain best practice in relation to distance learning / 
blended learning  and enrich their ideas by setting contemporary 
and relevant work for learners. The digital newsletter was also a 
way of offering teachers opportunities to improve their digital 
skills and to improve their engagement with learners  e.g, by 
recording videos on Screencastify or by using Adobe Spark. 

• Distance learning research shared with 
Welsh language teachers via emails, 
two Google classrooms and in Welsh 
language network meetings. 

• Upskilling middle leaders on distance 
learning requirements and best 
practice. This set a direction for their 
work in their departments so that they 
could identify issues to be developed 
e.g. using Flipgrid, recording lessons 
using Screencastify.

• Emphasis on watching, listening and 
discussion tasks and resources with 
teacher’s recorded voice (e.g. a video 
on to explain a task, reading 
text/story).

• 14

• 14 hours

• 6 SIAs

• Newsletter shared 

with 413 GwE 

schools and 53 

Welsh language 

leaders in each 

cluster

Welsh language Home

P
age 134



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

CA2 and CA3 Transition

Introduction of a Journal model that could facilitate KS2/3 
transition and a model that could be adapted and tailored for 
KS3 including reading and writing tasks to adapt to learners' 
needs. It includes long-term activities that can be developed in a 
blended approach covering distance learning and face-to-face 
learning. A pack was presented before the two sessions which 
highlighted the principles / guidance for teachers/pupils and 
exemplar tasks. The pack is available in English for non-Welsh 
speaking parents.
Discussions were held on the following: 
• How the model promotes Well-being, Pedagogy, Blended 

Learning and CfW. 
• How the mode offers opportunities to nurture and stimulate 

writers, stretching more able and talented pupils and 
supporting the more vulnerable pupils

• A model o good practice for transition 
shared with schools. 

• Clear guidance shared on how to 
adapt the model so that schools can  
take ownership of the resource and 
develop further examples.

• The model has been piloted and 
evaluated.

• 2 sessions

• 2 hours

• 20 attendees

Welsh language Home

P
age 135



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

The Gwefeillio scheme

A scheme to support speaking Welsh through live 
streaming sessions

Presentations were given on:
• background/ aims of the scheme 
• safeguarding guidance and arrangements /
• examples of models/pilot schemes  
• support pack/ 
• guide for parents.
A question and answer session was held by the 
Language Charter Coordinator following piloting 
and modelling of the scheme in Gwynedd.

It is intended to present the scheme to schools in 
the autumn term.

Ensure an understanding of the scheme’s 
essentials and how it could: 
• offer rich provision for pupils from non-Welsh 

speaking homes as they practice their oral 
skills and close the deprivation gap in terms 
of linguistic opportunities

• ensure pioneering opportunities for digital 
interaction 

• promote late immersion
• promote the Language Charter
• provide opportunities for pupils to talk to 

other pupils in new communities - transition 
key stages / within a school, cluster and 
across county and regional

• influence the use of language and establish 
the ‘habit' of speaking Welsh

• 30 representatives of 

the national D9 Group

To be developed further 

with the region’s schools

Welsh language Home

P
age 136



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

ITE
• Professional learning for SIAs – sharing of 

next steps in ITE and future collaborative 
work in FTM 28/04/20. Individual queries 
and support provided following this

• Professional learning offers made to 
CaBan programmes by GwE staff for 2020-
21 and planning materials – 23 GwE staff

• Professional learning planning meetings 
for joint Doc Ed and Masters

• Team members more 
effectively equipped to 
support schools in their ITE 
needs.

• Consistency in messaging, 
guidance and support to 
schools.

• Professional Ed Doc and 
Masters programmes for 
school, GwE and LA staff, 
including improved closer to 
practice research 

Full Team Meeting

All SIAs

Early Professional Learning Pathways Home

P
age 137



Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

 During lockdown, meetings were attended for both OU and CaBan where 

professional learning for schools (including student teachers and mentors) 

was planned for 2020-21

 Professional learning for SIAs – sharing of next steps in ITE and future 

collaborative work in FTM 

 Follow up professional learning for LA and school staff through BAS update 

26/05/20 

 Individual professional learning for schools on how OU programme will run 

and how they could get involved in the partnership, through phone calls 

 Prior to lockdown, meetings were attended for both OU and CaBan where 

professional learning was planned for schools, some of which was delivered, 

during lockdown, by the universities, for example, since lockdown, OU has 

delivered training to school staff on mentoring and tutoring, based on 

professional learning materials which were contributed to prior to lockdown

 Professional learning document produced for schools on how to develop a 

timetable for students in OU schools 

 Professional learning for graduating CaBan students on induction process 

provided by IGJ Professional learning contribution made by attendance in 

CaBan staff development days 

 Contribution to development of professional learning materials for CaBan

programmes with CaBan staff – blended learning

 Professional learning offers made to CaBan programmes by GwE staff for 

2020-21 and planning materials – 24 GwE staff 

 Professional learning planning meetings for joint Doc Ed and Masters

• Consistency in messaging, 
guidance and support to 
schools.

• Improved collaboration 
between GwE and universities

• Improved professional learning 
opportunities for students and 
mentors

• Improved university 
programmes – closer to 
practice in schools, for 
example, blended learning 

• Professional Ed Doc and 
Masters programmes for 
school, GwE and LA staff  

• Planned joint webinars for 
schools

• 1 Full Team Meeting 
6 BAS meetings
I delivery to students
6 university meetings 
12 x meetings with 
individual schools

• 10 hours

Early Professional Learning Pathways Home

P
age 138



Early Professional Learning Pathways Home

Brief Overview Initial impact Time and attendees

Support for NQTs through initial online 

training:

• Statutory Induction Arrangements for 
Newly Qualified Teachers, Induction 
Mentors and External Verifiers

• Roles and responsibilities
• Professional Standards for Teaching and 

Leadership
• The induction profile / PLEs
• Information regarding the LA / 

Authoritative Body / Consortium
• “Induction for Newly Qualified 

Teachers”- EWC presentation.

• Consistency in structure and 
support for all NQT’s in North 
Wales

• High quality experience for the 
NQT

• Fair and equitable process for all 
NQT’s

• Greater understanding of the 
NQT on-line Profile

• Greater understanding of 
logging NQT experiences (PLE’s)

• Rigorous and consistent 
assessment for all NQT’s

• Recognise the flexibility that 
exists within different patterns 
of NQT employment

• 15 sessions

• 30 hours

• 300+ attendees

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Appendix 3 
Resources available to schools as part of Accelerating Skills support materials. 
 

Resource 1: Examples of Learning Sequences  
 
The Accelerated Skills models are extended teaching sequences that aim to help teachers focus on the isolated 
literacy and numeracy skills to ensure they have the necessary skills to access the whole curriculum at the 
appropriate level. They include isolated literacy skills such as oracy, higher order reading, 
writing/grammar/spelling, vocabulary building and money, multiplication, time and mathematical language, etc, 
in numeracy. They are designed to support learners to access the rest of their learning. 
Each model is based on the Education Endowment Foundation recommended teaching sequence for a flexible 
approach to teaching and whole-school strategies, targeted support to accelerate learning and wider strategies 
(including supporting parents and carers). They can be adapted for use at home or school, a learner’s ability and 
age ranges and act as a model on which the teacher could further develop their own models. 
Activities are designed to incorporate DCF and be based on a wider curriculum and learning in the outdoors, 
where appropriate, to motivate and continue to build learner well-being, independence and confidence. 
Each model includes a voice-over briefing for teachers and a set of short videos for parents to help them support 
their children at home, should schools choose to share them. 
They have been produced in both languages with contexts and reading materials selected to best reflect the 
culture and flavour of each language. 

Resources 2-5: Evidence reviews  
 
These four reviews provide a summary of the current evidence for a range of commonly used programmes and 
interventions. For each programme, a range of practical information useful for school leaders is presented, 
including information on efficacy, cost, training requirements and curriculum links. 

2 Literacy programmes evidence review 

3 Numeracy programmes evidence review 

4 Behaviour & well-being programmes evidence review 

5 Online programmes (literacy and numeracy) evidence review 

 
Resource 6: Teaching and fluency-building packages  
These packages build on a range of existing strategies and resources made available to schools via projects 
delivered by GwE and the Collaborative Institute for Education Research, Evidence and Impact (CIEREI), Bangor 
University. They focus on the use of evidence-informed teaching and fluency-building strategies to help pupils’ 
basic reading and reading fluency, reading comprehension and vocabulary skills and basic numeracy and 
numeracy fluency skills 
The strategies have been identified as having a strong theoretical research base, alongside positive evidence 
from efficacy trials. They are all relatively simple to use at scale without the need for lengthy INSET training. They 
are also suitable for parents to use. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141



 

 
 
 

6a Keeping Pupils Reading! (HEADSPROUTS, FP-KS2 parental support project) 

6b Repeated Reading & High Frequency Word Fluency strategies (KS2-3currently being amended for 
Welsh language, bespoke Welsh texts being written) 

6c SAFMEDS numeracy strategy (KS2 parental support project) 

6d SAFMEDS numeracy strategy/Quizizz app (KS2-3) 

6e Remote Instruction for Literacy & Language (RILL - Currently being amended for Welsh language, 
bespoke Welsh texts being written) 

 
Resource 7: Secondary Literacy Offer  
 
In the secondary sector it is essential that we further develop literacy skills across the curriculum in order 
for learners to unlock learning and acquire knowledge. The challenge of improving literacy skills is a 
particular priority for learners from disadvantaged backgrounds. 
The first package offered to schools is a digital Literacy Toolkit. The toolkit makes four key 
recommendations based on EEF research with each recommendation supported by practical examples 
which classroom teachers can adapt to support and enhance the literacy skills of their learners A package 
of professional learners, again open to all classroom teachers across the region, accompanies the resource. 
The second package available to schools focusses on literacy intervention which is vital for identified 
learners across all ability ranges.  An interactive literacy intervention programme, available in English and 
Welsh, has been developed and is available for schools to utilise.  The programme can be used in school or 
at home as we recognise the importance of parental support in accelerating learning.  Effective intervention 
also identifies learners early; uses assessment to target need and reviews impact regularly and the 
programme also supports schools in doing this. A comprehensive professional learning package for teachers 
or teaching assistants has also been developed in order to support schools in ensuring effective 
implementation.   
   
 
Resource 8: Secondary numeracy packages  
 
These resources are a package that will enable secondary colleagues to support the numeracy drive 
within the school.  Resources included are suitable for use within the classroom (including cross-
curricular links), for learners working away from school and for parents to support the learners.  
Where possible the resources are evidence-based and include a range of learning resources that can 
be used for different learners’ needs as and when appropriate. 

 

8a  
i 

Universal support materials 
Organisation of the numeracy curriculum for years 7-9 to prioritise aspects of the 
curriculum.  This includes the combining of topics that can be taught together to create 
the following: 

 Links between the current framework and the new curriculum. 
 Topics organised into progression ladders to provide resources for all ability 

ranges at KS3. 
 Topics linked to the other projects – SAFMEDS and iSTer where appropriate. 

KS3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 142



 

 
 
 

8a ii Universal support materials 
Materials to support teachers to guide learners with independent and distance 
learning. 
The resources include a toolkit which is suitable for learners, learners with parental 
support, learners with non-specialist support, learners’ under teachers’ direction. 
The toolkit includes the following: 

 Diagnostic questions – to be completed at the beginning and end of the 
series of learning opportunities. 

 Lesson that can be followed, including supporting video clips and examples. 
 Tasks to be completed and self-marked so that learners can assess their own 

development. 

KS3 

8a 
iii 

Universal support materials 
 Materials supported from the Maths.Cymru website to enable free and easy 

access for all teachers, learners and their parents/guardians. 
 Promotion of the brand ‘Maths.Cymru’ as a one-stop shop for supporting 

materials. 
 Specific areas targeted for KS3 within the website (with an area for KS4 

which learners will need to access as they progress through the school). 
 Release of materials over the next two terms with different stakeholder 

groups. 

KS3-
KS4 

 Targeted support package to include  
 Resources to support the workforce, to support personalised learning, 

additional support materials and for supporting the parental role in the 
learning. 

KS3 

8b 
i 

Targeted support materials 
 Promote and develop a package that Senior leaders within schools can use 

to develop the workforce in order to accelerate the learning for all. 
 

KS3 

8b 
Ii 

Targeted support materials 
 Develop a professional learning package to support senior learners to 

develop the personalised  learning experiences in order to accelerate 
learning for all. 

 

KS3 

8b 
iii 

Targeted support materials 
 Develop a professional learning package to support SLT/AENCO/ Numeracy 

Coordinators to develop the workforce within the school to further invest in 
small group numeracy intervention. 

 

KS3 

8b 
iv 

Targeted support materials 
Develop a range of resources that can support the sessions that schools may choose 
to deliver to the wider community in order to strengthen links with parents and the 
wider community to support numeracy development 
 

KS3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 143



 

 
 
 

8c iSTeR Development 
Retrieval & Spaced practice strategies for maths (KS3-4) developed alongside the work 
with Bangor University to further support the development of topics considered in 8a 
and 8b. 

KS3 

8d SAFMEDS Development 
Materials developed as a collaboration between Bangor University, KS2 and KS3 
colleagues. 
Linked to the developments of topics considered in 8a and 8b where appropriate. 

KS3 

 
 
 
 

Page 144



Professional
O f f e r

2020-2021

A p p e n d i x  4

Page 145



2

CONTENT

 WELL-BEING 04

 THE REFORM JOURNEY 11

 CURRICULUM FOR WALES 12

 ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS [ALN] 16

 THE WELSH LANGUAGE 20

 DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE 21

 TEACHING ASSISTANTS 22

 LEADERSHIP 24

 FOUNDATION PHASE, LITERACY & NUMERACY, SUBJECTS 27

 ACCELERATING LEARNING 33

 DIGITAL 39

 PROFESSIONAL OFFER 03

Page 146



3

PROFESSIONAL OFFER

This year has been a difficult year, which has highlighted how incredibly flexible you as 

headteachers and schools can be when responding to all the COVID-19 challenges you 

have had to face.  Following discussions with several of you, the GwE offer will reflect this 

flexibility and be available to you at a time that is convenient to you. 

We will discuss with you in your catchment areas in order to identify aspects that have 

priority, and then we will do our utmost to respond to these needs in a flexible manner to 

suit you as schools. 

The offer this year is condensed under five main headings, namely: 

• WELL-BEING

• THE REFORM JOURNEY: 

Curriculum for Wales

ALN

The Welsh Language

• DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE: 

Teaching Assistants

Leadership

Foundation Phase, Literacy & Numeracy, Subjects

• ACCELERATING LEARNING 

• DIGITAL 

What follows will give you a high-level idea of the Professional Learning offered by GwE 

during this academic year. It is not in its final form, but it gives you a flavour to assist you to 

identify the Professional Learning needs of your school and your staff in the near future.  

We will work with you as schools to identify the best time to deliver the Professional 

Learning; therefore, times and dates are not included in this high-level offer. 

GwE will also work closely with you as schools in order to continue to deepen the Peer work 

already established, and to identify the aspects that you as schools could offer to other 

schools to develop specific aspects of Professional Learning. 

CONTENT PAGE

Page 147



WELL-BEING

CONTENT PAGE

Page 148



5

WELL-BEING

Dealing with attachment and trauma difficulties in Educational Settings

Provider Name(s):  Trauma Informed Schools - Dr Coral Harper 

Brief Description: 

• Suitable for all school staff, although targeting Designated Teachers for LAC / Head of Pastoral Care /   

 Well-being / ALNCo

• 3 hour online PLO delivered in 2 x 90 minute sessions

• To provide an introduction to developmental Trauma and Attachment via evidence based research    

 with focus on developing a whole schools approach

• To support all attendees to identify strategies within teaching and learning to help learners within their   

 school setting

Biophilia: The Science of Nature & Animals: Why being outside makes us happier, 
healthier and better able to learn

Provider Name(s): Dr Coral Harper, Independent Education and Mental Health Consultant

Brief Description: 

This three-hour (or 2 x 90 minute) online PLO will support school to developing their understanding of Biophilia in 

regards to regulating in Nature

• Understanding the beneficial (brain) chemistry of Nature Hard & Soft Fascination

• Incorporating learning into practice –Activities to support emotional well-being in the outdoors

• Risk/Benefit Assessment

Developing Self-Regulation Zones in primary settings

Provider Name(s): Dr Janet Rose / Nia Thomas – GwE

Brief Description: 

• This workshop is designed to accompany the Emotion Coaching workshop and will be delivered in    

 English with bilingual resources

• The workshop will focus particular attention on strategies that enable children to develop more    

 effective skills in regulating their feelings and behaviour so that they can focus on their schoolwork.    

 The workshop will offer participants a number of different strategies that can be easily implemented in   

 their classrooms  

• The strategies all help children to learn to regulate their stress response system, their feelings and their   
 behaviour and help to build emotional literacy 

CONTENT PAGE

Page 149



6

WELL-BEING

Supporting the Education of Children who are Looked After across the Region

Provider Name(s):  Sharon Williams, GwE

Brief Description: 

• The  45 minute session can be delivered in Welsh / English and is suitable for all staff who are supporting   

 children who are looked after – but with focus on NQTs /Designated Lead

• The workshop will focus on - What does it mean to be ‘looked after’? / The role of the school and LA in   

 supporting LAC pupils

• Raising aspirations of children who are looked after and consider the impact of early childhood trauma and   

 attachment difficulties in education and universal support to implement

• Support, processes and procedures e.g.  Personal Education Plans

Developing a Whole School Approach to Well-being

Provider Name(s):  Sharon Williams, GwE

Brief Description: 

The 60-minute session can be delivered in English / Welsh and suitable for all settings. 

• The session will focus on universal Well-being and reference evidence based research / national strategies in  

 regards to the whole school approach. 

• It will focus on the key principles / considerations and practices for schools that are beneficial for all learners.

• Information will also be shared on the Well-being Accelerating Learning evidence database and signposting to  

 further guidance

The Right Way – A Children’s Rights Approach in Wales

Provider Name(s):  Children’s Commissioner for Wales / GwE

Brief Description: 

The workshop is suitable for all settings and can be delivered in Welsh / English – the session will be between 60 – 90 

minutes.  

• The focus will be on the introduction to the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child and how they  

 can applied within school in regards to the 4 purpose within CfW and in addition learner voice.

• The workshop will also allow you to have the status of Train the Trainer and cascade across your school / cluster.

CONTENT PAGE

Page 150



7

WELL-BEING

The Observational Checklist

Provider Name(s):  Helen Worrall, Education Consultant/ Author

Brief Description: 

• Participants will, via a summary of Attachment Theory, be able to understand how early experiences,   

 particularly those related to neglect, trauma and loss, negatively impact the ability to form positive relationships  

 with others and how this impacts upon their well-being, behaviour and needs within our schools

• Participants will become familiar with the range of resources contained with each of the observation checklist  

 books and their intended uses

• Participants will develop an understanding of how the Observational Checklist for each of the age groups   

 is structured, how it is completed and how it can be interpreted to inform understanding of need and to inform  

 planning

• Participants will understand how the checklist can be used as an effective method to monitor and observe   

 change in a child or young person’s emotional well-being and as such can be used as a resource that shows   

 progress and efficacy of interventions put into place as a result of increased understanding

Thinking Differently for Disadvantaged Learners

Provider Name(s):  Challenging Education

Brief Description: 

• The Professional Learning Programme (PLP) is based around six recorded training modules released half-termly  

 throughout the academic year and available to all staff (and governors) to access at their own convenience.   

 They are suitable for all schools / settings

• Each training module will be divided into a series of short video sessions (viewable online only) and a number of  

 these will be accompanied by additional reading and/or reflective worksheets that can be downloaded. There is  

 also the opportunity to join in a live feedback session as well

• Settings will be given access to the modules via GwE up to 31st August 2021.  

• The focus will be supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged youngsters and includes: What it is like to be   

 disadvantaged in school; the impact of the curriculum; Adapting teaching and effectively using metacognitive  

 strategies; addressing the difficulties of participation; Teaching appropriate learning behaviours and career-  

 related learning

CONTENT PAGE

Page 151



8

WELL-BEING

Family and community engagement - FaCE

Provider Name(s):  GwE

Brief Description: 

• The workshop is suitable for all settings and can be delivered in Welsh / English

• The workshop will focus on the Welsh Government FaCE toolkit that is designed to provide practical support for  

 schools with an overview of the 5 key themes in regards to parental and community engagement

• The workshop will also focus on practical examples from schools across the region in regards to embedding a  

 whole school approach to family engagement and family voice

• The workshop will also share / signpost to further guidance in regards to evidence based programmes /   

 provision

How do we Measure Well-being? – The Conversation

Provider Name(s):  GwE

Brief Description: 

• The 60 minute workshop can be delivered in Welsh/English

• The focus of the workshop is to give schools / settings an overview of the universal range of evidence based  

 “well-being” measures /tools

• There will be practical examples of what schools have used and its impact to date, we will also link with the 6  

 local authorities in regards to targeted learner support

Bloom – for Young People’s Mental Health & Resilience 

Provider Name(s):  Mental Health UK (Hafal Cymru)

Brief Description: 

• Bloom is a free resource for schools, to equip learners in KS4/post 16 with the tools and knowledge to maintain  

 good mental health and well-being - https://mentalhealth-uk.org/partnerships/projects/bloom/

• The online training is available in both Welsh/English as well as the resources / lesson plans/student workbook

•  The programme includes six key topics – What is Resilience? Exam Stress / Making decisions / Managing   

 Studies/Social pressures and friendships

• Following the training schools can then have practical support via Hafal Cymru in regards to delivering in school

CONTENT PAGE

Page 152

https://mentalhealth-uk.org/partnerships/projects/bloom/


9

WELL-BEING

Foundation Phase Network – Autumn Term. Focus – Health and Well-being. 
Effective strategies to support the learning

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Schematic behaviour. What is a schema? How to support schematic behaviour. Aligns with early progression   

 steps Curriculum for Wales

• Trauma – ACEs. Case study on effective strategies that can be used with all pupils to deal with anxiety and   

 trauma

• Information about on-line assessments

• Recording available within the ‘Webinars’ section of GwE Support Centre

Well-being across the Curriculum for NQTs

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones

Brief Description: 

• Ensure that the well-being of all learners is of the highest priority in all schools across the region

• Ensure that all learners maximise their full learning potential and become healthy, confident individuals who 

 build their emotional well-being

• Ensure that teachers understand that developing physical health and well-being has lifelong benefits

• Promote that all schools have a healthy and safe environment that embraces a holistic approach to well-being  

 and that all learners feel safe and free from abuse

Embedding the VESPA Programme in Schools 

Provider Name(s):  Martyn Froggett

Brief Description: 

• Training continuing for schools involved in the programme and opportunities to train for those not involved.  

Training will be focussed on development  for VESPA Champions and existing and potential programme deliverers 

(costs: resources £4000; training £700)

CONTENT PAGE

Page 153



10

WELL-BEING

Head teacher well-being workshops

Provider Name(s):  Claire Chidley - an experienced and highly regarded expert in the area - will facilitate the   
 workshops

Brief Description: 

• A one off ‘live’ workshop focusing on a variety of aspects of Head teachers’ personal well-being e.g. resilience,  

 adapting to a changing environment, personal reflection etc. The programme will be launched during November  

 2020

• Following this, there would be a series of bite-size webinars, which will be recorded, focusing on various themes  

 and aspects of well-being and resilience. In addition to this there will be pre and post reading materials and   

 exercises for school leaders to engage with. Schools can partake in these sessions on a flexible basis and use   

 them within their own schools if they wish

• Peer to peer engagement and support will be key throughout the offer with opportunities to engage with peers  

 from within individual school senior leadership teams and / or with school leaders from other schools

• There will be an opportunity for groups of schools to come together to further explore bespoke aspects of   

 personal, collective and institutional well-being. This could be clusters of primary schools or groups of secondary  

 schools

CONTENT PAGE

Page 154



THE REFORM JOURNEY

CONTENT PAGE

Page 155



12

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Change Management 

Provider Name(s):  Ruth Thackray and Euros Davies

Brief Description: 

• A practical and compelling session to support schools with leading and planning change through the reform   

 journey. 

• What is Change Management and how to go about managing change? 

• An opportunity to work with colleagues in small groups to discuss various situations.

• The Professional Learning is split into two sessions of approximately 1 hour and 45 minutes. 

CURRICULUM FOR WALES

Developing a Shared Vision 

Provider Name(s):  Ruth Thackray and Euros Davies

Brief Description: 

• Working with stakeholders to develop a vision for Curriculum for Wales

• What is your current vision?  Does it need to be amended/updated? 

• How will you ensure this is a vision for the whole community and your stakeholders? 

• How to develop a shared vision during COVID-19

System Expectations  

Provider Name(s):  Ruth Thackray and Euros Davies

Brief Description: 

• Discussion and making sense of expectations for the journey to September 2022 

• An informal session with ample time to ask questions and express views

• Useful for schools to be able to map out the journey to September 2022

• Identify where Curriculum for Wales is in the wider reform journey

CONTENT PAGE

Page 156



13

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Blended Learning, Accelerating Learning and Curriculum for Wales 

Provider Name(s):  Ruth Thackray and Euros Davies

Brief Description: 

• Identify and prepare for scenarios and challenges that arise due to COVID-19 

• Identify examples of how this work can help us to prepare for CfW.  

• What are the links between these aspects? 

• Opportunities to reflect 

Understanding a Curriculum that is driven by the Purposes 

Provider Name(s):  Ruth Thackray and Euros Davies

Brief Description: 

• Develop and understand concepts within Curriculum for Wales and how to plan curriculum change

• Understand the concepts underpinning a Curriculum that is driven by Purposes  

Pedagogy  

Provider Name(s):  GwE CfW team

Brief Description: 

• A series of short sessions looking at what makes effective Pedagogy

• Link with Schools as Learning Organisations and the role of research 

• Link with the Professional Learning Standards  

Creating space and time for Professional Learning  

Provider Name(s):  GwE CfW team

Brief Description: 

• An opportunity to look at effective professional learning for all members of staff and how it supports the Reform  

 Journey

• Discuss effective methods and examples of creating space and time for Professional Learning

• Identify the PL that is available in terms of the reform journey and how to benefit from it as a school and   

 catchment area

CONTENT PAGE

Page 157



14

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Welsh Curriculum Update for NQTs 

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones

Brief Description: 

• Focus on the “What matters Statements”, the “Principles of progress” and the “Learning descriptions”

• Teachers have the opportunity to develop aspects of the curriculum itself, enabling its learners to develop   

 towards the four purposes of the curriculum

• Share best practice in teaching in the Foundation Phase, KS2 and KS3

How to provide a developmentally appropriate holistic and integrated curriculum 
into lower KS2 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Sharing ideas and learning experiences

• How to plan using authentic context in a holistic way

• Suitable for senior leaders, foundation phase and Year 3 and 4 teachers and teaching assistants

Following the live webinar, a recording will be available within the ‘Webinars’ section on GwE Support Centre

Embedding the 12 pedagogical principles into everyday practices  

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• How to effectively plan the learning environment

• How the provision is used effectively to widen children’s literacy, numeracy and digital skills

• Develop and understand theories and research about child development and learning relevant to planning and  

 everyday practice

• Suitable for senior leaders, foundation phase and Year 3 and 4 teachers and teaching assistants

Following the live webinar, a recording will be available within the ‘Webinars’ section on GwE Support Centre.

CONTENT PAGE

Page 158



15

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Developing mathematical and numeracy skills in the outdoor provision 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Focus: sharing ideas on how to develop pupils’ mathematical and numeracy skills outdoors through a range   

 of rich learning experiences (many of the activities linked to the topic of ‘Christmas’ and the use of natural   

 resources and loose parts). Sharing ideas how to develop maths and numeracy skills, which can be adapted to  

 your current situation.

• Activities to support overall development of personal and social skills and their well-being.

• Suitable for Nursery – Year 2 teachers and TAs

Following the live webinar, a recording will be available within the ‘Webinars’ section on GwE Support Centre.

Heads of English Network Meetings (once per half term) 

Provider Name(s):  Gaynor Murphy, Anna Lloyd Williams and Louise Usher 

Brief Description: 

• Further develop standards of teaching and learning

• Develop approaches to effective blended learning 

• Further strengthen quality of leadership

• Create opportunities to share best practice  and develop approaches to CFW

CONTENT PAGE

Page 159



16

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Differentiation – Mike Gershon 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team

Brief Description: 

• Video 1: Defining Differentiation and Layering Up

• Video 2: Scaffolding, Modelling and Working Memory

• Video 3: Using Taxonomies to Differentiate

• Video 4: Feedback and Metacognition

Managing Difficult Conversations 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & online virtual presenter Nicola S Morgan 

Brief Description: 

• How to handle challenging conversations using an 8-Step blueprint that will help you feel more prepared,   

 communicate confidently and stay in control of the situation and yourself

• 2.5-hour session

ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS [ALN]

Dealing with Challenging Situations Effectively 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & online virtual presenter Nicola S Morgan 

Brief Description: 

• Develop specific strategies for conflict resolution

• Practice communication skills

• Develop Influencing and negotiation skills to facilitate resolutions

• 2.5-hour session

CONTENT PAGE

Page 160



17

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Welsh Government Eliesha Level 1 e-learning 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team

Brief Description: 

• What is the new ALN system?

• Identifying additional learning needs

• Roles and key responsibilities 

Working with Parents 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & e-learning presenter Samantha Garner 

Brief Description: 

• Looking at the challenges faced when working with parents and how we can build effective positive    

 relationships to ensure the best outcomes for children and young people

Inclusivity in Education 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & online virtual presenter Nicola S Morgan 

Brief Description: 

• What is inclusivity and how can we promote it within our setting and within our individual working practices?

One-Page Profiles Top Tips 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & e-learning presenter Ben Rosamond 

Brief Description: 

• What is a one-page profile?

• How can they help us to support children and young people better?

CONTENT PAGE

Page 161



18

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Quality First Teaching 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & e-learning presenter Samantha Garner

Brief Description: 

• What is quality first teaching and how can we achieve it?

Using multi-sensory teaching to support ALN children and young people 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team 

Brief Description: 

• Why we do not all learn the same way?

• How we can plan and evaluate our practice to ensure we are reaching all students, not just those who learn how  

 we teach

Person-Centred Reviews

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & e-learning presenter Ben Rosamond 

Brief Description: 

• What is a Person-Centred Review?

• How can Person-Centred Reviews help us to support children and young people better?

Person-Centred Thinking for Everyone 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team & e-learning by Helen Sanderson Associates 

Brief Description: 

• Begin or add to your understanding of what being person-centred means; the person-centred thinking tools will  

 give you some practical ways to help people take control of their lives and support

CONTENT PAGE

Page 162



19

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Developing Effective Outcomes and Using the Support Sequence 

Provider Name(s):  Regional ALN Transformation Team

Brief Description: 

• Session 1 – Preparation (learning what matters, who matters and where matters)

• Session 2 – The Outcomes Sequence (writing effective person-centred outcomes)

• Session 3 – The Support System (checking solutions and problem solving)

• Each delegate will need to complete every session (3 sessions = 7.5 hours) (Online virtual training)

CONTENT PAGE

Page 163



20

THE REFORM JOURNEY

Literacy in the New Curriculum for Wales 

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• Networks/ clusters across the region working together to create new cross-curricular resources

• Support and build on schemes that are already operational and successful

• Provide guidance on how to place the New Curriculum as a focus for the further development of Literacy within  

 individual departments plans or within cross-school areas of learning

THE WELSH LANGUAGE

Offering opportunities for teachers to work on cross-regional/national projects 

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• Projects in progress for KS3 and KS4

• Invitation for teachers to join the projects panel

• The direction of the projects will be determined by the project panel

Bilingual Teaching Methods 

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• A quick guide for educators based on International research into bilingual teaching methods, led by Professor  

 Enlli Thomas of Bangor University

• Contains a brief overview of the international literature, relating those practices to an educational context here  

 in Wales 

• The booklet has been produced to coincide with the Welsh in Education and Bilingualism Conference (October /  

 November 2018) and is supported by Welsh and English YouTube videos of the conference

CONTENT PAGE

Page 164



DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

CONTENT PAGE

Page 165



22

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Induction Programme for New Teaching Assistants (digital) 

Provider Name(s):  Teaching Assistants’ Learning Pathway

Brief Description: 

• To understand the role of a teaching assistant and how to develop professionally

• To understand how policies and frameworks impact the teaching assistant’s role

• To embrace the changes and consider relevance in their own settings

Aspiring HLTA Programme Cylch 1 (Modules 2, 3 and 4) 

Provider Name(s):  Teaching Assistants’ Learning Pathway

Brief Description: 

• To understand the requirements of the HLTA status and role, and prepare for HLTA assessment

• To develop understanding regarding their professional impact on learners

• To understand how policies and frameworks impact the HLTA’s role, embrace the current national changes and  

 consider relevance in their own settings

• To establish and improve professional networks and collaborations of teaching assistants within schools and   

 between schools

Aspiring HLTA Programme Cylch 2 (Modules 1 - 4) 

Provider Name(s):  Teaching Assistants’ Learning Pathway

Brief Description: 

• To understand the requirements of the HLTA status and role, and prepare for HLTA assessment

• To develop understanding regarding their professional impact on learners

• To understand how policies and frameworks impact the HLTA’s role, embrace the current national changes and  

 consider relevance in their own settings

• To establish and improve professional networks and collaborations of teaching assistants within schools and   

 between schools

TEACHING ASSISTANTS

CONTENT PAGE

Page 166



23

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Teaching Assistants / HLTAs – Supporting & Progressing Numeracy in KS2 

Provider Name(s):  Manon Davies 

Brief Description: 

• Practical classroom based support strategies for supporting the development of learners numeracy skills

• Introduction to evidence based research to further develop subject knowledge and understanding

• Suitable for all levels of TA and HLTA

Teaching Assistants / HLTAs – Supporting and Progressing Literacy in KS2 

Provider Name(s):  Vicky Lees

Brief Description: 

• Practical classroom based support strategies for supporting the development of oracy, reading and writing skills

• Introduction to evidence based research to further develop subject knowledge and understanding

• Suitable for all levels of TA and HLTA

CONTENT PAGE

Page 167



24

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Middle Leaders Development Programme 

Provider Name(s):  A national programme run by the regional consortia and delivery partners

Brief Description: 

• This one-year leadership development programme is available to all middle leaders across Wales who have   

 areas of responsibility and/or line management of staff   

• A practical, cross-phase, development programme, using a blended delivery model

• The programme will aim to: develop a participant’s leadership skills and the school’s leadership capacity;   

 improve experiences for pupils and raise standards

• Accreditation options are offered, in partnership with UWTSD and Bangor Universities

Senior Leaders Development Programme 

Provider Name(s):  A national programme run by the regional consortia and delivery partners

Brief Description: 

• This one-year leadership development programme is available to all senior leaders across Wales who have   

 overall responsibility for an aspect of leadership across an establishment

• The programme seeks to maximise e-learning opportunities and technology through all learning, research and 

 instructional content being made available digitally. This will be the primary method of collecting and    

 exchanging knowledge and learning

• The programme promotes highly effective leadership through self-evaluation and reflection, exploring the   

 relationships between leadership, successful schools and the wider community

• The delivery of the programme includes mentoring, peer support networks and an individual leadership   

 standards self-review

LEADERSHIP

CONTENT PAGE

Page 168



25

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

National Aspiring Headteachers Development Programme – preparing for NPQH 

Provider Name(s):  A national assessment and development programme run by the regional consortia on behalf of  
 Welsh Government

Brief Description: 

• This one-year development programme is an exciting professional learning opportunity for experienced school  

 leaders across Wales who wish to become head teachers in the near future. Completion of this programme is an  

 expectation for all future NPQH applicants

• The programme promotes highly effective leadership through self-evaluation and reflection, exploring the   

 relationships between leadership, successful schools and the wider community. It will ensure equity of access  

 to practitioners across Wales and an increase in the number of high-quality applicants for headteacher posts in  

 schools

• The programme will enable participants to reflect on their own professional practice and to ensure they are well  

 prepared when applying to undertake formal assessment for the National Professional Qualification for    

 Headteachers (NPQH)

• The programme takes place over a one-year period and requires a commitment of the equivalent of five days  

 between January and December.  It may be delivered through a blended learning model

Newly Appointed and Acting Headteachers Development Programme 

Provider Name(s):  A national programme, run by the regional consortia and their delivery partners

Brief Description: 

• This two-year programme is available for every Headteacher in their first substantive or acting post throughout  

 Wales 

• The programme offers: Development Days in Leadership; support from Leadership Coaches and networking   

 opportunities

• It aims to allow Headteachers who are new to their roles continue to develop and to benefit from a support   

 structure and peer networking

• Accreditation options are offered, in partnership with UWTSD and Bangor Universities

CONTENT PAGE

Page 169



26

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Experienced Headteachers Development Programme  

Provider Name(s):  A national leadership development programme, run by the regional consortia and their   
 delivery partners

Brief Description: 

• This two-year programme is a professional learning opportunity for experienced headteachers and has been  

 created to enable headteachers to reflect on their current performance and determine their next steps in   

 ensuring effective leadership

• It will provide each participant with personally tailored challenges and support; time to discuss ideas, theories  

 and leadership tools; and the opportunity to benefit from and to help others successfully fill the role

• The programme promotes highly effective leadership through self-evaluation and reflection, exploring the   

 relationships between leadership, successful schools and the wider community

• There is an opportunity for accreditation in partnership with Trinity St David’s (Yr Athrofa) and Bangor University  

 for those participants wishing to undertake such a route

Post-16 Leadership Programme - Day 4 

Provider Name(s):  Cross-Consortia – Post-16 Leadership Development programme

Brief Description: 

• Completion of course from 2019-20

• For delegates who completed the earlier part of the programme

• Two 90-minute sessions on 25 November/ 3 December.  Delegates should attend both sessions

Coaching and Mentoring Programme 

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones and Bethan Cartwright

Brief Description: 

• A series of workshops for heads and/or SLT looking at further developing Coaching and Mentoring skills

• Equip attendees with strategies and models to support effective motivation and mentoring as motivation is   

 embedded within the organisation

• Interactive workshops with plenty of time for discussion in breakout rooms and some role play to develop   

 understanding

CONTENT PAGE

Page 170



27

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Observing against the Compact Profile 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• The importance of the observation cycle

• Making observations against the compact profile to identify and plan next steps in their learning

• Recording available within the ‘Webinars’ section of GwE Support Centre

Practitioners facilitating and supporting the learning in Foundation Phase 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Effective questioning, including questions to develop numerical reason, questions to develop pupils’ ability to  

 reflect and to extend their responses and thinking 

• Blank level of questioning

• Strategies to develop independent learners

Cluster sessions to be arranged on request through the School Improvement Adviser

Foundation Phase Termly Networks 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Local, regional and national issues regarding foundation phase will be discussed and a ‘good practice case study’  

 will be delivered 

• Dates will be shared via the GwE bulletin, GwE twitter page and GwE cynradd twitter feed

• Following the live webinar, a recording will be available within the ‘Webinars’ section on GwE Support Centre

FOUNDATION PHASE, LITERACY & NUMERACY, SUBJECTS

CONTENT PAGE

Page 171



28

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Literacy and numeracy termly network meetings 

Provider Name(s):  Manon Davies and Vicky Lees

Brief Description: 

• Facilitation of regional and local networks for Literacy and Numeracy subject leaders

• Specific focus on collaborating and sharing best practice, effective teaching of Literacy and Numeracy, explore a  

 range of reliable evidence and pedagogical approaches to develop the new curriculum

• Develop distributed leadership through up skilling and empowering all staff leading in Literacy/Numeracy

Literacy and Numeracy: Designing your Curriculum in KS2 

Provider Name(s):  Manon Davies and Vicky Lees

Brief Description: 

• Sharing ideas for how to effectively plan the development of literacy, numeracy and digital skills, as you design  

 your curriculum

• Effective use of the indoor and outdoor learning environment

• Suitable for all leaders, teachers and support staff

English teacher Forums (open to all teachers, once per half term)  

Provider Name(s):  Gaynor Murphy, Anna Lloyd Williams and Louise Usher

Brief Description: 

• Further develop standards of teaching and learning – subject specific priority every half term

• Create opportunities for teachers to share and collaborate 

• Create opportunities to share best practice

Heads of Mathematics Network Meetings  (once per term)   

Provider Name(s):  Delyth Ellis and Sian Caldwell

Brief Description: 

• Further develop standards of teaching and learning

• Develop approaches to effective blended learning 

• Further strengthen quality of leadership

• Create opportunities to share best practice 

• Develop approaches to CFW

CONTENT PAGE

Page 172



29

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Mathematics Teacher Forums (open to all teachers, once per term)  

Provider Name(s):  Delyth Ellis and Sian Caldwell

Brief Description: 

• Further develop standards of teaching and learning – subject specific priority every term

• Create opportunities for teachers to share and collaborate 

• Create opportunities to share best practice

Numeracy Coordinator Networks (once per half term) 

Provider Name(s):  Delyth Ellis and Sian Caldwell

Brief Description: 

• Improve provision for Numeracy across the school based on the EEF’s key recommendations 

• Improve skills of workforce

• Utilise QA support in order to identify areas of best practice

Introducing / re-igniting International Languages in the primary curriculum  

Provider Name(s):  Global Futures GwE MFL/ INTERNATIONAL LANGUAGES- Primary

Brief Description: 

• Sharing good practice: GwE Primary Lead schools 

• International Languages and Covid

• Practical and ready to use resources

• Support from the Team

Power Language: introduction and update

Provider Name(s):  Power Language - Primary 

Brief Description: 

• National conference/presentation by Power language director: Richard Tallaron

• Overview of the website and the resources/ plans for IL in primary schools

• Training opportunities and customised resources and plans

• For non-specialist teachers in the primary

CONTENT PAGE

Page 173



30

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Pedagogical principle in MFL- part 1: Challenge  

Provider Name(s):  Global Futures GwE MFL + Ariane Laumonier (Institut français) - Secondary Sector

Brief Description: 

• Aimed at NQT and non-specialist teachers but also good review to plan for the New Curriculum

• Defining challenge and how to achieve it: the theory

• Practical examples and resources

• DATE: WEEK OF 30TH November

Pedagogical principle in MFL- part 1: Retrieval 

Provider Name(s):  Pedagogical principle in MFL- part 1: Retrieval

Brief Description: 

• Retrieval practices to address the gap in knowledge due to lockdown period

• Develop pupils’ confidence and proficiency

• Hub leaders to share good practice

• Discussion and practical examples

Pedagogical principle in MFL- part 3: Blended learning  

Provider Name(s):  Global Futures GwE MFL- Secondary Sector 

Brief Description: 

• BL approach in practice: sharing good practice - Hub leaders 

• BL to be exam-ready: ideas and examples

• Discussion and practical examples

• All teachers

• Support from the Team

Heads of Science Network Meetings (once per term, more frequently if required)

Provider Name(s):  Nicola Jones, Beverly Humphreys-Jones, Huw Smith 

Brief Description: 

• Improve the quality of Teaching and learning in the current climate (Blended, distant, live streaming)

• evelop approaches to effective planning for learning 

• Continue to develop leadership at all levels and create opportunities to share best practice 

• Improve understanding of the CFW and curriculum planning for 2022

CONTENT PAGE

Page 174



31

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

Science surgeries (open to all teachers, once per half term)  

Provider Name(s):  TBC

For each of the following qualifications:

• Level 3 Medical Science
• GCSE Applied Science
• GCSE Biology (Separate & Double awards)
• GCSE Chemistry (Separate & Double awards)
• GCSE Physics (Separate & Double awards)

Brief Description: 

• Share updates from WJEC

• Share best practice from schools that have successful introduced/delivered the qualification

• Provide a platform for teachers to discuss and concerns, ask questions and support each other

Science Teaching and Learning networks (open to all teachers – once per half term)  

Provider Name(s):  Nicola Jones, Beverly Humphreys-Jones, Huw Smith

Brief Description: 

• Further develop the quality of teaching and learning and effective planning for learning – subject specific   

 priority every half term

• Create opportunities for teachers to collaborate and share best practice

• Creating opportunities to promote and develop a STEM approach and to build learners’ ‘Science Capital’

• Improve understanding of the CFW and curriculum planning for 2022

Familiarisation with resources to support Welsh literacy in KS2

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team 

Brief Description: 

• An introduction to the nationally developed resources

• Details what is available to develop speaking and listening, reading and writing throughout KS2

• Highlighting the digital tools available through Hwb to further enrich and extend the activities and support   

 blended learning

CONTENT PAGE

Page 175



32

DEVELOPING THE WORKFORCE

GwE Welsh Language Training Directory  

Provider Name(s):  Various

Brief Description: 

• A directory referring to the provision for developing the Welsh language skills of the workforce in North Wales

• It directs the workforce to National provision e.g. the National Centre for Learning Welsh, and what is offered  

 locally by the individual authorities

Network meetings – Heads of 6th Form 

Provider Name(s):  Martyn Froggett/ Christine Wynne / Elfed Morris

Brief Description: 

• Termly meetings for Heads of 6th Form to exchange thoughts around current issues such as UCAS/ well-being/  

 blended learning 

• Specific input on topics from speakers/ guests to be provided as needed 

CONTENT PAGE

Page 176



ACCELERATING LEARNING

CONTENT PAGE

Page 177



34

ACCELERATING LEARNING

Literacy across the Curriculum for NQTs 

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones

Brief Description: 

• Ensure that learners have relevant high-level literacy skills

• Support NQTs to identify and provide opportunities for pupils to develop literacy skills across the curriculum

• Share best practice in teaching in the Foundation Phase, KS2 and KS3

• Effectively develop the literacy skills of all learners across the curriculum

Numeracy across the Curriculum for NQTs  

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones

Brief Description: 

• Ensure that learners have relevant high level numeracy skills

• Support NQTs to identify and provide opportunities for pupils to develop numeracy skills across the curriculum

• Share best practice in teaching in the Foundation Phase, KS2 and KS3

• Effectively develop the numeracy skills of all learners across the curriculum

Literacy Leader Networks  [once per half term] 

Provider Name(s):  Gaynor Murphy, Anna Lloyd Williams and Louise Usher

Brief Description: 

• Improve provision for Literacy across the school based on the EEF’s key recommendations 

• Improve skills of workforce

• Utilise QA support in order to identify areas of best practice

Accelerate Literacy for all Classroom Teachers and Teaching Assistants 
[once per term] 

Provider Name(s):  Gaynor Murphy, Anna Lloyd Williams and Louise Usher

Brief Description: 

• Improve provision for Literacy across the school based on the EEF’s key recommendations 

• Improve skills of workforce

• Utilise QA support in order to identify areas of best practice

• Upskill support staff to ensure effective implementation of literacy intervention programmes

CONTENT PAGE

Page 178



35

ACCELERATING LEARNING

Developing mathematical and numeracy skills in the outdoor provision 

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Focus: sharing ideas on how to develop pupils’ mathematical and numeracy skills outdoors through a range of  

 rich learning experiences(many of the activities linked to the topic of ‘Christmas’ and the use of natural    

 resources and loose parts ).Sharing ideas how to develop maths and numeracy skills which can be adapted to  

 your current situation

• Activities to support overall development of personal and social skills and their well-being

• Suitable for Nursery – Year 2 teachers and TAs

Following the live webinar, a recording will be available within the ‘Webinars’ section on GwE Support Centre.

Foundation Phase Accelerated Learning Model and examples of activities that 
exemplify the model  

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Guidance on each section of the Accelerated Learning Model in Foundation Phase

• Examples of activities, exemplifying the different sections of the model for Nursery/Reception and Year 1 and 2

 Recording available within the ‘Webinars’ section of GwE Support Centre.

CONTENT PAGE

Page 179



36

ACCELERATING LEARNING

Precision Teaching and SAFMEDS – Primary and Secondary Numeracy Webinar 

Provider Name(s):  Kaydee Owen (Bangor University), Manon Davies (Primary), Sian Caldwell (Secondary)

Brief Description: 

• Evidence based numeracy strategy to support learners develop fluency in specific mathematical skills

• Introduction to new Precision Teaching and SAFMEDS resources, its online application and the comprehensive  

 support package to help families apply the Precision Teaching and SAFMEDS strategy at home

• Online access to full SAFMEDS training for any schools/members of staff that have not previously attended   

 SAFMEDS training. Members of staff who have attended training before can also use this training as a refresher

• Practical guidance and support implementation available from dedicated Bangor University staff via email and  

 phone

 https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary 

Accelerating Learning Programme – Primary Literacy & Numeracy Webinar  

Provider Name(s):  Manon Davies, Vicky Lees, Joanne Davies, Anna Hughes and Gwawr Thomas

Brief Description: 

• Examples of Literacy and Numeracy learning sequences and review of evidence based teaching packages

• Effective planning frameworks for discrete teaching of specific literacy and numeracy skills, flexible for use   

 at home, school or as blended models; exemplifying cross-curricular responsibilities, use of outdoors to support  

 learning and well-being, DCF and other innovations in provision through holistic learning experiences

• Comprehensive review of teaching strategies and online programmes in literacy and numeracy to provide   

 educators with information to make informed, evidence-based decisions to achieve the best impact on pupil  

 outcomes

 https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary 

CONTENT PAGE

Page 180

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary
https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary 


37

ACCELERATING LEARNING

’Headsprout’ reading programme- overview and supporting information webinar 

Provider Name(s):  Vicky Lees / Sarah Roberts (Bangor University)

Brief Description: 

• Introduction to the reading programme, its online application and the comprehensive support package to help  

 families apply the Headsprout strategy at home

• Programmes comprises of early reading, reading comprehension and advanced reading

• Practical information about implementation and home/school support available from dedicated Bangor   

 university staff

• Implementation support via email and phone

 https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary 

‘Repeated reading and high frequency words’ reading fluency programme webinar  

Provider Name(s):  Vicky Lees / Bangor University Researchers

Brief Description: 

• Introduction to the free reading support programme

• Repeated Reading is a reading intervention which supports pupils to develop oral reading fluency of passages of  

 text

• High Frequency Words fluency intervention is a specific approach to improving the fluency of reading

• Ongoing training, guidance and support information

‘Remote Instruction in Language and Literacy’ (RILL) Reading and Spelling 
Programme Webinar   

Provider Name(s):  Vicky Lees / Bangor University Researchers

Brief Description: 

• Introduction to the free 8 week evidence based reading and spelling programme, supporting learners to develop  

 phonology, vocabulary, word reading and spelling, through live (synchronous) and remote (asynchronous)   

 instruction

• Includes a comprehensive support package to help families access the programme at home

• Access to full RILL training for staff and families

• Ongoing implementation support via email and phone

CONTENT PAGE

Page 181

https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/gwewebinars/primary 


38

ACCELERATING LEARNING

Accelerate Literacy for all Classroom Teachers and Teaching Assistants 
(once per term) 

Provider Name(s):  Gaynor Murphy, Anna Lloyd Williams and Louise Usher

Brief Description: 

• Improve provision for Literacy across the school based on the EEF’s key recommendations 

• Improve skills of workforce

• Utilise QA support in order to identify areas of best practice

• Upskill support staff to ensure effective implementation of literacy intervention programmes 

“Your Voice” (GwE) Oracy Plan – Voice21  

Provider Name(s): GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• Oracy promotional scheme in KS3 as well as transition to KS2

• This scheme is based on the principles of teaching Voice21 (School21)

• Support the ‘Accelerated Learning’ by focusing on oracy within that plan

• Build and develop on schemes that have already been successful e.g. ‘llafaredd@gwe’ and the ‘Gwefeillio’ plan 

Support children to use Welsh as a second language   

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• Resources on Hwb to support parents of children who attend a Welsh-medium school or are learning Welsh in  

 an English-medium or bilingual school

• Information and help in the form of software for checking Welsh spelling and grammar

• Distance learning resources for all ages also available in one place

• A video clip by Enlli Thomas suitable for parents on “Supporting children to use Welsh”

CONTENT PAGE

Page 182



DIGITAL

CONTENT PAGE

Page 183



40

DIGITAL

Google for Education 

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts 

Brief Description: 

• On-line courses split into three tiers - 1. Google Core Apps 2. Google Classroom (Foundation) 3. Google    

 Classroom (Intermediate) 

• Each course is approximately 45 minutes and includes a series of videos, practical tasks and an assessment at  

 the end 

• Suitable for teachers who are keen to develop their skills through their own initiative, or for schools to use in  

 staff training sessions, twilight sessions or INSET days. 

• Suitable for all sectors 

• Located on the digital learning page in the support centre

Adobe Spark   

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• On-line courses introducing elements of Adobe Spark – Spark Post / Spark Video / Spark Page  

• Each element can be completed individually (approximately 15 minutes each), or the course may be completed  

 in full. It includes practical tasks and a final assessment (approximately 70-80 minutes)

• Suitable for teachers who are keen to develop their skills through their own initiative, or for schools to use in  

 staff training sessions, twilight sessions or INSET days

• Suitable for all sectors  

• Located on the digital learning page in the support centre

Flipgrid   

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• On-line courses split into two tiers - 1.  Flipgrid - Foundation 2. Flipgrid - Intermediate  

• Each course is approximately 45 minutes and includes a series of videos, practical tasks and an assessment at  

 the end 

• Suitable for teachers who are keen to develop their skills through their own initiative, or for schools to use in  

 staff training sessions, twilight sessions or INSET days

• Suitable for all sectors 

• Located on the digital learning page in the support centre

CONTENT PAGE

Page 184



41

DIGITAL

j2e 

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts 

Brief Description: 

• On-line courses introducing elements of j2e - Creating Classrooms / Groups + j2homework / j2e5 + j2whiteboard  

 + j2blast / jit5 + j2whiteboard + j2blast / j2data  

• Each course is approximately 45 minutes and includes a series of videos, practical tasks and an assessment at  

 the end 

• Suitable for teachers who are keen to develop their skills through their own initiative, or for schools to use in  

 staff training sessions, twilight sessions or INSET days 

• Suitable for primary schools 

• Located on the digital learning page in the support centre

360 Safe Cymru - live / on demand Webinar   

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• An introduction to digital safety self-evaluation software, 360 Safe Cymru 

• Looking at the benefits of using the software 

• Provide an overview of the templates and policies available 

• A live webinar to provide opportunities to ask questions, but it will also be available on demand - suitable for all  

 sectors

360 Safe Cymru - sessions for clusters or alliances    

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• Practical training on how to use the digital safety self-evaluation tool

• An opportunity for cluster schools to become familiar with the system and its content 

• An opportunity for cluster schools to collaborate on identifying priorities and planning for improvement

• Suitable for all sectors  

CONTENT PAGE

Page 185



42

DIGITAL

360 Digi Cymru 

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts 

Brief Description: 

• A webinar to launch and raise awareness of the new digital safety self-evaluation tool - 360 Digi Cymru

• An opportunity to see the system in action and to discuss the main benefits of using it

• An opportunity to see how the school can use the tool to identify strengths and weaknesses, plan for    

 improvement and develop specific aspects of provision to raise standards in digital learning

• Suitable for all sectors  

360 Digi Cymru - sessions for clusters or alliances   

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• Practical training on how to use the new self-evaluation tool - 360 Digi Cymru 

• An opportunity to become familiar with the system and its content

• An opportunity for cluster schools to collaborate on identifying priorities and planning for improvement

• Suitable for all sectors  

Digital Resilience    

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• A series of events to raise awareness of online safety and digital resilience

• Discuss strategic leadership in this area, teaching and learning and steps that teachers and learners can take to  

 safeguard themselves

• Suitable for all sectors   

Effective use of apps    

Provider Name(s):  Gwion Clarke and Hywel Roberts

Brief Description: 

• On-line courses introducing possible examples of using apps effectively

• Each course is approximately 45 minutes and includes a series of videos and examples 

• Suitable for teachers who are keen to develop their skills through their own initiative, or for schools to use in  

 staff training sessions - material is available on demand

• Suitable for primary schools 

CONTENT PAGE

Page 186



43

DIGITAL

Digital Skills across the Curriculum for NQTs 

Provider Name(s):  Ieuan Jones 

Brief Description: 

• Ensure that learners have relevant high-level digital skills to excel in new jobs of the future

• Use the relevant technologies and skills to transform the digital competence of our learners

• Take advantage of opportunities to improve the standard of pedagogy, while aiming to become better teachers

• Make wide use of Hwb (the learning platform for Wales) to promote learning and teaching across the curriculum

Effective use of digital tools to support the learning either at school or through 
distance or blended learning   

Provider Name(s):  Foundation Phase Team

Brief Description: 

• Use of adobe spark video/post to introduce and present activities

• Effective use of ‘See-saw’ both at home and at school

• Good practise case studies

Cluster sessions to be arranged on request through the School Improvement Adviser

Developing digital language and creative thinking through blended learning and 
teaching    

Provider Name(s):  GwE Welsh Language Team

Brief Description: 

• Fit into the ‘Accelerated Learning’ scheme

• Linguistically equip our learners to develop digital creative skills and thinking

• Build confidence and up-skill teachers to experiment on digital platforms

• Training and workshops leading to the sharing of good practice

CONTENT PAGE

Page 187



☎ 0300 500 8087

💻 www.gwenorth.wales

📧 post@gwenorth.wales

Page 188



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 28th January 2021 

Lead Member / Officer Huw Hilditch-Roberts / Geraint Davies (Head of Education) 

Report author Geraint Davies (Head of Education) / Ian Land (Education 

Planning and Resources Manager) 

Title Learner Transport: Provision for Welsh Medium Education 

and the Definition of Category 1 Schools in the County 

1. What is the report about? 

1.1 To provide an overview of school transport requirements as they apply to Welsh 

Language Schools under the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008; which is 

incorporated in the Authority’s own Learner Transport Policy 2018. 

 

1.2 To provide an overview of the Welsh Language Categorisation of schools and how 

this applies to School Transport.  

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

2.1 At the request of Members, to provide Performance Scrutiny Committee with details 

of the Council’s Learner Transport Policy as it applies to Category 1 & 2 Secondary 

Schools; and the definition of ‘suitable school’ in relation to Category 1 & 2 if parental 

preference opts for Category 1. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

3.1 That the Committee discusses the contents of the report and confirms that no change 

is required to the Authority’s Policy due to: 

   

Page 189

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 The Learner Transport Policy 2018 fully meeting the current statutory 

requirements under Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008; which has been tested 

legally prior to being adopted in 2018. 

 Currently changing how Category 1 & 2 Welsh Language Secondary Schools are 

dealt with in terms of transport would undermine the provision of Education in 

Denbighshire’s Category 2 Welsh Schools. 

 It would also open up the Authority to challenge in regard to decisions previously 

made, or future decisions made if these contradict the Legislation, Policy and 

Guidance.  

 Welsh Government have consulted on potential future changes to The Learner 

Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 in January 2021, and the outcome of the process 

could again change future requirements across a number of areas, including for 

Welsh medium schools. 

 Welsh Government are presently consulting on ‘School categories according to 

Welsh-medium provision’ and the outcome of this process may also change the 

current categorisation for all Welsh medium schools and any linked Legislation.  

4. Report details 

4.1 In the context of The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008, Section 10 of the 

Legislation covers ‘Promoting Access to Welsh Medium Education’. This states:      

  Each local authority and the Welsh Ministers must promote access to education 

and training through the medium of the Welsh language when exercising functions 

under this Measure.  

 

4.2 In practical terms, the way all Authorities in Wales meet this requirement is to provide 

free transport to the nearest suitable Welsh medium school from home; if this is a 

parental / carer choice.  This therefore permits families to either get free transport to 

their nearest suitable English or Welsh medium school. However, this provision is still 

dependent upon meeting the distance criteria stipulated in the Measure:   

 Free transport is only provided for those who live over 2 miles from their nearest 

suitable primary schools; and  

 Free transport is only provided for those who live over 3 miles from their nearest 

suitable secondary school.  

 

Page 190



 
 

 For those who live below these distances there is an expectation that learners should 

walk to school if it is safe do so.   

 

4.3 In regard to the duty placed on the Local Authority relating to ‘nearest suitable school’ 

Section 2 (3) of the Measure states:  

 (3) For the purposes of subsection (2), the "learner travel needs" of a local 

authority's area are the needs of learners who are ordinarily resident in the 

authority's area for suitable travel arrangements each day to and from the 

relevant places where they receive education or training. 

 

 In relation to the Measure’s definition of ‘relevant place’ Section 4 (7b) firstly states: 

 (7) In considering whether travel arrangements are necessary for the purposes of this 

section a local authority — 

 (b) may have regard in particular to whether or not the child is attending the nearest 

suitable relevant place to the child's place of ordinary residence. 

 Furthermore, the Measure provides a definition of ‘Relevant Place’ in Section 4 (9): 

 (9) For the purposes of this section, a relevant place is suitable for a child if the 

education or training provided there is suitable, having regard to the age, ability 

and aptitudes of the child and any learning difficulties he or she may have. 

 

4.4 This aspect of the Measure is incorporated in Section 2.3 of Denbighshire’s Learner 

Transport Policy 2018: 

  2.3 Nearest Suitable School 

 The nearest suitable school is a school that provides education appropriate to 

the age, ability, aptitude of the learner, and any learning needs that they may 

have. It will normally be a school in the area the learner resides, or another 

school (e.g. out of county) if this is closer to home. 

 (The full version of Denbighshire’s Learner Transport Policy 2018 is shown in Appendix 1)  

 

4.5 When assessing eligibility against the Policy, Education Support must therefore 

consider which school is the nearest from the learners’ home location. Facilities on 

Denbighshire’s website under ‘My Property’ assist families to assess which school is 

their nearest before they make an application for a school place and/or transport. 

Education Support staff are also available to advise which is the nearest on request.  

Page 191



 
 

 

4.6 In Denbighshire’s Learner Transport Policy 2018, if transport is requested on the 

basis of Welsh Language, the Education Support team must follow Section 3.3 of our 

Policy: 

 3.3 Welsh or English Medium Education  

In accordance with section 10 of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008, the 

Authority promotes access to Welsh medium education by providing 

discretionary transport to the nearest suitable Welsh or English medium 

education, if this is parental / carer preference. This will apply even if the school 

is not their nearest suitable school.  

 

For Welsh Medium education it would be a school which is categorised as 

either 1 or 2 within the Welsh Government guidelines on Welsh Medium 

Provision. For category 2 it would a school where at least 80% of subjects 

(excluding Welsh and English) are taught through the medium of Welsh, but are 

also taught through the medium of English. The table in Appendix 1 shows 

Denbighshire’s Welsh Medium School categories.  

 

If the nearest Welsh or English medium school is outside of County then 

transport would still be provided by the Authority. Preference will only be 

considered against Welsh Medium or English Medium schools. The distance 

criteria in section 2.2 will still apply. 

 

4.7 For requests of free transport to a Welsh Medium Primary or Secondary School, 

Education Support calculates individual distances from a learner’s home location to 

their requested school. If the Welsh medium school is not the nearest suitable and 

the provisions in Section 3.3 and 2.2 of our Policy are not met, then transport will be 

refused.  In any method which uses learners’ home locations to calculate distance to 

school, there will always be a percentage of learners who don’t get free transport. 

However, this is how the Legislation is designed to be used and Authorities are not 

expected to provide transport for every learner, only for those where there is a duty. 

 

  

Page 192



 
 

4.8 Welsh School Categorisation 

Welsh Government provides a definition for Welsh medium school categorisation in 

their document ‘Defining schools according to Welsh medium provision’. This is 

shown in the Appendix 2.  Categorisation as it relates Category 1 and 2 in Secondary 

Education is shown on pages 11 and 12 of that document. 

 

4.9  Welsh Government are presently consulting on ‘School categories according to 

Welsh-medium provision’. This consultation is looking at how Primary and Secondary 

school are categorised.  The Authority will be responding to this consultation; which 

will be concluded on 26th March 2021. The outcome of this consultation may hold 

implications for any associated policies which Authorities have regarding Welsh in 

Education, including transport.  Welsh Government may also seek to align other 

Legislation, such as the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008, and the Authority will 

have to await the conclusion of both consultations. 

 

4.10 Section 3.3 of the Authority’s Policy highlights that schools which are categorised as 

either 1 or 2 (where at least 80% of subjects (excluding Welsh and English) are 

taught through the medium of Welsh) should be treated as the same. This is also the 

same in the Authority’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), shown in 

Appendix 3.  

 

4.11 Welsh Government Consultation on Learner Travel  

 Welsh Government issued a consultation to Local Authorities in January 2021 asking 

for data and views on potential changes regarding The Learner Travel (Wales) 

Measure 2008.  Denbighshire has responded to this consultation. 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities? 

5.1 The services described herein are all in support of the priority of improving 

Education, in-line with the priority on Young People, and Denbighshire being a place 

where younger people will want to live and work and have the skills to do so. 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

6.1. This report is for discussion purposes. No changes to the process or Policy have 

been requested.  However, any changes to School Transport can only come into 

Page 193



 
 

effect following an appropriate consultation which must be concluded and approved a 

full school year in advance.  This is governed under Statute.  Any changes will also 

have an impact on the associated School Transport budget and changes to Policy 

would also need to be tested legally before implementation.   

7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 
Assessment? 

7.1 A Well-being Impact assessment is not required since this report is providing 

information only relating to existing Legislation and Denbighshire’s Learner Transport 

Policy; which itself was Impact Assessed when developed and approved in 2017. 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 
and others? 

8.1 This report is for discussion; however, a linked report was provided to the 

Communities Scrutiny Committee in March 2018 which considered ‘School Cluster 

Changes’ following a member led Working Group.  The report from March 2018 was 

provided in light of a linked request from a Denbighshire Welsh Medium School to 

reconsider cluster arrangements due to perceived School Transport issues.     

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

There are no direct financial implications of this report. However it is important to note 

that the financial consequences of any proposed changes to school transport are 

considered at the earliest possible opportunity. Significant investment has gone into 

School Transport in recent years and it is likely to remain an area of financial pressure 

when schools return to some form of normality. 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 
reduce them? 

10.1 This report is a discussion paper and no proposed changes have been put forward; 

however, see Section 3 on Recommendations which outlines possible risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1 The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 

11.2 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000  

Page 194



 
 

11.3 Section 7.4.1 of the Council’s Constitution sets out Scrutiny’s powers with respect of 

policy development and review. 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Denbighshire County Council 

Education and Children Services 

Learner Transport Policy 

Document Control 

Document Amendment Record 

Sept 2014 Version 1 

Sept 2018 Version 2 

Appendix 1

Page 197



 
 

CONTENTS  

 PAGE   PAGE 

1. INTRODUCTION 3  5. OTHER INFORMATION  

   5.1  Nursery/Reception Class 13 

2. HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT   5.2  Out of School Clubs 13 

2.1   Qualifying Schools 4  5.3  Policy Changes 13 

2.2   Distance Criteria 4  5.4 Impact of Transport 13 

2.3   Nearest Suitable School 4  5.5 Sustainable Modes of Transport 13 

2.4   Feeder Schools 4    

2.5   Measurement of Distance 4  6. TRANSPORT PROVISION  

2.6   Primary and Secondary School 
         Transport 

5 
 6.1  Council Transport Provision 14 

 6.2  Concessionary Transport 14 

2.7   Parental / Carer Preference of  
         School 

5 
 6.3  Transport Payments 14 

6.4  Behaviour on Transport 14 

2.8   School Admissions 5  6.5  Monitoring of Services 15 

2.9   Pick-up Points 6  6.6  DBS Checks 15 

2.10 Hazardous Routes 7  6.7  Adverse Weather Conditions 15 

2.11 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 7    

2.12 Looked After Children (LAC) 8  7. APPEALS  

2.13 Dual Residency 8  7.1  The Right to Appeal 16 

   7.2  Stage 1 – Review of Decisions 16 

3. DISCRETIONARY TRANSPORT   7.3  Stage 2 – Appeal 16 

3.1   Discretionary Arrangements 9    

3.2   Faith Schools 9  8. CONTACT DETAILS 18 

3.3   Welsh Medium Education 9    

3.4   Feeders School Arrangements 9  9. LINKS TO RELEVENT DOCUMENTS 19 

3.5   Post 16 Transport 10    

3.6   School Reorganisation 10  10. APPENIDIX 1 20 

3.7   Moving Home 10  11. APPENIDIX 2 22 

3.8   Managed School Transfers 11    

3.9 Withdrawal of Transport 11    

3.10 Other Discretionary Provisions   11    

     

4. MAKING AN APPLICATION     

4.1  When to make an application 12    

4.2  How to apply  12    

4.3  Notification 12    

4.4  Changes during the school year 12    

4.5  Parent Handbook  12    

     

Page 198



 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Denbighshire County Council has a duty to provide school transport in accordance with 
Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 and the Learner Travel: Statutory Provision and 
Operational Guidance 2014.  This Learner Transport Policy outlines how the Authority 
provides transport for Denbighshire’s school and college pupils, and the eligibility criteria.   
 

1.2 To meet this requirement the Authority will have regard to the following when making 
arrangements for learners who are ordinarily resident within Denbighshire: 

 

 The age of the learner 
 The distance from home to school 
 The nature of the route from home to school 
 Requests for Welsh or English medium education 
 Requests for Faith based education 
 The needs of learners with disabilities or additional learning needs 
 The needs of learners who are ‘looked after’ by the Local Authority 
 The needs of learners with dual residency 

 

1.3 This list is not exhaustive and the Authority must consider each learner’s individual 
circumstances, taking into account any representations made by parents/carers and 
relevant professionals.  In certain circumstances the Measure permits the Local Authority 
to apply discretion in relation to the services provided.  These discretionary elements are 
outlined in section 3 of this policy. 

 

1.4 Transport for post 16 students to Further Education (F.E.) Colleges is provided under the 
policy as a discretionary arrangement. See section 3.5. 

 

1.5 The Authority must provide free home to school transport in certain circumstances. 
These are outlined in section 2.  The duty to provide such transport only applies if a child 
is ordinarily resident in the Authority’s area. 

 

1.6 The Local Authority will endeavour to provide safe, efficient and cost effective transport 
to those learners who qualify under this policy at all times. 

 

1.7 There may be circumstances where additional or alternative transport arrangements would 
prove more cost effective than the provision stated in the policy.  The Local Authority 
therefore reserves the right to apply discretion where appropriate if it can be 
demonstrated that the alternative is more cost effective and efficient. 

 

1.8 Home to school transport is provided for eligible learners between their home address 
or allocated pick-up point, and the qualifying school where they are registered.  Free 
transport is not provided from or to addresses of other family members or friends, 
parent’s work addresses or child care facilities of any sort.  

 

1.9 This Policy is effective from 1st September 2018.  Transport arrangements assessed and 
provided under Denbighshire’s previous policy will continue unless there is a material 
change in circumstances which would necessitate a new application being made, e.g. 
moving home or school / F.E. College.  Details of how to make an application are 
outlined in section 4. 

Page 199



 
 

2.  HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT 
 

2.1 Qualifying Schools 
Denbighshire County Council will provide free transport to learners who meet the 
entitlement criteria set out in this policy.  The policy refers to transport to and from 
qualifying schools in the following categories: 

  
 

 a community, controlled, foundation or voluntary aided school  

 a non-maintained special school  

 a pupil referral unit  

 an independent school named in a statement of special educational needs 

 a voluntary aided trust school 
 

2.2 Distance Criteria  

 The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 stipulates that free transport will only be 

provided to learners of compulsory school age if the distance from home to their 

nearest suitable school is at least: 
 

(a) 2 miles for Primary School pupils 

(b) 3 miles for Secondary School pupils 
 

2.3  Nearest Suitable School  
 The nearest suitable school is a school that provides education appropriate to the age, 

ability, aptitude of the learner, and any learning needs that they may have.  It will 
normally be a school in the area the learner resides, or another school (e.g. out of 
county) if this is closer to home. 

 

 Denbighshire residents can find their nearest local school by visiting the ‘My Property’ 
link on Denbighshire’s website homepage, or by visiting:  

 gov.wales/my-local-school-guide 
 

2.4 Feeder Schools 
 The Authority recognises that certain Primary schools are natural feeders for certain 

Secondary Schools.  The relationships between these schools are shown in Appendix 1.  
Under discretionary arrangements the Authority may also provide free school transport 
to the designated secondary school, even if this is not the nearest suitable secondary 
school.  Further information is shown in section 3.4 under Discretionary School 
Transport.  

 

2.5 Measurement of Distance 
For assessments under the distance criteria in section 2.2, the calculation from home to 
school will adhere to guidance provided in the Learner Travel: Statutory Provision and 
Operational Guidance 2014.  The route to school will be measured from the home 
boundary to the nearest school gate, and may include public footpaths, bridleways and 
other pathways, as well as adopted roads.  It is not necessarily the shortest distance by 
road.   
 

Page 200

https://maps.denbighshire.gov.uk/MyDenbighshire.aspx
https://gov.wales/my-local-school-guide


 
 

 
Where learners are reasonably expected to walk to school, the distance is measured by 
the shortest available route along which a child, accompanied as necessary by a 
responsible adult, may walk in reasonable safety; whilst having regard to the age and 
needs to the child.  If the property is on an un-adopted road it will be measured from 
where the property meets the adopted highway or adopted path.  All calculations of 
distance will be made using the Authority’s chosen software package.  

 

 For assessments over the distance criteria mentioned in section 2.2, the distance from 
home to nearest suitable school will be measured along the shortest available road 
route, i.e. from the home boundary to the nearest school gate using the Authority’s 
chosen software package.  However, if the property in on an un-adopted road it will be 
measured from where the un-adopted road meets the adopted highway.  

 

 For all calculations the measurement of distance will be to the nearest 0.1 of a mile, as 
measured by the Authority’s chosen software package. 

   

  Note: Parents / Carers should also refer to section 5.5 for information on sustainable 
modes of transport to school.  

 
2.6 Primary and Secondary School Transport  

For Primary and Secondary Schools, the Authority will provide free transport to the 
nearest suitable school in line with the criteria of this policy.  Discretionary provision 
may also apply, by virtue of the criteria shown in section 3. 

 

2.7 Parental / Carer Preference of School 
Parents / carers have the right to express a preference for admission of their child to 
any school, subject to availability of places.  If the application is accepted, the parent / 
carer loses their entitlement to free transport if it is not their nearest suitable school or, 
the designated secondary school for the primary feeder school they attended. 

 

This is consistent with meeting the requirements as outlined in the Learner Travel: 
Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance June 2014. 

 
IMPORTANT -  Parents/ Carers are advised to consider the school transport 

implications before making an expression of preference for a school 
place. See section 2.3 on nearest suitable school and section 5.4 on the 
impact of transport.  

 
2.8  School Admissions 

If parents / carers have been unable to secure a place for their child at their nearest 
suitable school, or if their designated secondary school (from the appropriate feeder 
primary school) is full, then free transport will be provided to the next nearest suitable 
school, providing the distance criteria in section 2.2 is met. 
 
 
 

Page 201



 
 

2.9 Pick-up Points 
Denbighshire County Council considers that in general the provision of shared pick-up 
points can be part of a suitable transport arrangement within the meaning of section 3 
of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008.   
 

For learners who qualify for transport there will be an expectation that they will depart 
from a pre-determined pick-up point, unless otherwise stated when the application is 
processed.  The Authority will endeavour to locate pick-up points reasonably close from 
to learners’ homes, and no more than the statutory distances shown in section 2.2.  This 
is in expectation that parents / carers will be able to make use of their designated pick-
up point in order to ensure for their child a safe and timely journey to and from school.  
Any measurement of distance will follow the principles as outlined in section 2.5.  The 
assessment will also have regard to hazardous routes, following the principles set out in 
section 2.10.   

 

It is parental / carer’s responsibility to ensure that their child reaches the pick-up point 
in a timely manner and that they board the vehicle safely.  They must also ensure there 
is a responsible adult to meet their child on the return journey, if the age or needs of 
the child call for the provision of an escort. 
 

If a responsible adult is not there to meet a child, whose age or needs call for the 
provision of an escort, then additional costs will be recharged; as it may be necessary 
for Officers to seek guidance from Children Services and, if required, arrange for the 
child to be taken to a Local Authority place of care. 
 

Note:  Nothing in this Policy creates an expectation that all children should walk to the 
pick-up points, as in some cases this will be inappropriate.  The Authority keeps a register 
of known hazardous routes, and this forms part of the consideration given when assessing 
transport applications. However, if a parent / carer believes that the use of a pick-up 
point is not suitable for their child, they should bring their concerns to the attention of 
the Authority, which will then investigate the circumstances to determine whether any 
additional or alternative transport arrangements are required for that child; to ensure 
that the requirements of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 are met. 

 

The Local Authority reserves the right to review the pick-up points to ensure a safe 
route is maintained at all times and subject to ensuring the most cost effective provision 
is in place.   
 

Once eligibility for school transport has been confirmed, Denbighshire’s Passenger 
Transport department will contact parents / carers and provide details regarding the 
pick-up point used and the timings of the service. 
 

Where feeder services are used to transport learners to pick-up points, learners must 
stay with the taxi until the ongoing vehicle has arrived. Drivers are encouraged to report 
any learners refusing to do this to Passenger Transport. 

 

Page 202



 
 

Contractors providing these services have been instructed to wait with learners to 
ensure they access the ongoing vehicle. Parents / carers are also encouraged to report 
any instances where drivers are not doing this to Passenger Transport. 
 

Information regarding the locations of pick-up points across Denbighshire is available on 
the Council’s website. See section 9 for relevant links. 

 

2.10 Hazardous Routes 
For learners who live below the statutory qualifying distance shown in section 2.2, the 
Local Authority will provide transport to school if the route is deemed hazardous.  
Hazardous routes are assessed by an appropriate Denbighshire Road Safety Officer 
following the guidance provided in the Learner Travel: Statutory Provision and 
Operational Guidance June 2014.   
 

Where pick-up points are used the Local Authority will also consider if there are 
hazardous routes which could reasonably prevent learners walking to these locations, 
accompanied as necessary by a responsible adult.  In such instances the Local Authority, 
after assessment, will provide transport from home to the pick-up point, or direct to 
school (whichever is more efficient). 
 

It is noted that where parents / carers have exercised their right to a school by parental 
/ carer preference (see section 2.7), the requirement for arranging home to school 
transport is the responsibility of the parent / carer.  
 

The Local Authority will maintain a register of all Denbighshire routes which have been 
assessed, and as new routes are evaluated these will be added to the register.  The 
Authority will review the complete register every 5 years to ensure that all routes are 
still categorised correctly.  Information regarding assessed hazardous routes within 
Denbighshire is available on the Council’s website. See section 9 for relevant links. 
 

If a parent / carer believes that a particular route is hazardous they should bring their 
concerns to the attention of the Authority, which will then investigate to determine 
whether any additional or alternative transport arrangements are required. 

 

2.11 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) 
The Local Authority will make suitable and relevant educational provision for all children 
with additional learning needs to ensure they are able to develop to their maximum 
potential.  

 

The level of need is assessed by relevant professionals in Denbighshire’s Education 
department, and this informs the type of transport provided.  Transport will then be 
provided in line with the advice given and reviewed on an annual basis. 
 

If a child has a Statement of Special Educational Needs or an Education Health and Care 
Plan (EHC Plan), school transport may be included as part of the non-educational 
provisions made for the child as part of their Statement/EHC Plan. If it is, then transport 

Page 203



 
 

will be provided.  However, free transport may not be provided if parents / carers 
exercise their right to preference of school which is not the nearest suitable (See section 
2.7). 
 

If school transport is not included in a child’s Statement/EHC Plan then they may still be 
entitled to home to school transport under the policy provided that the school they are 
attending is the nearest appropriate school with a place or if they have attended a 
designated primary feeder school for a particular secondary school; subject to the 
eligibility criteria being met.  
 

2.12      Looked After Children (LAC) 
A Looked After Child is the term used within the Children Act 1989 to describe children 
who are under the age of 18 and are provided with care and accommodation by the 
Local Authority’s Children Services department; often with foster carers. 
 

The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 states the same assessment criteria shall 
apply to Looked After Children as to children who are not looked after; however, there 
is no requirement that they attend the nearest suitable school to their home or 
placement address. 
 

If the Looked After Child attends a school closer than the minimum distance shown in 
section 2.2, free transport will not be provided. Exceptions by virtue of the criteria 
shown in section 3 may also still apply. 
 

If the Looked After Child attends a school over the distance shown in section 2.2, 
transport will be provided to the appropriate school to ensure minimum disruption and 
continuity of education, while also maintaining child wellbeing. For journeys from 
placements out of county, or entailing long journeys, a reasonableness test may be 
applied. This test will have regard to the distance, time of journey and the proximity of 
other suitable establishments. 

 

2.13  Dual Residency  
The Local Authority will provide transport for learners who, due to their family 
circumstances, may reside in more than one residence; with at least one residence 
being in Denbighshire.  However, this is provided that the school attended is the nearest 
suitable school from the main residence, or agreed to be the most suitable school taking 
account of the locations of both residences.  Proof of dual residency must be provided 
and the main residence is usually the property to which child benefit is paid. 
 

If the second residence is in a different Local Authority area, then it is the responsibility 
of that Authority to consider transport arrangements for that route to school.  Parents 
/carers should therefore apply to the relevant Local Authority.   
 
 
 
 

Page 204



 
 

3. DISCRETIONARY SCHOOL TRANSPORT 
 

3.1 Discretionary Arrangements 
 Within the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008, discretionary arrangements can be 

made under section 6 of the Measure. In some instances the cost of such arrangements 
can be charged to the parent / carer responsible. 

 

3.2 Faith Schools 
 On a discretionary basis the Authority will provide transport to the nearest suitable Faith 
school if this is the parental / carers preference.  This will apply even if the school is not their 
nearest suitable school.  The distance criteria in section 2.2 will still apply.  See the table in 
Appendix 1 for further details of Faith schools.  

 

If the nearest suitable Faith school is outside of County then transport would still be 
provided by the Authority.   
 

Where parents / carers have specifically cited Faith based education and the nearest 
suitable Faith school has no available places, then the next suitable Faith based school 
will be considered.  

 

3.3  Welsh or English Medium Education 
 In accordance with section 10 of the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008, the Authority 
promotes access to Welsh medium education by providing discretionary transport to the 
nearest suitable Welsh or English medium education, if this is parental / carer preference. 
This will apply even if the school is not their nearest suitable school.   
 

For Welsh Medium education it would be a school which is categorised as either 1 or 2 
within the Welsh Government guidelines on Welsh Medium Provision.  For category 2 it 
would a school where at least 80% of subjects (excluding Welsh and English) are taught 
through the medium of Welsh, but are also taught through the medium of English. The 
table in Appendix 1 shows Denbighshire’s Welsh Medium School categories. 

   

If the nearest Welsh or English medium school is outside of County then transport would 
still be provided by the Authority.  Preference will only be considered against Welsh 
Medium or English Medium schools.   The distance criteria in section 2.2 will still apply. 
 

3.4 Feeder School Arrangements 
 On a discretionary basis the Authority recognises that certain Primary schools are natural 

feeder schools for certain Secondary schools.  Therefore in regard to Secondary 
education, free school transport may be provided to either the nearest suitable 
Secondary School or the recognised feeder Secondary school; providing that the learner 
lives over the distance criteria in section 2.2, and the journey is agreed to be reasonable; 
this criteria is shown below.     

 

 The Authority reserves the right to apply a test of reasonableness to those parents / 
carers requesting secondary school transport on the basis of feeder schools.  To receive 
free transport on this basis the learner must: 
 

Page 205



 
 

• Have been attending their nearest suitable primary school from their home 
location as assessed at the point of admission. 

• Meet the distance criteria in section 2.2 for secondary schools.  
• If learners move house before commencing secondary school, their entitlement 

will require re-assessment, as per the criteria shown in section 2.  
• In instances where learners have not attended their nearest suitable primary 

school by parental / carer preference, section 3.4 will not apply.  The assessment 
of school transport applications will then be based solely on nearest suitable 
Secondary school. 

 

3.5 Post 16 Transport 
The Local Authority provides discretionary transport beyond statutory school age where a 
Denbighshire learner resides 3 miles or more from the nearest suitable school or F.E. 
college. The learner must be studying full time and be less than 19 years of age on 1st 
September of the academic year in which the course is taken. Transport will be provided 
to the nearest secondary school designated by the Authority to serve the learner’s home 
address only, or in the case of full-time vocational courses, to the nearest F.E. college. 
Transport between learning establishments working in a partnership with each other is 
provided by those partners. 

 

3.6 School Reorganisation 
In cases where school reorganisation has taken place, the Local Authority will consider 
the most appropriate options for school transport.  This may include providing free 
transport for a specified period of time dependant on circumstances.  Such arrangements 
will be provided on a discretionary basis and will be documented within the 
reorganisation process; so that relevant schools, governing bodies, parents / carers, and 
any other stakeholders are all aware of the terms of the arrangement.  
 

3.7 Moving Home 
In cases where a learner, who has been in receipt of free school transport, moves home 
part way through the academic year, transport will cease if they are no longer attending 
their nearest suitable school.  
 

If part way through a GCSE year (school years 10 and 11) the Authority will continue to 
provide discretionary transport until the academic years have been completed, i.e. until 
the end of year 11.  
 

This undertaking is dependent upon the learner being ordinarily resident in the 
Authority’s area.  Note: The Local Authority also reserves the right to test the 
reasonableness of the transport requested under this condition, having regard to the 
distance, time of journey and the proximity of other suitable establishments. 
 

All other reassessments of eligibility will follow the criteria set out in section 2. This 
section shall not apply where parents / carers have previously exercised a preference as 
detailed in section 2.7.   
 
 

Page 206



 
 

3.8 Managed School Transfers 
 Where managed school transfers are supported by both the new destination school head 
teacher and Education Services, parents / carers will be aware of this action and be included 
in these discussions at school level.  School transport in these circumstances may be 
supported on a discretionary basis where it forms part of the action and agreement of all 
parties to pursue a change of school in the interests of the learner. 
 

It is the parent / carer’s responsibility to ensure that they fully engage with the Authority 
and the school when pursuing a managed transfer.  These matters need to be verified and 
evidence available. This allows Education Support to make an informed decision based upon 
the evidence supporting the transport request.  

 

Where no evidence is available, and/or where parent / carers refuse to engage in the 
process with the school and Education Services, the transport request will be refused.  
This will be based upon the lack of evidence available for an informed decision to be 
made.   

 

3.9 Withdrawal of Discretionary Transport  
A Local Authority can withdraw the provisions of discretionary school transport, provided 
it has agreed and published the relevant changes to the policy before the 1st October of 
the year preceding the academic year in which the changes will come into force. 

 

3.10 Other Discretionary Provisions  
Other discretionary arrangements regarding school transport can be made under section 
6 of the Measure. The Head of Education and Children Services may apply these powers 
for free transport in cases such as:   
 

• The safeguarding of a learner, or where there is likely to be significant detrimental 
impact to that learner’s welfare.  

• Transport on medical grounds may also be applicable under this criteria, including 
cases where the parent has a disability that restricts the ability of a learner to 
travel to school without transport for period of time; or where a learner is 
temporarily incapacitated through illness or injury.    

• Temporary housing of a family outside of the previous residential area due to 
emergency, normally through the Authority’s Housing Service, to minimise 
disruption of education. 

 

This list is not exhaustive and there may be other circumstances where discretion can be 
applied; however, to ensure consistency of approach regarding discretion evidence may 
be requested from relevant professionals and the assessment will be recorded. 
 

Where short term discretionary transport arrangements are put in place the Authority 
will inform parents / carers when these arrangements are to end.   

 
 
 

Page 207



 
 

4 MAKING A TRANSPORT APPLICATION 
 

4.1 A school / F.E. College transport application is required when: 
 

 Starting Primary School (not nursery) 

 Starting Secondary School 

 Moving into Year 7 in a middle school 

 Going from year 11 to sixth form / F.E. college; or 

 Changing home location or school 
 

4.2 You can make a transport application online at: 
 

 www.denbighshire.gov.uk/schooltransport 
 

Alternatively you can download the application from the website, or request a form be 
posted to you, and send to the Authority address shown on the form. 

 

4.3  The Authority will inform you of the outcome of the application within 15 working days of 
receiving your form.  If you are successful, you will receive details of pick-up times and 
locations during the summer holidays for September starts, or as soon as possible for 
applications mid school year.  These details will be sent to you by Denbighshire’s 
Passenger Transport department. 

 

4.4  If your circumstances change during the school year, you must inform the Local 
Authority.  If for example you move home or change school then you need to reapply for 
school transport at that time.  If you are applying for transport during the school year, 
please do so as soon as you can after your new address is confirmed.  

 
 IMPORTANT – Parents / carers are advised to consider the school transport implications. 

Section 2.3 provides information on nearest suitable school and section 3.7 on moving 
home. 

 

4.5 Full details of all transport related issues can be found in the Denbighshire Parent 
Handbook: 
 
 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/school-admissions  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 208

http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/schooltransport
http://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/school-admissions


 
 

 
5. OTHER INFORMATION 
 

5.1 Nursery Education 
The Authority does not provide transport for children attending nursery school or nursery 
classes at the age of 3 or 4.  Transport is provided for eligible children from the 
commencement of the school year in which the child attains the age of 5 and starts full-
time education, normally in reception class. 

 

5.2  Out of School Clubs  
The Authority will not provide transport to or from out of school clubs (i.e. breakfast club, 
after school clubs etc.) or extra-curricular activities that fall outside the statutory 
curriculum.  It is the parent’s / carer’s responsibility to ensure that appropriate transport 
arrangements are put in place if these services are accessed. 

 

5.3 Policy Changes 
Should it be required to amend this policy, the Authority must follow the requirements as 
set out in the Learner Travel Information (Wales) Regulations 2009.   This requires that 
the Authority consult, agree and publish changes to the policy before the 1st October of 
the year preceding the academic year in which the changes come into force. 
 

Should it be required, the Authority can also issue additional clarification guidance 
alongside this policy. Any such guidance will be available on the Authority’s website.  

 
5.4 Impact of Transport  

Parents / Carers should consider the implications of their school choice on the use of 
private cars and the effect this could have on traffic outside their chosen school.  The 
Authority urges parents / carers to consider active and sustainable transport to their 
school of choice. See Section 5.5 below.  
 
Schools are also encouraged to work with parents / carers and the Authority to consider 
options for developing active and safe ‘walking bus’ facilities to school.  Parents / carers 
should contact their school to enquire about such provisions.  The Authority’s Road 
Safety and Sustainable Transport officers are also available to provide guidance.   

 
5.5 Sustainable Modes of Travel 

Parents / Carers should consider options for active travel to school.  Relevant links are 
provided in section 9 to information on Active Travel Routes in Denbighshire and Sustrans 
website; which shows cycle routes throughout the county.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 209



 
 

 

6.  Transport Provision 
 

6.1  Council Transport Provision  
The Authority will endeavour to provide the most suitable mode of transport for all 
eligible learners that is safe and provides the most cost effective method of transport.  
This may be via bus, coach, minibus, or taxi school contracts, or existing public transport.  
These services and the associated contracts are arranged and managed by Denbighshire’s 
Passenger Transport department.  

 

6.2 Concessionary Transport 
If a learner does not qualify for free school transport as set out in this policy, and there 
are spare seats available on an Authority taxi, minibus and coach services, these may be 
offered as concessionary seats.  The following conditions will apply: 

 

 A reasonable charge per term will be applied.  This will be reviewed annually before 
the new school year.  If the Authority grants a concession parents / carers will be 
charged on a termly basis.  If a learner only partially uses the service, e.g. in the 
morning or afternoon or on particular days, then a full termly charge is payable. 

 Parents / carers may apply for a concession at any time for their child.  Applications will 
be dealt with in the order in which they were received and those agreed must be paid 
for termly.  If a parent / carer successfully applies during a previous academic year, their 
ongoing requirement is recorded ahead of new applications. However, concessions 
cannot be granted until the number of spare seats has been determined, once entitled 
learners are accounted for on a specific vehicle. Passenger Transport cannot therefore 
confirm concessions before the start of the academic year and it may take a number of 
weeks to determine spare seat availability on any given service.  

 Concessions may be withdrawn at short notice when seats become unavailable or if 
they are required for an eligible learner.  In such cases a proportional refund will be 
calculated and given back to the parent / carer.  In such circumstances seven day’s 
written notice will be given. 

 Concessionary passes cannot be issued at short notice at the start of the academic 
year as it is necessary to identify whether there are spare seats on contract vehicles. 

 Concessionary seats would not normally be offered where public transport runs alongside 
school transport or where public transport is the only available option.  In such 
circumstances, parents / carers are expected to use existing public transport. 

 

6.3 Transport Payments 
There may be circumstances where parents can be offered a nominal payment towards 
the cost of transporting their children.  This is an option only used in exceptional 
circumstances, and if there are difficulties in arranging school transport for eligible 
learners.  Parents / carers are under no obligation to accept the offer of reimbursement 
which would usually be a set mileage rate for the miles travelled during two return 
journeys per day; however this may be deemed the most reasonable mode of transport. 

 

6.4 Behaviour on Transport  

Page 210



 
 

 Learners travelling on service or contract vehicles provided by the Authority are expected 
to behave well at all times and comply with the requirements of the School Travel Code, 
see Appendix 2.  This full document is available here. 

 Any Learners who misbehave, cause, or risk causing damage or injury to the vehicle, 
driver or passengers, or in any way threaten the safety of the other passengers and/or 
vehicle, may have their transport eligibility withdrawn.  Any learners who are not entitled 
to free school transport but travel on contract services on a concessionary basis, will also 
be subject to the same rules. 

 

 The behaviour of learners on school transport services is of the utmost importance, so 
parents / carers are therefore expected to support the Authority, the schools, transport 
operators and their staff in maintaining good behaviour. It should be clearly understood 
that in cases of misbehaviour the ultimate sanction is the removal of the right to receive 
transport.  In such cases the responsibility and full cost of transport to and from school 
will then fall to the parent / carer.  

 

 The Authority encourages feedback from service providers and schools regarding use of 
the school transport services provided.  A log will be maintained of incidents and any 
related investigation. If necessary parents / carers will be informed of incidents if it can 
be shown that a child or children have been causing problems.  

 

6.5 Monitoring of Services 
 The Authority reserves the right to randomly check school transport services to ensure 

that those travelling are all eligible. Where learners are found to be travelling who are 
not eligible, Passenger Transport will record these instances and contact the relevant 
parents / carers to inform them of their options.  

 

6.6 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Checks 
 Denbighshire’s Passenger Transport department manage and arrange all the necessary 

school transport contracts with the appropriate service providers.  This includes 
undertaking DBS checks for all drivers and passenger school escorts. Note: school escorts 
are only employed on Primary School Services where deemed appropriate, or if the 
child’s additional learning needs make it appropriate. 

 

6.7 Adverse Weather Conditions 
 Adverse weather can have an impact on school transport services and their continued 

provision; therefore, with safety paramount, the transport providers will take the ultimate 
decision as to whether a service will operate.  In severe weather, especially if forecasts are 
predicting worsening weather, contractors will be advised not to run services.  

 

The Passenger Transport department will make every effort to inform schools when home 
to school transport is likely to be disrupted. Details of such changes will also be available 
on the Council’s website. The Authority is aware that some schools have the ability to text 
parents / carers with information once Passenger Transport have informed them.  It is 
therefore important the parents / carers ensure their contact details with the school are 
always up to date.  
 

Those contractors which provide feeder taxi services to school / pick-up points are also 
required to contact parents / carers directly with any changes to services during adverse 

Page 211

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/allsectorpolicies/learner-travel/travel-code/?lang=en


 
 

weather, or for any other reason.  Information on school closures due to adverse weather, 
or for any other reason, will also be posted on Denbighshire’s website.  Parents / Carers  
are encouraged to look at the website for such updates.  

7. APPEALS 
 

7.1  The parent / carer will normally be notified in writing within 15 working days of an 
unsuccessful school transport application.  The Authority will also offer the parent / carer 
an opportunity to appeal the decision and advise on the process below. 

 
7.2 Stage 1 – Review of Decision 
 

A request to review a Learner Transport decision must be sent to the Authority within 20 
working days after the date of initial refusal. Parents / carers should write to the 
Authority indicating their wish to review the decision.   
 

 This request should be sent to admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk stating the reasons and 
raising any relevant circumstances which may impact the decision.  Additional evidence 
in support of these circumstances should also be provided to the Local Authority. This 
additional information and the appeal may also be posted to the following address: 

 

Education Support,  
Denbighshire County Council,  
PO Box 62,  
Ruthin,  
LL15 9AZ 

 
 Within 20 working days of receipt of the written request, a Senior Officer from Education 

Support will review the original decision and will respond detailing the outcome. This 
response will outline: 

 

 The nature of the decision reached 

 How the review was conducted 

 Information about other departments / agencies consulted as part of the process. 

 What factors were considered  

 The rationale for the decision reached 

 Information about escalation to Stage 2, if appropriate   
 
 It is noted that records of previous reviews and appeals will be maintained by Education 

Support to ensure consistency of approach.  If any additional supportive information 
provided by the parents / carers is consistent with previous reviews which have been 
upheld, then a Stage 2 appeal stage may not be required and after assessment the 
relevant parent / carer will be informed of the outcome. 

 
 
 
 

Page 212

mailto:admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk


 
 

 
 
 
7.3 Stage 2 – Appeal 
 

Within 20 working days of receiving a Stage 1 decision notification, parents / carers can 
make a request to escalate the matter to a Stage 2 Appeal. 

 
 Within 40 working days of receipt of a Stage 2 request, an independent appeal panel will 

be convened to consider the appeal.  
 
A panel of independent officers will consider the appeal against the Learner Transport 
Policy and make a decision based on the information provided.  No member of the appeal 
panel will have been involved in the original transport decision.  The panel meeting will 
be recorded and minutes available.  The panel will consider all the evidence provided in 
support of the appeal.  If they so wish, parents / carers may attend to provide a summary 
of their appeal.  Education Support officers will also have opportunity to provide details 
of their assessment to the panel.    

 

After the appeal hearing the parent / carer will be notified by Education Support of the 
outcome of their appeal in writing.  The will response will set out the following 
information:  

 The nature of the decision reached 

 How the review was conducted 

 Information about other departments and/or agencies that were consulted                                    
as part of the process 

 What factors were considered 

 The rationale for the decision reached 

 Information about escalation to the Local Government Ombudsman 

Following this decision there are no further grounds for appeal to the Local Authority. 
Any further escalation would be to the Local Government Ombudsman. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213



 
 

 
 
 
 
8. CONTACT DETAILS 

 

8.1  Transport Applications 
 For queries related to applications please email  
 admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone 01824 706000 

 

8.2  Passenger Transport Services 
For queries related to operational service issues please email 
passengertransport@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone 01824 706000 

 

8.3  14-19 Transport 
For queries related to inter-establishment transport for the 14-19 learning  
network, please email admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone  
01824 706000 

 

8.4  Transport Complaints 
If you wish to make a complaint please email 
passengertransport@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone 01824 706000 

 

8.5 School Admissions 
For queries related to School Admissions please email 
admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone 01824 706000 

 

8.6  ALN Transport 
For queries related to ALN Transport please email 
admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk or telephone 01824 708064 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 214

mailto:admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:passengertransport@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:passengertransport@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk
mailto:admissions@denbighshire.gov.uk


 
 

9.  Links to Relevant Documentation 
 The Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/pdfs/mwa_20080002_en.pdf 
Available by clicking here 
 
Mesur Teithio gan Ddysgwyr (Cymru) 2008 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/pdfs/mwa_20080002_we.pdf 
Ar gael yma 
 

 Learner Travel Statutory Provision and Operational Guidance 2014 
 https://gov.wales/learner-travel-statutory-provision-and-operational-guidance
 Available by clicking here  

  
Teithio gan Ddysgwyr Darpariaeth Statudol a Chanllawiau Gweithredol Mehefin 2014 

 https://llyw.cymru/teithio-gan-ddysgwyr-darpariaeth-statudol-chanllawiau-gweithredol 
 Ar gael yma 
 

The Travel Behaviour Code 
 https://gov.wales/travel-behaviour-code-guidance 
Available by clicking here 

 
 Cod Ymddygiad wrth Deithio 

 https://llyw.cymru/cod-ymddygiad-teithio-canllawiau 
 Ar gael yma 
 
 Learner Travel Information (Wales) Regulations 2009.  
 Rheoliadau Gwybodaeth am Deithio gan Ddysgwyr (Cymru) 2009 
 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2009/569/pdfs/wsi_20090569_mi.pdf 
 Available by clicking here 
 Ar gael yma 
 
 Information on Active Travel in Denbighshire 

 https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/parking-roads-and-travel/cycling-and-
walking/cycling-and-walking.aspx 

 Available by clicking here 

 
 Gwybodaeth teithio llesol yn Sir Ddinbych 

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cy/preswyliwr/parcio-ffyrdd-a-theithio/beicio-a-
cherdded/beicio-a-cherdded.aspx 

Ar gael yma 
 
 Sustrans Website – Cycle Routes 
 Available by clicking here  
 
 

Page 215

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/pdfs/mwa_20080002_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/pdfs/mwa_20080002_en.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/mwa/2008/2/pdfs/mwa_20080002_we.pdf
https://gov.wales/learner-travel-statutory-provision-and-operational-guidance
https://llyw.cymru/teithio-gan-ddysgwyr-darpariaeth-statudol-chanllawiau-gweithredol
https://gov.wales/travel-behaviour-code-guidance
https://gov.wales/travel-behaviour-code-guidance
https://llyw.cymru/cod-ymddygiad-teithio-canllawiau
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2009/569/pdfs/wsi_20090569_mi.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2009/569/pdfs/wsi_20090569_mi.pdf
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/parking-roads-and-travel/cycling-and-walking/cycling-and-walking.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/cy/preswyliwr/parcio-ffyrdd-a-theithio/beicio-a-cherdded/beicio-a-cherdded.aspx
http://www.sustrans.org.uk/ncn/map


 
 

10.  APPENIDIX 1  FEEDER SCHOOLS  
 

Secondary 
School 
Cluster 

Recognised 
Feeder  
Primary 

Schools in 
Cluster 

Faith 
School 

 
Other Possible Nearest 

Suitable Secondary Schools  
 

(dependent on distance from home) 

Ysgol  
Dinas Bran 

 
Welsh Language 

Category 2 

Bryn Collen No St Joseph’s 

Caer Drewyn No 
Y Berwyn, 

Ysgol Brynhyfryd, St Joseph’s 

Carrog No 
Y Berwyn, 

Ysgol Brynhyfryd, St Joseph’s 

Gwernant  
Welsh Category 1 

No Ysgol Morgan Llwyd 

Bro Dyfrdwy 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
Y Berwyn /  

Ysgol Brynhyfryd 
 

Ysgol  
Glan 

Clwyd 
 

Welsh Language 
Category 1 

Dewi Sant 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
  

Henllan 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Tremeirchion 
Welsh Category 1 

Yes 
Church in 

Wales 

 

Twm o’r Nant 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Y Llys 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Pant Pastynog 
Welsh Category 1 

Yes 
Church in 

Wales 
Ysgol Brynhyfryd 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Denbigh 
High 

School 

Bodfari No   

Cefn Meiriadog No Emrys Ap Iwan 

Esgob Morgan 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

St Brigid’s / Rhyl HS / BEJ 

Faenol No Emrys Ap Iwan 

Frongoch No  

Pendref No  

St Asaph 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

Infants only: Esgob Morgan, 
Trefnant, St. Brigid’s or BEJ 

Trefnant 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

St Brigid’s 

Y Parc Infants No  
 

Rhyl  
High 

School 

Bryn Hedydd No   

Christchurch No  

Emmanuel No  

Llywelyn No  

Y Castell No Emrys Ap Iwan 

Page 216



 
 

 

Prestatyn 
High 

School 

Bodnant No   

Clawdd Offa No  

Hiraddug No  

Melyd No  

Penmorfa No  
 

Blessed 
Edward 
Jones 

Roman Catholic  
High School 

Ysgol Mair 
Yes 

Roman 
Catholic 

 Rhyl High School 

 

St. Brigid’s 
3-19 School 

Roman Catholic 
character and 

tradition 

As a through school, it is recognised that St. Brigid’s has its own 
feeder Primary on site. 

 
 
 

Secondary 
School 
Cluster 

Recognised 
Feeder  
Primary 

Schools in 
Cluster 

Faith 
School 

 

Other Possible Nearest 
Suitable Secondary Schools  

 

(dependent on distance from home) 

Ysgol 
Brynhyfryd 

 
Welsh Language 

Category 2 

Betws GG 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Borthyn 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

St Brigid’s 

Bro Cinmeirch 
Welsh Category 1 

No Ysgol Glan Clwyd 

Bro Elwern 
Welsh Category 1 

No  

Bro Famau No Mold Alun 

Bryn Clwyd No Denbigh High School 

Carreg Emlyn 
Welsh Category 1 

No  

Dyffryn Ial 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

Mold Alun, Dinas Bran, St Brigid’s 
St Joseph’s, Maes Garmon 

Gellifor No  

Llanbedr 
Yes 

Church in 
Wales 

St Brigid’s 

Llanfair 
Welsh Category 2 

Yes 
Church in 

Wales 
St Brigid’s 

Pen Barras 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Pentrecelyn 
Welsh Category 1 

No 
 

Rhewl 
Welsh Category 2 

No 
 

Rhos Street No  

Page 217



 
 

11.  APPENIDIX 2  
 

SCHOOL BUS TRAVEL BEHAVIOUR CODE 
 

 When at the bus stop, always wait sensibly, off the road. 

 Make an agreement with your parent / carer what to do if the bus does not 

arrive or if you miss it. 

 When the bus arrives, wait for it to stop. Never push or rush for the door. 

 Show your bus pass (if you have been given one) when you get on the bus. 

 On a school bus stay in your seat for the whole journey. 

 On a public bus find a seat if one is available. 

 Never block the aisle with your bag or other belongings. 

 Always wear a seatbelt if one is provided. 

 You must not distract the driver when he or she is driving. 

 Never eat or drink on the bus. 

 Never throw anything in or from the bus. 

 Never damage or vandalise any part of the bus. 

 Never operate the bus doors or exits, except in an emergency. 

 Always follow the instructions of the driver or passenger assistant at all times. 

 If there is an accident, stay on the bus until you are told to leave. If it is unsafe 

to stay on the bus then leave by the safest exit. 

 Never try and get on or off the bus until it has stopped. 

 Always get off the bus sensibly, taking all your belongings with you. 

 Never cross the road in front of or close behind the bus. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 218



 
 

 Travel Behaviour Code  
 

Your safety is very important. You must behave responsibly and safely when travelling to and from school or college, whether you 
go there by bus, train, taxi, bicycle, walking or any other way. If you get a bus to school or college, you must also follow the rules in 
the School Bus Travel Behaviour Code.  
 

If you do not follow this Code, for your own safety, and other people, local authorities, schools and colleges can take action against 
you. This might involve taking away your right to school transport and even excluding you from school. 

 

 

Your Responsibility 
 

• Always respect others, including 

other pupils, drivers and the public. 

• Always respect vehicles and 

property. 

• Always be polite. 

• Never drop litter. 

• Always obey the law. 

 
 

Your Safety 
 

• Always behave well when 

travelling. 

• Always follow the driver’s 

instructions when travelling. 

• You must not distract drivers. 

• Always cross the road safely and 

sensibly. 

• Always travel by a safe route. 

Your Rights 
 

• To be safe when travelling. 

• To be treated fairly and with 

respect. 

• To tell someone if somebody or 

something is causing you problems. 

• Not to be bullied or picked on. 

Please tell a teacher, parent or driver about any bad behaviour or 
bullying you see. 

P
age 219



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Defining schools according to Welsh 
medium provision

Yr Adran Plant, Addysg, Dysgu Gydol Oes a Sgiliau 

Department for Children, Education, Lifelong Learning and Skills

Information
Information document No: 023/2007 
Date of issue: October 2007

Appendix 2

Page 221



Audience Governing Bodies and Headteachers of Maintained Schools in Wales; 
Local Authorities; Teacher Unions; Church Diocesan Authorities; 
National and local bodies in Wales concerned with education.

Overview This document sets out descriptions and categories of schools 
according to the amount of Welsh used in teaching and learning 
and in the day to day conduct of the school. The categories will be 
used to collect information on provision nationally and should be 
used locally by education authorities and schools to inform parents 
of the types of school available in localities. The information will help 
local and national government to assess whether provision meets 
local demand.

Action Categories and descriptions should be incorporated into Local
required Education Authority Admission documents, and individual school 

prospectuses from Autumn 2007 onwards. Data collection in 
January 2008 and 2009 will request information on the basis of 
the new categories.

Further Enquiries about this document should be made to:
information Mary Davies

Schools Management Division 3
Department for Children, Education, Lifelong Learning and Skills
Welsh Assembly Government
Crown Building 
Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ
Tel: 029 2082 1570
Fax: 029 2082 6109
E-mail: SMD3@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Additional Additional copies can be obtained by emailing 
copies SMD3@wales.gsi.gov.uk, or by writing to the address above.

Related Iaith Pawb: A National Action Plan for a Bilingual Wales
documents

Defining schools according to Welsh 
medium provision

G/287/07-08
ISBN 978 0 7504 4375 3

October
CMK-22-07-239

Typeset in 12pt
© Crown copyright 2007Page 222



�

Contents

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007

Page

Summary 2

Rationale for the new definitions 3

Definitions of Schools: Introduction to categories 6

Definitions of Schools: Primary school categories 8

Uses for the Primary Categories �0

Definitions of Schools: Secondary School categories �2

Uses for the Secondary Categories �4

Page 223



Summary

2

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007

This information document sets out definitions and categories of 
schools in Wales according to the language which is used as the 
medium of instruction and the normal business of the school. 
Although the new definitions have no basis in legislation they have 
been devised to provide better information for parents and for local 
and national government on the extent to which pupils are learning 
through the medium of Welsh.

The definitions will be used for statistical purposes and schools will 
need to use the new definitions and decide to which category they 
belong when completing statistical returns. The School Management 
Information Software which is used for the provision of PLASC 
returns will facilitate the collection of the information. The categories 
are designed to be mutually exclusive and capable of consistent 
application across Wales. 

Data will be collected using the new categories in January 2008 
and January 2009 and data will continue to be collected on the 
same basis as previously so that there is continuity and so that any 
difficulties with either the categories or definitions can be identified.

The new definitions and categories will be incorporated into the 
composite admission documents issued annually by Local Education 
Authorities in due course and will also be incorporated into the 
prospectus of each school. Regulations will be needed to make 
this compulsory, but it would be preferable if schools and local 
authorities take action prior to the regulations being made.

Page 224



Current position and existing definitions of schools 
“Welsh speaking” schools are currently defined for the purposes 
of the school curriculum in Section �05(7) of the Education Act 2002 
which states:

“…. a school is Welsh-speaking if more than one half 
of the following subjects are taught (wholly or partly) 
in Welsh - 

(a) religious education, and

(b) the subjects other than English and Welsh which are 
foundation subjects in relation to pupils at the school”

The purpose of the definition is to identify schools in which Welsh 
is a core subject and medium of delivery. It does not indicate 
the nature of the linguistic provision right across the curriculum, 
and is not designed to do so. 

In Welsh Assembly Government statistical publications, secondary 
schools are categorised as Welsh speaking in accordance with the 
statutory definition. Welsh medium primary schools are categorised 
as type A if at least half the pupils are taught wholly or mainly 
through the medium of Welsh, and categorised as type B if some 
but less than half of the pupils are in Welsh medium classes or 
Welsh is used as a medium of teaching for part of the curriculum 
but not the major part. Assembly Government statistics currently 
rely on secondary schools themselves to advise the category to 
which they belong, whilst the categorisation for primary schools 
is derived by the Assembly Government based on class level 
information provided by the school.

At January 2006 there were 54 Welsh speaking secondary schools 
(out of a total of 224), 458 category A Welsh medium primary 
schools and 42 category B primary schools (out of a total of �555). 

In reality the position is much more complex. Welsh medium school 
provision varies between and within authorities. While Welsh is used 
as the medium of teaching for all or most subjects in some Welsh 
medium schools, others provide lessons in a mixture of English and 
Welsh to a greater or lesser extent or have separate English medium 
and Welsh medium streams. A secondary school may be categorised 
as Welsh speaking if the requisite number of subjects are taught 

3

Rationale for the new definitions

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 225



through the medium of Welsh even if only a small proportion 
of the pupils on roll actually study through the medium of Welsh. 
In addition a number of essentially English medium schools are 
increasing the number of subjects they offer through the medium 
of Welsh, yet this is not recorded in the statistics. Often this reflects 
the way individual local education authorities have responded to 
the aim of ensuring that pupils who are educated bilingually achieve 
fluency in Welsh and English, as well as the linguistic nature of the 
areas concerned.

Need for and purpose of the new definitions
Local Education Authorities use a variety of descriptors for their
schools where Welsh is used as a medium of teaching and these
are not consistent with each other. Labels such as ‘Welsh-medium’,
‘bilingual’, ‘traditional Welsh’ and ‘natural Welsh’ are used by schools
and LEAs to describe their provision. It is sometimes difficult for
parents to obtain a full understanding of the extent to which individual
schools teach through the medium of Welsh or English, and the extent
to which this is a matter of parental choice in relation to individual
pupils. It is also difficult for the Assembly Government to monitor
the amount of Welsh medium education which is being delivered.

In its contribution to the comprehensive review of the Welsh language
conducted by the National Assembly for Wales in 200� and 2002,
the Assembly’s Education and Lifelong Learning Committee 
confirmed the need for an agreed and easily identifiable set of 
definitions for the different models of linguistic provision available 
in schools in Wales. The Committee concluded that this was 
necessary for the following purposes:

establishing clear objectives for educators and pupils regarding 
linguistic outcomes

providing unambiguous information to parents and their children 
regarding the options available

assisting LEAs in developing and co-ordinating their strategy 
for Welsh-medium and bilingual provision, including resource 
planning and staff recruitment; and

allowing systematic evaluation of the relative strengths and 
weaknesses of different models of language teaching.

The Committee referred to work which began by a group of experts 
chaired by the Welsh Language Board, as a starting point.

•

•

•

•

4

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 226



The Welsh Assembly Government, in its 2003 policy document 
“Iaith Pawb” indicated that defining Welsh medium provision in 
schools was a priority. It set out the intention of consulting with 
LEAs and others with a view to reaching agreement on definitions 
which could be used consistently across Wales. 

Following the publication of “Iaith Pawb”, using the work 
of the group of experts as a starting point, several consultation 
meetings were held, led by the Welsh Assembly Government and 
the Welsh Language Board. Meetings involved a number of Local 
Education Authorities, Estyn and the former ELWa. These discussions 
produced two possible models which could be used to define schools 
according to the language medium of teaching. A wide consultation 
exercise was held in 2006. 

Responses were received from schools, local education authorities, 
teacher associations and Welsh language interest groups, including 
the Welsh Language Board. 

Having considered the responses to consultation carefully, 
the Minister for Children, Education, Lifelong Learning and Skills 
decided that new definitions should be trialled alongside the 
existing statistical definitions for a period of 2 years.

5

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 227



Introduction to the new categories 
�. The categories set out below define primary and secondary schools
(for the compulsory phase of schooling) according to the following:

the medium of teaching in each key stage: i.e. the percentage 
of the curriculum (primary) and percentages of subjects 
(secondary) taught through the medium of Welsh and English; 

the language/languages used to communicate with pupils 
outside the curriculum, the ethos of the school, the language 
used in the day to day business, and the language/languages 
used to communicate with parents; and

the expected normal outcome for pupils attending each type 
of provision in terms of educational progression.

2. The definitions do not attempt to specify exactly what an 
individual pupil may receive in a school. The definitions may be 
used by Local Education Authorities in the composite admission 
prospectuses issued to parents each Autumn term as soon as possible 
after September 2007. In order to inform parents fully of the options 
for individual pupils, governing bodies should provide more detail in 
the individual school prospectus. For schools where there is provision 
in English and Welsh and where pupils may opt for one or the other, 
prospectuses should explain the extent to which there are any 
pre-conditions for options, and the numbers of pupils who take 
up each language option. The Regulations which govern what 
must appear in the composite prospectus and the individual school 
prospectus will be amended in order to bring this change into force 
from 2008 but it would be helpful if schools and local authorities 
adopt the new practice in 2007 if possible.

3. Five categories are defined for primary schools with a distinction 
between Key Stages within the definitions where appropriate. 
The 3rd category (transitional), which is predominantly Welsh 
medium but with significant use of English, is not regarded as 
an appropriate model for securing pupil proficiency in Welsh 
and English. It is not therefore expected to apply to many schools, 
although there may be schools making the transition to Category 
� or 2 and seeking to increase the amount of provision through 
the medium of Welsh which find themselves in this category on 
a temporary basis.

4. Four categories are proposed for secondary schools, with one 
category (bilingual school) comprising 4 sub-groups.

i.

ii.

iii.

Defining schools according 
to Welsh medium provision

6

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 228



5. It is expected that Welsh language provision in schools will normally
reflect the obligations of approved Welsh Education Schemes.

6. Schools will be required to identify which category most 
appropriately describes them in their annual PLASC return from 
January 2008 onwards. Schools should primarily seek to identify 
themselves in relation to the curriculum aspects of the definition. 
The “language of school” and “outcomes” aspects may not 
always match. Commentary about these aspects may be added 
to the return if necessary, and should also be noted in the school 
prospectus. Infant and junior schools will use the appropriate 
KS� (Foundation Phase) or KS2 elements of the primary school 
definitions to determine their category. 

7. So that the new method can be trialled for statistical use 
without risk to data continuity, schools will also continue to report 
on their provision in the previous manner for the next 2 years 
(i.e. in January 2008 and 2009). This will allow time for any serious 
problems with the new method of categorisation to be resolved prior 
to its replacing the current statistical categories, if that is deemed 
appropriate following monitoring of the trial period. 

Action Checklist

Action Who is to take the action Date required

Incorporate categories and 
definitions into composite 
admission documents

Local Authorities From September 2007 
onwards

Incorporate categories 
and definitions into 
school prospectuses

Governors of all maintained 
schools

From September 2007 
onwards

Support schools in identifying
correct category for data 
collection

Local Authorities From September 2007

Enter data in revised format 
on the school MIS prior to 
annual data collection exercise

All Maintained schools From September 2007 
(January PLASC 2008 
will be �5 January 2008)

7

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 229



1. Welsh-Medium Primary School 
Curriculum - all Pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the 
areas of learning through the medium of Welsh. Welsh is the main 
teaching medium at KS2 with at least 70% of the teaching through 
the medium of Welsh. English is introduced formally as a subject 
at Key Stage 2 and is taught through the medium of English, and 
English may occasionally be used for some aspects of some subjects. 

Language of the School - Welsh is the language of the day 
to day business of the school. Welsh is used as the language of 
communication with the pupils and for the school’s administration. 
The school communicates with parents in both languages.

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that pupils, regardless of 
home language, will be able to transfer easily to Welsh medium 
secondary provision and by the end of Key Stage 2 will have 
reached a standard in English equivalent to that reached by 
pupils in predominantly English medium schools.

2. Dual Stream Primary School
Curriculum - Two types of provision exist side-by-side in these 
schools. Parents/pupils opt either for the mainly Welsh-medium 
or mainly English-medium provision which is usually delivered as 
in categories � and 5 respectively. 

Language of the School - Both Welsh and English are used in the 
day to day business of the school. The language of communication 
with the pupils is determined by the nature of the curricular 
provision, but in some schools high priority is given to creating 
a Welsh-language ethos throughout the school. The school 
communicates with parents in both languages.

Outcomes - for pupils in the Welsh stream, normal expectations are 
as for category �. For pupils in the English medium stream, normal 
expectations are as for category 5.

3. Transitional primary school: Welsh medium with 
significant use of English 

Curriculum - Pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas of 
learning mainly through the medium of Welsh. Both languages are 
used in teaching at Key Stage 2 but with greater emphasis on Welsh, 

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision: 
Primary School Categories

8

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 230



so that Welsh is used as the medium of instruction for over half and 
up to 70% of the curriculum. 

(Schools would usually only be in this category on a temporary basis)

Language of the School - Welsh is the language of the day to day 
business of the school. A high priority is given to creating a Welsh 
ethos. The school communicates with parents in both languages.

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that some pupils, particularly 
from Welsh speaking homes may be able to transfer to Welsh medium
secondary provision and by the end of Key Stage 2 all pupils will 
have reached a standard in English equivalent to that reached 
by pupils in predominantly English medium schools. 

4. Predominantly English Medium primary school but 
with significant use of Welsh

Curriculum - Pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas 
of learning in both languages but with greater emphasis on English. 
In Key Stage 2, both Welsh and English is used in teaching but 
there is greater emphasis on English. Welsh is used as the medium 
of teaching or learning for between 20% and 50% of the primary 
curriculum overall. 

Language of the School - The day to day language or languages 
of the school are determined by the school’s linguistic context. 
Both languages are used as languages of communication with the 
pupils and for the school’s administration. A high priority is given to 
creating a Welsh ethos. The school communicates with parents in 
both languages.

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that pupils will transfer to 
English medium secondary provision, but will have attained enhanced 
Welsh second language skills. Some pupils may be able to pursue 
a limited number of subjects through the medium of Welsh at 
secondary level where these are offered. 

5. Predominantly English medium primary school
Curriculum - All pupils in the Foundation Phase experience the areas 
of learning mainly through the medium of English. English is the 
main teaching medium at KS2. Welsh is taught as a second language 
in KS2, and some aspects of some subjects may be taught in Welsh. 
Less than 20% of the teaching is through the medium of Welsh.

9

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 231



Language of the School - English is the language of the day to day 
business of the school, but some Welsh is also used as a language 
of communication with the pupils with the aim of improving their 
capacity to use everyday Welsh. The school communicates with 
parents either in English or in both languages.

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that pupils will transfer 
to English medium secondary provision and continue to learn 
predominantly through the medium of English, learning Welsh 
as a second language.

Uses for the Primary Categories

(i) Collection of Data 

The categories will be used for data collection from January 2008. 
The data categories for the collection of primary school based 
information correspond to the primary categories. School Management
Information Software (MIS) used for the provision of PLASC returns 
will include the ability to record information about linguistic 
characteristics of schools. Primary schools will select from 5 possible 
categories, corresponding to the descriptions on the previous pages. 
The corresponding categories are shown in square brackets alongside 
the titles which will be shown in schools MIS. No additional action 
will be required on the part of primary schools, when completing 
the PLASC return. Categories are as follows:

Welsh Medium [WM] [Welsh medium primary school]

Dual stream [DS] [Dual Stream Primary school]

Transitional [TR] [Transitional primary school: Welsh medium with 
significant use of English]

English (with significant Welsh) [EW] [Predominantly English 
medium primary school but with significant use of Welsh]

English medium [EM] [Predominantly English medium 
primary school]

�0

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 232



(ii) School and LEA prospectuses

Governors of schools should use the categories and definitions 
to describe the school in the school prospectus as soon as is 
practicably possible. 

For primary schools, the individual prospectus should use the 
definitions and give extra explanation where necessary, especially 
in the case of schools where there are 2 streams of provision. 
The prospectus should set out in more detail what proportion 
of the curriculum is taught in Welsh, and to what extent there 
is a choice on medium of instruction or flexibility. For dual stream 
schools, the numbers of pupils in each stream should be given as 
this will often influence the general ethos of the school and day to 
day language. The recording of this information could assist in the 
monitoring of growth in Welsh medium provision within a school 
over time.

LEAs should ensure that the categories, definitions and information 
provided by governors on individual schools are reflected in 
composite admission documents as soon as practicably possible. 
Information provided by governors should assist authorities in 
monitoring growth and demand.

It can be expected that the School Information Regulations will 
be amended so that the use of the definitions within prospectuses 
and composite admission documents will be compulsory from 
2008 onwards. 

��

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 233



1. Welsh-Medium Secondary School
Curriculum - All subjects (including RE and PSE) apart from 
English are taught through the medium of Welsh to all pupils, 
although some schools may introduce English terminology in 
one or two subjects. 

Language of the School - Welsh is the day to day language of the 
school. Welsh is used as the language of communication with the 
pupils and for the school’s administration. The school communicates 
with parents in both languages.

Outcomes - For all pupils the normal expectation is that assessment 
at KS3 and KS4 will be through the medium of Welsh in all subjects 
apart from English or other languages, and that pupils will be able 
to progress easily to Welsh medium Post �6 provision.

2. Bilingual Secondary School
Curriculum - This category has 4 sub-divisions according to the 
percentage of subjects taught through the medium of Welsh and 
whether there is parallel provision in English. The categories and 
definitions do not reflect the number or proportion of pupils taking 
advantage of provision in Welsh in a school. Governing bodies will 
be expected to provide information in the school prospectus on the 
extent to which choice of provision is available and whether access 
to Welsh medium provision is conditional on the level of competence 
the pupil has in Welsh. The prospectus should also indicate the 
number of pupils taking up choices of provision.

Category 2A - At least 80% of subjects apart from English and 
Welsh are taught only through the medium of Welsh to all pupils. 
One or two subjects are taught to some pupils in English or in 
both languages.

Category 2B - At least 80% of subjects (excluding Welsh and 
English) are taught through the medium of Welsh but are also taught 
through the medium of English. 

Category 2C - 50 - 79% of subjects (excluding Welsh and English) 
are taught through the medium of Welsh but are also taught 
through the medium of English. 

Category 2CH - All subjects, except Welsh and English taught to all 
pupils using both languages. 

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision: 
Secondary School Categories

�2

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 234



Language of the School - The day to day language or languages 
of the school will be determined by its linguistic context. 
Both languages are used to communicate with pupils and for the 
school’s administration. A high priority is given to creating a Welsh 
ethos. The school communicates with parents in both languages. 

Outcomes - For pupils in 2A, 2B and 2C following the maximum 
number of courses through the medium of Welsh, the normal 
expectation is that assessment at KS3 and KS4 would be through 
the medium of Welsh in those subjects and that they would be 
able to progress easily to post �6 provision through the medium 
of Welsh in chosen subjects. For pupils in Category 2Ch the normal 
expectation is that assessment at KS3 and KS4 would be through 
the medium of Welsh in all subjects except English and that they 
would normally be able to progress easily to study at post �6 
through the medium of Welsh in chosen subjects.

3. Predominantly English medium secondary school 
with significant use of Welsh

Curriculum - Both languages are used in teaching with 20 - 49% 
of subjects taught through the medium of Welsh. All subjects would 
normally also be taught through the medium of English.

Language of the School - The day to day language or languages 
of the school will be determined by its linguistic context. 
Both languages are used for communication with the pupils and 
for the school’s administration. A high priority is given to creating 
a Welsh ethos. The school communicates with parents either in both 
languages or in English. 

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that pupils choosing Welsh 
medium options could be assessed through the medium of Welsh 
in those subjects at all levels and may be capable of progressing to 
study at post �6 through the medium of Welsh for those subjects.

4. Predominantly English Medium secondary school
Curriculum - Pupils are mainly taught through the medium of 
English. Welsh is taught as a second language up to KS4. One or 
two subjects (which would include Welsh first language) may 
be taught as an option through the medium of Welsh or using 
both languages.

�3

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 235



Language of the School - English is the day to day language of the 
school, but some Welsh is also used as a language of communication 
with the pupils, with the aim of improving their capacity to use 
everyday Welsh. The school communicates with parents either in 
English or in both languages.

Outcomes - The normal expectation is that any pupils choosing 
Welsh medium options could be assessed through the medium 
of Welsh in those subjects at all levels and may be capable of 
progression to study at post �6 through the medium of Welsh for 
those subjects. Most pupils would be assessed in English in most 
subjects and would progress to English medium post �6 study.

Uses for the Secondary Categories

(i) Collection of Data 

The categories will be used for PLASC data collection from 
January 2008. The data categories for the collection of secondary 
school based information correspond to the secondary categories, 
with the bilingual category divided into 4 for data collections. 
School MIS used for the provision of PLASC returns will include 
the ability to record information about linguistic characteristics 
of schools. Secondary schools will select from 7 possible 
categories, corresponding to the descriptions on the previous 
pages. The corresponding categories are shown in square brackets 
alongside the titles which will be shown on the data collection form. 
Secondary schools will have to identify themselves according to 
both the existing and the new categories. The new categories are 
as follows:

Welsh Medium [WM] [Welsh-Medium Secondary School]

A Bilingual [AB] [Bilingual Secondary School Category 2A 
- At least 80% of subjects apart from 
English and Welsh are taught only through 
the medium of Welsh to all pupils. One or 
two subjects are taught to some pupils in 
English or in both languages.]

B Bilingual [BB] [Bilingual Secondary School Category 
2B - At least 80% of subjects (excluding 
Welsh and English) are taught through 
the medium of Welsh but are also taught 
through the medium of English.] 

�4

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 236



C Bilingual [CB] [Bilingual Secondary School Category 2C - 
50 - 79% of subjects (excluding Welsh and 
English) are taught through the medium 
of Welsh but are also taught through the 
medium of English.]

Ch Bilingual [CH] [Bilingual Secondary School Category 2Ch 
- All subjects, except Welsh and English 
taught to all pupils using both languages.] 

English (with
Significant Welsh) [EW] [Predominantly English medium secondary 

school with significant use of Welsh: 
20-49 % of subjects are taught through 
the medium of Welsh but are also taught 
in English.]

English medium [EM] [Predominantly English medium secondary 
school where � or 2 subjects may be 
taught through the medium of Welsh 
as an option.]

(iii) School and LEA prospectuses

Governors of schools should use the categories and definitions 
to describe the school in the school prospectus as soon as is 
practicably possible. 

For secondary schools, the individual prospectus should use the 
definitions and give extra explanation where necessary, especially 
in the case of bilingual schools. In all cases the prospectus should 
set out in detail which subjects are taught in Welsh, and to what 
extent these are also available in English. The prospectus should 
indicate unambiguously to what extent there is choice on medium 
of instruction, whether there are pre-conditions, and information 
about the number of pupils taking options. For bi-lingual schools 
where pupils are streamed the numbers of pupils in each stream 
should be given as this will often influence the general ethos of the 
school and day to day language. The recording of this information 
could assist in the monitoring of growth in Welsh medium provision 
within a school over time.

�5

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 237



LEAs should ensure that the categories, definitions and information 
provided by governors on individual schools are reflected in 
composite admission documents as soon as practicably possible. 
Information provided by governors should assist authorities in 
monitoring growth and demand. The acquisition of timetabling 
information should also assist authorities in monitoring growth 
in Welsh medium provision.

It can be expected that the School Information Regulations will 
be amended so that the use of the definitions within prospectuses 
and composite admission documents will be compulsory from 
2008 onwards.

�6

Defining schools according to 
Welsh medium provision

October 2007

Document number 023/2007 Page 238



1 

 WELSH IN EDUCATION STRATEGIC PLAN 
2017 – 2020 

June 2018 
Final Version 

Appendix 3

Page 239



   

2 
 

 
Foreword 
 
Section 84 of the School Standards and Organisation Act (Wales) 2013 (“2013 Act”) 
requires that every local authority produces a strategic plan on Welsh in education. 
 
Section 84 of the School Standards and Organisation Act (Wales) 2013 (“2013 Act”) 
requires that every local authority produces a strategic plan on Welsh in education. 
 
This 3-year strategic plan aims to develop Welsh-language skills within the education 
provision in Denbighshire and contribute towards the wider policy context and 
priorities as indicated by the Welsh Government in its strategies: 

 Rewriting the future:  
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/deprivation/rewriting-
the-future-schools/?skip=1&lang=en 

 Successful futures;  
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculum-for-wales-
curriculum-for-life/why-we-are-changing/successful-futures/?skip=1&lang=en 

 Future generations;  
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-
act/?skip=1&lang=en 

 
This plan will be targeted at improving communication skills and oral understanding. 
The skills developed during the early years will improve progression in the Welsh 
language and establish a foundation that will lead to normalising the use of the 
Welsh language among the children and young people of Denbighshire.  
 
Achieving this plan will contribute towards the vision for Denbighshire’s Welsh 
Language Strategy 2017 – 2022, which includes increasing the use of the language 
among young people by ensuring access to education and community activities 
through the medium of Welsh and promoting opportunities for social interaction in 
Welsh. 
 
 
 
 
 

--------------------------------------- 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 240

http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/deprivation/rewriting-the-future-schools/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/deprivation/rewriting-the-future-schools/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/why-we-are-changing/successful-futures/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/educationandskills/schoolshome/curriculum-for-wales-curriculum-for-life/why-we-are-changing/successful-futures/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?skip=1&lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?skip=1&lang=en


   

3 
 

2017 – 2020 Plan  
 

Long term vision and commitment:  
 
We wish to see every child and young person in Denbighshire leaving full-
time education being competent and confident in Welsh and English.  

 
Objectives: 

 Ensure the development of adequate Welsh-language places across the 
county. 

 Support the increase in Welsh-language communication skills and oral 
understanding in every early years location. 

 Increase the proportion and standard of Welsh taught in English-medium 
schools. 

 Increase the proportion of learners who study Welsh as a first language. 

 Improve achievement in Welsh and in subjects through the medium of 
Welsh at every key stage in every school. 

 Develop a sustainable workforce to support provision in the future. 
 
Statement: 
 
In this plan, we have set ambitious targets for Denbighshire and our partners. 
These include increasing achievement in Welsh across every key stage, 
increasing the proportion of Welsh that is taught, the proportion of learners who 
receive A* - C grades in Welsh First Language GCSE and develop the skills of the 
workforce. 
 
We have included the objectives of the Rewriting the Future strategy in this plan. 
Our intention is to ensure through the 21st Century Schools programme that there 
is sufficient capacity to ensure that Welsh-medium education is accessible across 
the county. Our objectives also support a seamless transition from home or 
childcare settings to Early Years education, continuity from school to school and 
challenging the underachievement of learners. 
 
This plan focuses on establishing strong foundations by improving communication 
and oral understanding by starting with pre-school settings, targeting the 
strengthening of the language within primary schools and improving continuity at 
every key stage. This shows how we have incorporated the recommendations of 
the Successful Futures strategy within this plan. 
 
The Welsh in Education Strategic Group will support and monitor the 
implementation of this plan against the agreed objectives. To coincide with this, 
every school in the county will be expected to include their achievement against 
the outcomes in this plan in their Governors’ Annual Report to parents. Specific 
training will be given to governors. 
 
This plan was approved by Denbighshire County Council Cabinet (May 2018) and 
the Welsh Government (March 2018) in accordance with the requirements of the 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plans and the Assessing Demand for Welsh Medium 
Education (Wales) Regulations 2013. 

Page 241



   

4 
 

 
Local authorities have a statutory obligation under Part 10 of the Learner Travel 
(Wales) Measure 2008 to promote access to education and training through the 
medium of Welsh. 
 
Denbighshire County Council provides transport to the closest school that provides 
Welsh-medium education, even if that school is not the closest eligible school. For 
this purpose, such a school provides over 70% of its education through the 
medium of Welsh at primary age or where over 80% of subjects (excluding Welsh 
and English) are taught through the medium of Welsh at secondary age. In 
September 2016, within Denbighshire, these schools are as follows: 
 
Primary: 

 Ysgol Betws Gwerfil Goch  

 Ysgol Bro Cinmeirch  

 Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy 

 Ysgol Bro Elwern 

 Ysgol Carreg Emlyn 

 Ysgol Dewi Sant 

 Ysgol Gymraeg y Gwernant 

 Ysgol Henllan 

 Ysgol Llanfair Dyffryn Clwyd 

 Ysgol Pantpastynog  

 Ysgol Pen Barras 

 Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

 Ysgol Tremeirchion 

 Ysgol Twm o’r Nant 

 Ysgol y Llys  
 
Secondary: 

 Ysgol Brynhyfryd 

 Ysgol Dinas Bran   

 Ysgol Glan Clwyd  
 
Please note, if the closest Welsh-medium provision is outside Denbighshire, 
transport will be provided in accordance with the above policy, which is to the 
closest appropriate provision. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 242



   

5 
 

  
Outcome 1: More seven-year old children educated through the medium of 
Welsh 
 

The current situation 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

303 of 1123 pupils   
26.98%  

333 of 1145  
29.09% 

279 of 1046 
26.67% 

306 of 1085 
28.2% 

 
Main objectives: 

 Achieve current capital projects by 2020 and develop suggestions that 
provide room for growth in terms of the number of pupils who wish to 
access Welsh-medium education. 

 Develop and implement a programme to support schools to increase the 
use of the Welsh language within their curriculum provision by 2020. 

 Launch a programme to provide oral communication through the medium of 
Welsh to every child aged 3 – 5 in every pre-school setting by 2020. 

 Develop and implement a communications strategy to improve the 
availability and standard of the information that is available to parents and 
guardians by 2018. 
 

Supporting Statement:  
 

The above targets reflect the fact that the 2020 seven-year-old pupils have already 
joined nursery class and, as a result, more challenging targets would not be 
achievable. Despite this, the aim is that over 30% of them will be in Welsh-
language nursery provision by 2018, with an increase of 33% by 2020. Therefore, 
the work in this plan will affect the outcome target for 2021 and beyond. 
 

Over the past 5 years, Denbighshire County Council has invested in Welsh-
medium places at Ysgol y Llys (Prestatyn), Ysgol Twm o'r Nant (Denbigh) and 
Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy (Cynwyd). In addition, further capital investment has been 
agreed and included in Denbighshire County Council’s Capital Plan and the 21st 
Century Schools programme in order to invest in Welsh-language facilities in the 
Ruthin area for Ysgol Penbarras and Ysgol Carreg Emlyn. As a result of the 
capital plans and the statutory offers that will be realised until 2020, there will be 
an increase in the number of Welsh-language places and a decrease in English-
language places. 
 

Denbighshire County Council will continue to monitor and measure the need for 
Welsh-language provision in order to ensure that there are sufficient places for the 
increase in the number of pupils and the development of 21st Century Schools 
projects. In September 2016, there were 2244 full-time Welsh-language primary 
places within the county with 2028 full-time pupils on the register. In order to 
increase the capacity in locations where there is less than 10% surplus places, we 
will develop additional capacity in these areas with finance available from Section 
106 agreements. The effect on the closest Welsh-language provision is 
considered when calculating the contribution of nearby developments in 
accordance with Section 106 regulations. The Education and Children’s Services 
will lead on offers to expand the provision with Section 106 receipts and these 
offers will be in accordance with the objectives of this strategic plan and the 
county’s Language Strategy. 

Page 243



   

6 
 

 
We will hold a review to measure the need to meet the requirements of the 2013 
regulations. To coincide with this work, we will continue to work with Mudiad 
Meithrin in order to monitor the number of children in pre-school settings, transfers 
to primary schools and the number of Welsh-language pre-school places in the 
County. 
 

Currently, 73% of places in primary schools offer less than 50% of the curriculum 
through the medium of Welsh where pupils are assessed as studying Welsh as a 
second language. We will develop criteria that will enable us to target support for 
schools to increase how much Welsh is taught as part of the primary learning path. 
Every school will have a timetable for progress that will include key milestones in 
their school development plans. GwE and Denbighshire County Council will 
monitor every school’s curriculum development, the Urdd will provide support to 
develop extracurricular activities through the medium of Welsh and Mudiad 
Meithrin will support pre-school provision. 
 

The findings of the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 2017 show that the current 
Welsh-language / bilingual provision is meeting parents’ needs. The availability of 
Welsh-language provision varies with a lower percentage available in the north of 
the county, which matches the linguistic demographics of the county. For example, 
23% of childminders in the north of the county speak Welsh or are bilingual, 
compared to 60% in the south of the county. The majority of the Welsh-language 
provision is pre-school or after-school provision or Cylch Meithrin. Through our 
capital projects in the Ruthin area, there will be room within new buildings that 
could be used to provide/expand pre-school care. 
 

We will be developing and introducing an oral communication programme through 
the medium of Welsh to every child aged 3 – 5 in every childcare setting 
throughout Denbighshire. The programme will be developed in partnership with 
Mudiad Meithrin and will ensure that every nursery pupil will have basic oral skills 
and understanding at least by the time he/she is 5 years old. This will establish a 
strong skill base in the language and enable every school to improve achievement 
in the Welsh language. It will also provide a foundation for providing more of the 
foundation phase curriculum through the medium of Welsh in English-language 
settings. 
 

We will improve the availability and standard of the information available to 
parents and guardians on Welsh in education. By working with partners including 
the Welsh Government, Mudiad Meithrin and Menter Iaith, we will review the 
current information that is available. This information will include information about 
the places that are available and the support that is available to pupils who are late 
arrivals. At the moment, the provision for late arrivals is provided on a peripatetic 
basis due to the varying geographical locations of the pupils who need support. 
When we have reviewed it, the information will be available through various 
platforms that will be recognised through a specific communications scheme. The 
communications strategy will be developed to ensure that the information reaches 
the appropriate audience. Following publication, we will monitor the suitability of 
the information by contacting nursery applicants and monitor the transfer from 
Cylch Meithrin settings, and we will continue to update and adapt the information 
to ensure that it remains current and relevant. 

Page 244



   

7 
 

Outcome 2: More pupils will continue to improve their Welsh-language skills 
when transferring from primary school to secondary School 
 

The current situation * 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

21.3% 
- 254 out of 1194 

22% 23% 25% 

* Percentage of pupils assessed in Welsh as a First Language across the County 
at the end of Year 9.  
 
Main objectives: 
 

 Increasing the percentage of pupils assessed in Welsh as a First language 
across the County at the end of Year 9 to 25% by 2020.  

 Increasing the number who transfer from KS2 to KS3 to 98% by 2020. 

 Increasing the number of primary places that teach over 20% of the 
curriculum through the medium of Welsh to 40% by 2020. 

 Increasing the proportion of teaching through the medium of Welsh in the 
foundation phase to over 50% by 2020 in schools that already teach 
between 20% and 50% of the whole curriculum through the medium of 
Welsh. 
 

Supporting statement: 
  
The Welsh Government’s vision announced in its strategy ‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh speakers’ presents the intention to move away from the concept of 
Welsh as a second language and for Welsh to be taught as one language. In 
response to this vision, in order to increase the number of pupils assessed in 
Welsh as a First Language at the end of year 9, we will work with Brynhyfryd and 
Dinas Bran schools in order to introduce the concept of Welsh as one subject and 
increase the number of children assessed in Welsh as a first language. As part of 
this work, we will look at the feasibility of establishing supportive intervention 
provision at Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Ysgol Dinas Bran. It is predicted that the 
provision will be a formal procedure within the two schools to support pupils that 
are assessed in Welsh as a First Language at the end of KS2 and who experience 
difficulties continuing to study through the medium of Welsh. In addition to this, 
there will be an opportunity for more able and talented second-language pupils to 
take advantage of further assistance to follow a Welsh as a First Language 
course. 
 
In September 2016, 90% of pupils transferred from Welsh-language provision in 
KS2 to Welsh-language provision in KS3 within Denbighshire. This is a reduction 
of 7% compared to 2015. We intend to increase the number of pupils transferring 
to Welsh-language provision in KS3 by working with every secondary school that 
has Welsh-language provision in order to plan the transfers. As part of this work, 
we will monitor and analyse the number of pupils who continue in Welsh-language 
provision when transferring from KS2 to KS3 in order to set appropriate targets on 
an individual school level. We will also look at the information that is available 
during the school admissions process. To coincide with the activity, the Language 
Charter data will be used to show the gaps in opportunities for children and young 

Page 245



   

8 
 

people to use the Welsh language socially and we will work with partners to target 
activities in these areas for pupils in years 5 to 8. 
 
Currently, 69% of English-language primary school places in Denbighshire provide 
less than 20% of education through the medium of Welsh. We will know which 
schools have the capacity to increase the education provided through the medium 
of Welsh by 2020 and will target the support for individual schools in order to 
increase how much Welsh is taught on the timetable agreed by the school. 
Milestones will be incorporated within the schools’ development plans with the aim 
of ensuring that 40% of primary places will provide over 20% of the curriculum 
through the medium of Welsh by 2020. 
 
At the schools where Welsh is used as the teaching medium for between 20% and 
50% of the whole primary curriculum (Ysgol Dyffryn Iâl, Ysgol Caer Drewyn, Ysgol 
Carrog and Ysgol Bryn Clwyd), we will provide support to enable these schools to 
provide more of the Foundation Phase through the medium of Welsh by 2020. By 
collaborating with GwE, we will agree a timetable with every school and 
incorporate key milestones in the school development plans. 
 
The capital project at Ysgol Glan Clwyd will ensure that there are adequate Welsh-
language secondary places for pupils who live in the north of the county. This 
project will ensure that there are 1250 places at Ysgol Glan Clwyd in order to 
support the proposed increase in need. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 246



   

9 
 

 
Outcome 3: More students between 14-16 studying for qualifications through 
the medium of Welsh 
 
Outcome 4: More students between 14-19 studying subjects through the 
medium of Welsh, in schools, colleges and work-based learning. 
 
The current situation and targets associated with the percentage of learners who 
register to study the Welsh (First Language) GCSE and who registered to study at 
least five further qualifications through the medium of Welsh are seen below: 
 

The current situation 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

100% 
216 pupils 
(2016) 

100% 
 

100% 100% 

 
The current situation and targets associated with the percentage of learners who 
register to study the Welsh (First Language) GCSE and who registered to study at 
least five further qualifications through the medium of Welsh are seen below: 
 

The current situation 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

100% 
216 pupils 
(2016) 

100% 100% 100% 

 
Main objectives: 

 Increase the number of Year 11 learners who study 5 subjects or more 
through the medium of Welsh to 260 pupils by 2020; 

 An increase of 25% in the number of pupils at Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Ysgol 
Dinas Bran who are studying 5 or more subjects through the medium of 
Welsh. 

 Maintain and develop the Welsh-language vocational options across the 
County. 

 Increase the percentage of learners between 16 – 19 who study 2 subjects 
or more through the medium of Welsh in schools to 22% by 2020. 

 Use the schools’ data results to respond to and improve Welsh-language 
education provision. 

 Arrange at least 30 Welsh-language courses annually in formal partnership 
until 2020; 

 
Supporting Statement:  
 
The three schools within Denbighshire that provide Welsh-medium education are 
Ysgol Glan Clwyd, Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Ysgol Dinas Bran. The pupils of Ysgol 
Glan Clwyd study all their subjects through the medium of Welsh. There is a 
Welsh stream at Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Ysgol Dinas Bran (See the data appendix 
for more information about the number who are studying through the medium of 
Welsh).  

Page 247



   

10 
 

The objective stated in outcome 2, namely to start presenting the Welsh language 
as a subject for pupils who attend Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Ysgol Dinas Bran, will 
enable more students to follow subjects through the medium of Welsh. This will 
enable both schools to ensure the viability of their current Welsh-language GCSE 
choices and give the opportunity to increase the number of Welsh-language GCSE 
courses that are available in the future.  
 
The number of learners between 16 - 19 who study two subjects or more through 
the medium of Welsh has varied over the past four years from 11.3% to 21.4% 
depending on the size of the group and individuals’ choices. As a result of the 
variation and the challenge of maintaining the current provision, an ambitious 
target has been set to increase the percentage of students who study 2 subjects or 
more through the medium of Welsh to 22% by 2020. In this context, a target to 
increase and maintain the number of learners to over 230 has been set. 
 
In partnership with the GwE challenge advisers, we intend to monitor schools’ 
outcomes in order to encourage additional challenges and support in order to 
improve Welsh-language education provision. 
 
The majority of post-16 Welsh-language courses are provided at Ysgol Glan 
Clwyd. Every course at Ysgol Glan Clwyd is provided through the medium of 
Welsh with some courses offered at Ysgol Brynhyfryd depending on need. We 
intend to maintain the current offer of a minimum of 30 Welsh-language courses 
every year in formal partnership until 2020. We also intend to continue to work with 
Coleg Llandrillo, Coleg Cambria and Ysgol Brynhyfryd to offer more opportunities 
for students to continue with post-16 Welsh-language education. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 248



   

11 
 

 
Outcome 5: More students with higher skills in Welsh  
 

First Language Y sefyllfa 
gyfredol 

2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 

Foundation 
Phase 
Outcome 5 

91.9% 92% 92.5% 93% 

Key Stage 2 
Level 4+ 

90.6% 91% 91.5% 92% 

Key Stage 3 
Level 5+ 

92.5% 93% 93.5% 94% 

Key Stage 4 
Grades A* - C 

73.6% 74% 74.5% 75% 

 
Main objectives: 
 

 Increase the achievement in Welsh as a first language as follows by 2020. 
- 93% of Foundation Phase pupils achieving outcome 5. 
- 92% of Key Stage 2 pupils to achieve Level 4 + 
- 94% of Key Stage 3 pupils to achieve Level 5 + 
- 75% of Key Stage 4 pupils to achieve A* - C.  

 Ensure that achievement in Welsh as a second language is 60% A* - C by 
2020. 

 Improve Welsh-language oral skills and understanding across all key 
stages by 2020. 

 
Supporting Statement:  
 
The authority has undertaken to maintain and improve the level of Welsh as a first 
language across all the key stages. The targets set are ambitious for every 
measure and are based on the strong development seen up to 2016. We will work 
with GwE to earmark schools that need additional support in order to improve 
achievement. Additional support will be provided to provide the curriculum by 
GwE, appropriate experts and extra-curricular support by partners.  
 
The authority has committed to improve achievement in Welsh as a second 
language. In 2016, 72.1% of learners achieved A* - C in the full Welsh second 
language GCSE course and 52% achieved A* - C in the short Welsh second 
language GCSE course. The target of 60% A* – C is challenging given the 
increase in the students who will be following the course by 2020 due to the fact 
that WJEC has cancelled the short Welsh second language GCSE course. In 
2016, 53% of students in English-language settings were studying the short 
course.  
 
 
 

Page 249



   

12 
 

Oral Welsh skill levels at every key stage will be improved by: 
- Developing centres within schools that will maintain a support network for 

nearby schools to develop Welsh-medium activities. 
- Working with the Urdd to target the provision of activities through the 

medium of Welsh outside school hours in areas that are revealed by the 
language charter data. 

- Working with the Urdd to target extra-curricular activities in English-medium 
schools that increase how much Welsh is used as part of the school’s 
curriculum. 

- Facilitate community activities such as social events and Welsh lessons for 
adults. 

 
The Council has an agreement with the Urdd to provide Welsh-language Youth 
Services in the County via a service level agreement. As a result, the Urdd has a 
leading role in the County in terms of supporting informal use of the language. The 
action plan recognises the role of other organisations in supporting the informal 
use of the language including the County Youth Forum, Schools, Menter Iaith, 
Young Farmers’ Clubs and Sport Clubs. One of the action plan’s priorities will be 
to avoid the duplication of activities in certain areas in order to ensure 
participation.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 250



   

13 
 

Outcome 6: Welsh-medium Additional Learning Needs Provision  
 
Main objectives: 
 

 Evaluate the Welsh-medium additional learning needs (ALN) provision in 
annually until 2020. 

 Develop flexible outreach provision to support more learners within 
mainstream provision. 

 Develop the linguistic skills of language staff to respond to the changes in 
need. 

 Facilitate opportunities to learn and socialise through the medium of Welsh 
within Ysgol Tir Morfa and Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn. 

 
Supporting statement: 
 
Denbighshire County Council has committed to ensuring that children and young 
people with ALN receive equal language support through the medium of Welsh. 
The capacity of the current service will be assessed annually with the purpose of 
tackling any gaps that are identified in the provision. Patterns will be monitored 
and where there are any gaps that are being bridged at the moment, long-term 
solutions will be developed. 
 
Denbighshire County Council has committed to ensuring that students in 
mainstream Welsh-medium provision will receive the same level of support 
through the medium of Welsh as that given in mainstream English provision. We 
will explore ways of developing this support further within mainstream provision in 
order to respond to the needs of individual learners. 
 
Individual learners need staff who support them to gain the appropriate language 
skills. We will develop the language skills of staff in specialist locations to enable 
them to respond to changes in need. 
 
We will collaborate with partners to facilitate the links between schools and to 
support opportunities to learn and socialise for learners with additional learning 
needs. Partners will work with Ysgol Plas Brondyffryn and Ysgol Tir Morfa to 
improve the use of Welsh within the context of the Welsh ethos of the schools. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 251



   

14 
 

 
Outcome 7: Workforce planning and continuous professional development 
(CPD) 
          
Main objectives:  
 

 Note the current gaps and gaps in the future from the perspective of the 
Council, schools, and in terms of the support needed from GwE. 

 Target the development of the current workforce’s skills. 

 Create opportunities to develop the skills of Education and Children‘s 
Services staff. 

 Target the development of skills in the school development strategies within 
the context of improving standards. 

 
Supporting statement:  
 
We will hold an inspection of Welsh-language skills in order to earmark current 
gaps in skills and where gaps are likely to appear in the future. Changes in how 
much Welsh is taught in English-language schools will affect the skills needs of 
staff and the language support needed from GwE and the Council. 
 
Access to the Welsh sabbatical scheme will be targeted at priority areas as stated 
in outcomes 1 to 6 of this strategic plan. As schools increase how much Welsh is 
taught, training such as the sabbatical scheme will be used strategically to support 
the development of the skills of teachers and teaching assistants. 
 
We will create opportunities to develop Welsh-language skills within the Education 
and Children’s Services and by implementing the Council’s language mentor 
programme under the Language Strategy. Staff who speak Welsh will mentor 
learners to help them practice and become confident when speaking Welsh. This 
will allow the staff to develop their skills and ensure that the service maintains the 
Council’s Welsh standards.  
 
We will work with schools to incorporate the development of staff skills in every 
school development plan. This will enable every school to receive a specific target 
for developing Welsh-language skills based on their current skill level that is 
achievable and accountable. This will also enable schools to increase how much 
Welsh is taught in order to have a measurable indicator to support the strategic 
objective. School governors will also receive training on this strategic plan and be 
encouraged to include the Welsh language in their annual report to parents. 
 
          

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 252



   

15 
 

Data Annex 
 

Outcome 1: More seven-year-old children being taught through the medium of 
Welsh 
 

Year Number Percentage 

2013 285 28.1% 

2014 262 24.5% 

2015 284 24.3% 

2016 306 28.7% 
 

Outcome 2: More learners continuing to improve their language skills on transfer 
from primary to secondary school. 
 

Cohort Number 
assessed 
Welsh 1st 
language  

Percentage 
assessed 
Welsh 1st 
language 

KS2   2013 234 23.1% 

KS3   2016 226 19.9% 
 

Effective transfer and linguistic continuity  
 
 

Welsh medium childcare settings to the 
Foundation Phase* 

92.57% 

Key Stages 2 and 3 
 

90% 

Key Stages 3 and 4 –  
Denbighshire  

95.7% 

 

Stream Split in Bilingual Schools Welsh 
Stream 

English  
Stream 

Ysgol Brynhyfryd   

KS3 (Yr. 7,8 & 9) 163 304 

KS4 (Yr. 10 & 11) 117 229 

Ysgol Dinas Bran   

KS3 (Yr. 7,8 & 9) 53 472 

KS4 (Yr. 10 & 11) 33 277 

 * Data regarding progression from under 3 provision to the Foundation phase is not 
recorded. 
 
 

Outcome 3: More learners aged 14 – 16 studying for qualifications through the 
medium of Welsh. 
Outcome 4: More learners aged 16 – 19 studying subjects through the medium of 
Welsh in schools, colleges and work-based learning 
 
In 2016, 216 pupil were registered for GCSE Welsh first language.  
 

Page 253



   

16 
 

What is the current percentage of Year 11 learners who are entered for GCSE Welsh First 
Language who are studying for 5 or more further Level 1 or Level 2 qualifications through 
the medium of Welsh?  
 
 

 Number Percentage 

Glan Clwyd 142 100% 

Brynhyfryd 58 100% 

Dinas Bran 16 100% 

Total 216  

 
What is the current percentage of Year 11 learners who are entered for GCSE Welsh 
First Language who are studying for 2 or more further Level 1 or Level 2 qualifications 
through the medium of Welsh? 
 

 Number Percentage 

Glan 
Clwyd 

142 100% 

Brynhyfryd 58 100% 

Dinas Bran 16 100% 

Total 216  

 
What is the percentage of learners 16-19 age  who are studying 2 or more 
subjects through 
a) the medium of Welsh 

18.5% 
 

b) bilingually (e.g. elements of qualifications/ modules)? 
Not applicable 
 

Outcome 5 - More learners with higher skills in Welsh  
Improving provision & standards Welsh 
 

Measure Number Percentage 

FP 2016 O5+ (LCW) 259  89.6% 

KS2 2016 L4+ (Cym) 209 90.5% 

KS3 2016 L5+ (Cym) 209 92.5% 

KS4  2016 A*-C  
(Cym) 

216 73.6% 

 
Improving provision & standards Welsh Second Language 

Measure Number Percentage 

KS2 2016 L4+         
(Welsh 2nd) 

650 77.1% 

KS3 2016 L5+          
(Welsh 2nd) 

762 83.9% 

KS4  2016 A*-C  
(Welsh 2nd) 

338 72.1% 

KS4 2016 
A*- C (Welsh2nd) 

226 42.1% 

 

 

Page 254



 

Report to Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting 28 January 2021 

Lead Officer Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Co-ordinator 

Report author Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Co-ordinator  

Title Scrutiny Work Programme 

1. What is the report about? 

The report seeks Performance Scrutiny Committee to review its draft forward work   

programme.   In doing so the Committee is asked to reflect on the implications of the focus 

on business critical operations during the emergency phase of the COVID -19 pandemic 

and the programmes of work underway or being planned under the recovery phase, whilst 

also having regard to items of business already on its forward work programme prior to the 

pandemic. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 

update members on relevant issues. 

3. What are the Recommendations? 

That the Committee  

3.1  considers the information provided and approves, revises or amends is forward 

work programme as it deems appropriate; and 

3.2 identifies key messages and themes from the current meeting which it wishes to 

publicise via the press and/or social media. 

Page 255

Agenda Item 7



 
 

4. Report details 

4.1 Section 7 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, as well as the rules of 

procedure and debate.   

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must set, and 

regularly review, a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 

issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-

led agenda. 

 

4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 

maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of 

this approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 

4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and Audit Wales (AW) have 

highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and 

public services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with 

residents and service-users.  From now on scrutiny will be expected to engage 

better and more frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions 

which ultimately lead to better outcomes for citizens.  AW will measure scrutiny’s 

effectiveness in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing 

on local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) 

recommended that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on 

their work programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 

 budget savings; 

 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on 

their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  

 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 

Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2); 

Page 256



 
 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues; and 

 Supporting the Council’s recovery work in relation to the effects of the 

COVID-19 crisis on Council services, the local economy and the county’s 

communities 

 

4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 

 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  

To assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 

merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to 

formally request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is 

done via the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance 

and potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have 

been received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 

4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-

making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG decided 

that members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ 

outlining the reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from 

scrutiny’s input.  A copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 

2.  The reverse side of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which 

members should consider when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which 

committees should ask when determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a 

scrutiny forward work programme.  If, having followed this process, a topic is not 

deemed suitable for formal examination by a scrutiny committee, alternative 

channels for sharing the information or examining the matter can be considered e.g. 

the provision of an ‘information report’, or if the matter is of a very local nature 

examination by the relevant Member Area Group (MAG).  No items should be 

included on a forward work programme without a ‘scrutiny proposal form’ being 

completed and accepted for inclusion by the Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance 

with their completion is available from the Scrutiny Co-ordinator.  

  

  

Page 257



 
 

Cefndy Healthcare 

4.8 The Annual Report of Cefndy Healthcare for 2019/20 and its Annual Plan for 

2020/21 was originally scheduled for presentation to this Committee in the spring of 

2020, but it presentation was postponed due to the suspension of formal committee 

meetings due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Following the committee forward work 

programme rescheduling exercise the report and plan were listed for presentation to 

the Committee at the current meeting.  However, as we are now in the final quarter 

of the 2020/21 financial year the Head of Service requested that the Annual 

Report’s presentation be deferred until early summer 2021, when a report on the 

2019/20 and the 2020/21 business years and the annual plan for 2021/22 can be 

presented to the Committee for examination.  The Chair agreed to the request and 

the item is now listed on the committee’s forward work programme for the meeting 

on 10 June 2021 (see Appendix 1 attached). 

 

 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 

4.9 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny 

committees to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this 

purpose, a copy of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 

3.  

Progress on Committee Resolutions  

4.10 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 

progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

5.1 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs 

Group (SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group’s next 

meeting is scheduled for the afternoon of 21 January 2021.  Any matters that arise 

from the Group’s meeting that impact on the Committee’s forward work programme 

will be reported verbally at the meeting on 28 January.  

5.2 With a view to raising Scrutiny’s profile and encouraging public engagement the 

Group recently decided that all three scrutiny committees should, for a trial period, 

identify key themes or messages arising from their meetings for publication via the 

Page 258



 
 

Authority’s social media pages and the local press.  The Committee is therefore 

asked to identify which themes or messages it wishes to highlight from the current 

meeting. 

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate 

Priorities? 

Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 

community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 

coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate 

priorities, improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget and 

resource pressures. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 

identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 

following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact 

Assessment?  

A Well-being Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in relation to the 

purpose or contents of this report.  However, Scrutiny’s through it work in examining 

service delivery, policies, procedures and proposals will consider their impact or 

potential impact on the sustainable development principle and the well-being goals 

stipulated in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny 

and others? 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 

forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 

respect to its programme of future work. 

Page 259



 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to 

reduce them? 

No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 

forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 

programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and 

examined as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a 

view to addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

11.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

11.2 Section 7.11 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that scrutiny committees and/or 

the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group will be responsible for setting their own 

work programmes, taking into account the wishes of Members of the Committee 

who are not members of the largest political group on the Council. 

Contact Officer:   

Rhian Evans, Scrutiny Coordinator 

Tel No: (01824) 712554    

e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 260

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

18 March 
2021  
 

Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Plan (Q3) 
2020/21 

To monitor the Council’s progress 
in delivering the  Corporate Plan 
2017-22  

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its targets to deliver its 
Corporate Plan and the 
Council’s services in line with 
its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan 
Smith/Iolo 
Mc 
Gregor/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

March 
2020 
(amended 
October 
2020 due 
to COVID-
19) 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Hafan Deg, Rhyl  
(tbc) 
 
Representatives from 
KL Care to be invited 
to attend 
 

To monitor the effectiveness of 
the transfer of the facility and 
services to an external provider 
and the provider’s progress in 
growing and expanding the 
services available at the centre  
 
(the report to include an updated 
Well-being Impact Assessment) 

To evaluate the impact of the 
transfer of the facility and 
services on all stakeholders 
and to assess whether the 
services provided at Hafan 
Deg are in line with the 
contract specification, 
support the Council’s vision 
for adult social care and the 
five ways to well-being and 
the requirements of the 
Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act 2014 

Phil 
Gilroy/Ann 
Lloyd/Katie 
Newe/Ben 
Chandler 

September 
2019 
(Reschedu
led 
October 
2020 due 
to COVID-
19) 

 
 

Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

3. Commercial Waste 
Service Evaluation 
Plan 

To consider an the results of an 
evaluation exercise of the entire 
commercial waste service, 
including the performance of the 
Veolia contract and Waste 
Technical Team (including 
proposals for service changes 
and improvements) 

Assurances that the Service 
is performing well and 
provides value for money in 
order to ensure that it aligns 
to the new waste operating 
model  

Tony 
Ward/Tara 
Dumas/Alan 
Roberts 

By 
SCVCG 
January 
2019 
(reschedul
ed March, 
May, Oct 
2020 due 
to COVID-
19) 

P
age 261



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

4. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest version of 
the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register and risk appetite 
statement 

Effective monitoring and 
management of identified risk 
to reduce risks to residents 
and the Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/E
mma Horan 

November 
2020 

 Cllr. Tony 
Thomas 

5. Library Service 
Standards 2019-20  
(tbc – WG assessment 
may be delayed due to 
COVID-19) 

To consider the results of the 
WG’s annual evaluation of the 
Council’s Library Service and the 
progress made in delivering the 
Council’s Library Strategy 2019-
22  

Identification of any 
slippages in performance in 
order to formulate 
recommendations to redress 
the situation and ensure that 
the Service delivers the 
Council’s Corporate Plan and 
its priorities in relation to 
Young People, Resilient and 
Connected Communities 

Liz 
Grieve/Betha
n Hughes 

January 
2020 
(reschedul
ed 
November 
2021) 

        

29 April 
2021 
 

Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

1. Draft Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report  

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance and 
clearly articulates future plans 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins 

April 2020 
(require to 
submit at 
the end of 
2019/20 
was lifted 
due to 
COVID-
19) 

 Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

2. Customer Relationship 
Manager (CRM) 
System 
 
(tbc) 
 
 

To review  
(i) the implementation of the new 

CRM/360 system and its 
performance in delivering 
efficient and effective 
customer focussed services in 
line with the product 
specification and the Council’s 
expectations; and 

(ii) service demand in terms of 
supporting recovery from 
COVID-19 by moving requests 
on to C360 

An efficient and effective 
customer enquiries system 
that deals with enquiries 
quickly, to a high level of 
customer satisfaction, whilst 
realising value for money for 
the Authority  

Liz 
Grieve/Ffion 
Angharad 

September 
2018 
(reschedul
ed 
November 
2019/resc
heduled 
again 
March 
2020 & 
Oct 2020 
due to 

P
age 262



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

COVID-
19) 

        

10 June Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Implementation of the 
Donaldson Report 
‘Successful Futures’ – 
Independent Review of 
Curriculum and 
Assessment 
Arrangements in 
Wales  
[Education] 
 
(tbc)  

To consider and monitor the plans 
to implement the agreed 
measures adopted by WG 
following the consultation on the 
review’s findings  

Better outcomes for learners 
to equip them with jobs 
market skills 

Geraint 
Davies 

April 2015 
(provisiona
lly 
scheduled 
for June 
2021 in 
October 
2020) 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

2. Corporate Plan (Q4) 
2020/21/Annual 
Performance Review 

To monitor the Council’s progress 
in delivering the  Corporate Plan 
2017-22  

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its targets to deliver its 
Corporate Plan and the 
Council’s services in line with 
its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan 
Smith/Iolo 
Mc 
Gregor/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

March 
2020 
(amended 
October 
2020 due 
to COVID-
19) 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

3. Cefndy Healthcare 
Annual Reports 
2019/20 & 2020/21 
and Annual Plan 
2021/22 & Options 
Appraisal for future 
business delivery 

To consider: 
(i) the company’s performance 

during 2019/20 & 2020/21 and 
its Annual Plan for 2021/22; 
and  

(ii) the findings of the Project 
Board’s work in drawing up an 
options appraisal for future 
delivery of the company’s 
business 

(i) An assessment of the 
company’s performance 
in delivering its business 
within budget and 
meeting targets will assist 
with the identification of 
future trends and 
requirements; 

(ii) Formulation of 
recommendations in 
relation to a future 
business model that will 
support the delivery of the 
Council’s priority relating 
to Resilient Communities 

 

Phil 
Gilroy/Ann 
Lloyd/Simon 
Rowlands/Ni
ck Bowles 

September 
2019  
(Options 
Appraisal 
element 
originally 
scheduled 
for 30 April 
2020 but 
reschedule
d due to 
COVID-
19/resche
duled 
again due 
to COVID-

P
age 263



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 19 
December 
2020) 

        

15 July 
 

Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

1. Draft Sustainable 
Travel Plan 
 

To consider the draft sustainable 
travel plan (including the Council’s 
role in facilitating the locating of 
vehicle charging points across the 
county, its work with other local 
authorities and stakeholders with 
respect of their availability and in 
relation to other potential 
alternative travel modes, and in 
supporting the community to 
switch to sustainable fuels)   

To provide observations and 
recommendations that will 
support the delivery of the 
corporate priorities relating to 
the environment and 
connected communities by 
reducing CO2 emissions and 
improving travel connectivity  

Emlyn 
Jones/Mike 
Jones 

By 
SCVCG 
June 2018 
(reschedul
ed 
February 
& 
November 
2019 & 
October 
2020 due 
to COVID-
19) 

        

30 
September 

Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Provisional External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 
 
(tbc) 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Geraint 
Davies/GwE 

October 
2020 

        

25 
November 

Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest version of 
the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register and risk appetite 
statement 

Effective monitoring and 
management of identified risk 
to reduce risks to residents 
and the Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/E
mma Horan 

November 
2020 

        

January 
2022 
 
(date tbc) 

Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Verified External 
Examinations  
[Education] 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children; and GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of the 
County’s pupils. 
 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Geraint 
Davies/GwE 

October 
2020 

P
age 264



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

The report to include actual 
figures in addition to percentages 
along with school absenteeism 
and exclusion data. 
 
The report to incorporate GwE’s 
Annual report and information on 
the 5 year trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

 
 
Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Dolwen Residential Care Home To consider the Task and Finish Group’s 
recommendations relating to the future 
provision of services at Dolwen 
Residential Care Home, Denbigh 

Pre-decision scrutiny of the task 
and finish group’s findings and the 
formulation of recommendations 
for presentation to Cabinet with 
respect of the future provision of 
services at Dolwen with a view to 
ensuring that everyone is 
supported to live in homes that 
meet their needs and are able to 
live independent and resilient lives  

Task and Finish 
Group/Phil 
Gilroy/Abbe 
Harvey 

July 2018 
(currently on-
hold due to 
COVID-19) 

Post 16 provision at Rhyl College 
(suggested for scrutiny during service 
challenge) 

To examine the post 16 provision at Rhyl 
College 

The development of an effective 
working relationship between the 
College and the Council to secure 
the delivery of courses required to 
support the delivery of the North 
Wales Growth Deal and improve 
the future prospects of the area’s 
students  

Rhyl College 
(and invite 
Geraint Davies 
& John Evans – 
post 16 officer 
from DCC) 

By SCVCG 
July 2020  

     

 
Information/Consultation Reports 

P
age 265



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

September 2021 & 
March 2022 
 
[Information] 

Corporate Plan 2017/22 Q1 2021/22 
& 
Corporate Plan 2017/22 (Q3) 2021/20 
 
To monitor the Council’s progress in 
delivering the  Corporate Plan  

Ensuring that the Council meets its targets and 
delivers its Corporate Plan and the Council’s 
services in line with its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan Smith/Iolo 
McGregor/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

September 
2018 

Feb/May/Sept/November 
each year 
 
[Information] 

Quarterly ‘Your Voice’ complaints 
performance to include social services 
complaints  

To scrutinise Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints and 
identify areas of poor performance with a view 
to the development of recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  The report to include: 
(i) a comprehensive explanation on why 

targets have not been met when dealing 
with specific complaints, reasons for non-
compliance, and measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe;  

(ii) how services encourage feedback and use 
it to redesign or change the way they deliver 
services; and 

(iii)details of complaints which have been 
upheld or partially upheld and the lessons 
learnt from them. 

 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Kevin Roberts/Ann 
Lloyd/Phil Gilroy 

November 
2018 

Information Report  
(June 2020 rescheduled 
to December 2021) 

Housing Services – Review of the 
effectiveness of the new working model 
for Housing Officers and the 
development of new ways of working 
with residents from the lessons learnt 
through COVID-19  

To review the effectiveness and impact of the 
new Housing Officer model in delivering 
personal advice and support to tenants, 
particularly those who reside in older people’s 
schemes 

Geoff Davies March 2019 
(rescheduled 
May 2019 & 
then Jan 
2021 at 
officers 
request due 

P
age 266



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 7 

to COVID-19 
pressures) 

 
 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

18 March  4 March 29 April 15 April 10 June 27 May 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
Updated 19/01/2021 RhE 

P
age 267



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 269



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 270



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

16 Feb 1 DCC’s Climate and Ecological 
Change Strategy (2021/22 – 
2029/30) 

To consider the final DCC’s 
Climate and Ecological 
Change Strategy (2021/22 – 
2029/30) and recommend to 
Council its adoption 

Tbc Councillor Brian Jones / 
Helen Vaughan-Evans 

 2 Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) 
Write-Offs 

To seek approval to write off 
irrecoverable NDR (business 
rates) as detailed within the 
report. 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Recommendations of the 
Strategic Investment Group 

To seeking support of 
projects identified for 
inclusion in the 2021/22 
Capital Plan 

Yes Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 4 Volunteering Policy To discuss the new 
Volunteering Policy and 
supporting process of 
recruiting and managing 
volunteers within 
Denbighshire County 
Council, to ensure 
meaningful volunteering 
experiences for all. 

Tbc Councillor Richard Mainon / 
Felicity Chandler / Nicola 
Kneale 
 

P
age 271



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 5 Changes to Denbighshire’s 
Street Naming and Numbering 
Policy 

To seek approval of 
proposed changes to the 
policy 

Yes Councillor Richard Mainon / 
Emma Jones 

 6 Welsh Government Targeted 
Investment Programme 

To seek delegated authority 
to officers relating to the WG 
Targeted Investment 
Programme following an 
extension of the scheme 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Gareth Roberts 

 7 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 8 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

23 March 1 Awel Y Dyffryn Extra Care 
Housing – Appointment of Care 
Providers 

To seek approval to appoint 
2 care providers for ECH 
older persons and Learning 
Disability 

Yes Councillor Bobby Feeley / Phil 
Gilroy / Emily Jones-Davies 

 2 Corporate Plan (Oct to Dec) To consider a performance 
update on the Corporate 
Plan 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Iola McGregor 

 3 Contract Procedures Rules To consider the reviewed 
contract procedures rules 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Lisa Jones 

P
age 272



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

which will require adoption 
and form part of the council 
constitution 

 4 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 5 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

27 April 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

      

25 May 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

P
age 273



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

      

 

29 June 1 Annual Performance Review To consider the Annual 
Performance Review 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Iolo McGregor 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

 Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Steve Gadd 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 
 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

January 5 January February 2 February March 9 March 
 
Updated 19/01/2021 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 274



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

26 
November 
2020 

5 5. COVID-19 
RECOVERY 
THEME:  
CORPORATE 
PRIORITIES 

Resolved: - having considered the information provided in 
the report and during the discussion on the COVID-19 
emergency, to confirm that the Council’s existing 
governance framework was still appropriate for assessing, 
monitoring and delivering the Authority’s corporate 
priorities 

Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
recommendation 

 6 6.  CORPORATE 
RISK REGISTER 
REVIEW:  
SEPTEMBER 
2020 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations to receive 
and confirm the amendments to the Corporate Risk 
Register. 

Lead Member and officers 
informed of the Committee’s 
recommendation 

 7    

Special 
Meeting 22 
December 
2020 

8 4.  AVOIDANCE 
AND REDUCTION 
OF PLASTICS IN 
DENBIGHSHIRE 
COUNTY 
COUNCIL 

Resolved: - having considered the information provided by 
the Task and Finish Group on its work thus far that – 
 

(i) given the current circumstances due to the 
global COVID-19 pandemic, that Phase 2 of the 
Group’s work should not proceed and that the 
Task and Finish Group be disbanded; 

(ii) opportunities to reduce the use of plastics in 
school catering and procurement, along with any 
future work on the avoidance and reduction of 
plastics in Denbighshire County Council 
(including its Alternative Delivery Models 

The Task and Finish Group’s 
findings along with the 
Committee’s recommendations 
will be reported to County 
Council at its meeting on 23rd 
February 2021. 
 
(iv) The SCVCG was due to 
consider recommendation (iv) at 
its meeting on 21st January 
2021.  The outcome of that 
discussion will be reported 

P
age 275



(ADMs) such as Denbighshire Leisure Limited 
(DLL) be co-ordinated under the proposed 
Climate and Ecological Change Strategy; 

(iii) having agreed the above recommendations, 
they be submitted to County Council for 
approval; and 

(iv) the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 
(SCVCG) be requested to determine the most 
effective forum for monitoring the 
implementation and delivery of reducing the use 
of plastics within Denbighshire County Council 
and the Council’s wider Ecological and Climate 
Change Strategy.   

verbally to the Committee on 28th 
January 2021 

 

P
age 276


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	22.12.2020 SPECIAL PERFORMANCE SC MINUTES E

	5 WORK PROGRAMME AND SUPPORT TO SCHOOLS DURING THE COVID PANDEMIC
	Performance and Support to Schools during COVID-19 Report 280121 - App 1
	Performance and Support to Schools during COVID-19 Report 280121 - Appendix 2
	Performance and Support to Schools during COVID-19 Report 280121 - App 3
	Performance and Support to Schools during COVID-19 Report 280121 - Appendix 4

	6 LEARNER TRANSPORT: PROVISION FOR WELSH MEDIUM EDUCATION AND THE DEFINITION OF CATEGORY 1 SCHOOLS IN THE COUNTY
	School Transport for Welsh Medium Education Report 280121 - Appendix 1
	School Transport for Welsh Medium Education Report 280121 - Appendix 2
	School Transport for Welsh Medium Education Report 280121 - Appendix 3

	7 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Performance FWP - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report  - App 2E
	Work Programme Report  - App 3
	Work Programme Report  - App 4


	Button 115: 


